r! Pennsylvania
% Office of Open Records

Standard Right-to-Know Law Request Form

Please read carefully. Complete this form and retain a copy of both pages; this copy may be required if
an appeal is filed. You have 15 business days to appeal after a request is denied or deemed denied. More
information about the RTKL is available at hitps://www.openrecords.pa.gov. In most cases, a
completed RTKL request form is a public record.

SUBMITTED TO AGENCY NAME: City of DuBois PA (Attn: AORO)
Date Request Submitted: 11/4/20 Submitted via; o Email oU.S. Mail o Fax oln Person
PERSON MAKING REQUEST: 7

Full Name: Theresa Suplizio

Company (if applicable):

Please send response via: ™ Email 0 U.S. Mail

If you wish to obtain records that only exist in hard copy, or must be provided on an electronic storage device,
Yyou may be required to provide a mailing address to the agency. See Section 703.

et QNP

Mailing Address: 314 Hamor Sf

City: DuBois ' State: PA_ Zip: 15801 Telephnne:——

How do you prefer to be contacted if the agency has questions? m Telephone 0o Email 0 U.S. Mail

m By checking this box, I affirm that my full name and contact information is true and correct,

and that I am a legal resident of the United States. I understand that failure to check this box
may result in the denial of my request and the dismissal of any appeal filed with the Office of
Open Records.

RECORDS REQUESTED: Provide as much detail as possible, including subject matter, time frame, and type of
record sought. RTKL requests must seek records, not ask questions. Use additional pages if necessary.

Audits for the following years:
2008
2009
2010

Form continues on page 2. Retain a copy of both pages.
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RECORDS REQUESTED (continued):

DO YOU WANT COPIES? 0O Yes, printed m Yes, electronic 0 No, in-person inspection

Records shall be provided in the medium requested if they exist in that medium; otherwise, they shall
be provided in the medium in which they exist. See Section 701. Your request may require payment or

prepayment of fees. View the Official RTKI Fee Schedule for more details.

Iunderstand that my request may incur fees. Notify me before further processing if fees will
be more than D $100 (or) O $10.00 .

Do you want certified copies? O Yes {may be subject to additional costs} m No

ITEMS BELOW THIS LINE FOR AGENCY USE ONLY

Tracking: Date Received: Response Due (5 bus. days):

30-Day Ext.? O] Yes [ No (If Yes, Final Due Date: ) Actual Response Date:

Request was: [] Granted O Partially Granted & Denied I Denied Cost to Requester:
$

[ Appropriate third parties notified and given an opportunity to object to the release of requested records.

Retain a copy of both pages of this Form.

20of2







CITY OF DuBOIS, PENNSYLVANIA

P.0. BOX 408 16 W.SCRIBNER AVE. DuBOIS, PENNSYLVAN IA 15801

TELEPHONE: (814)371-2000
FAX: (814)371-1290

November 8, 2024
VIA EMAIL
Ms. Theresa Suplizio

314 Hamor Street
DuBois, PA 15801

Dear Ms. Suplizio,

Thank you for writing the City of DuBois with your request for information pursuant to the
Pennsylvania Right- To-Know law.

On November 4, 2024, you requested audits for 2008, 2009, and 2010. ‘
Your reguest is granted, and the responsive documents are enclosed.

Respectfully,

4 Gy

Shawn Arbaugh
City Manager
City of DuBois, Clearfield County

"Gateway To Big Game Country”
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DuBois, PA 15801-1084 RibswaAY, PA 15853-0157
P.0, Box 1084 P.Q. Box 157

SHARKEY PicciriLLo KEEN & HaNZELY, LLP

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
DuBois, Pennsylvania 15801

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Cily Councll
City of BPuBols, Pennsylvania
DuBois, Pennsylvania

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City
of DuBols, Pennsylvania, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2008, which collectively
comprise the basic financlal statements of the City's primary government as listed in the table of
contents. These financial siatements are the responslbility of the City of DuBols, Pennsyivania's
management. Our responsibllity is o express opinlons on these financial slaternents based on our
audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the Uniled
States of America and the standards applicable to financlal audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United Slates. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to cbtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit Includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financlal statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting princlples used and the significani estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financlal statement presentation. We belleve that
our audit provides a reascnable basis for our opinlons.

As discussed in Note 2, the City of DuBols, Pennsylvania, prepares ils financial statements on the
basis of cash receipts and disbursements, which Is a comprehensive basis of accounting other
than accounting princlples generally accepted In the United States of America.

The financlal statements do not include financlal data for the City's legally separate component
units. Accounting princlples generally accepted in the United States of America require the financial
data for those component units to be reporied with the financial data of the City’s primary
government unless the Clly also Issues financlal statements for the financlal reporting entity that
Include the financlal data for lts component units. The City has not issued such reporting entity
financlal stalements. The amourit by which this deparlure would affect the assets, llabillties, net
assets, revenues, and expenses of the aggregate discretely presented component units is not
reasonably determinable,

In our opinion, because of the omisslon of the discretely presented component units, as discussed
above, the financlal statements referred to above do not present fairly, the cash basis financlal
positlon of the aggregate discretely presented component units of the City of DuBolis,
Pennsylvanla, as of Decermber 31, 2008, or the changes in cash basls financlal position thereof for
the year then ended in conformity with the basis of accounling described In Note 2.




In additlon, in our opinion, except for the effects of omitting blended component unlls, the financial
slatementls referred to above present falrly, In all materlal respacts, the cash basis financial position
of the aggregate remalning fund informatlon for the primary government of the City of DuBois,
Pennsylvania, as of December 31, 2008, and the changes in cash basis financial position thereof
for the year then ended in conformity with the basis of accounting described in Note 2.

Further, in our opinion, the financlal statements referred to above present falrly, in all material
respacts, the respectlve cash basis financlal position of the governmenlal aclivities, the business-
lype activities, and each major fund of the primary government of the City of DuBols, Pennsylvania,
as of December 31, 2008, and the respective changes in cash basis financial position thereof for
the year then ended in conformity with the basis of accounting described In Note 2.

In accordance with Government Auditing Slandards, we have also issued our report dated
December 11, 2009, on our conslderalion of the City of DuBols, Pennsylvania's Internal control
over financial reporling and on our tests of Ils compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, conlracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financlal reporting and compliance and the
resulls of that testing, and not to provide an oplnion on the internal over financial reporiing or on
compliance. That report Is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance wilh Government
Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.

The budgetary comparison information on pages 31 through 32 is not a required part of the basic
financial statements but is supplementary Information required by accounting principles generally
accepted In the United States of America. We have applied certain limited procedures, which
consisted principally of Inquirles of management regarding the methods of measurement and
presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did not audit the Information
and expréss no opinion on It.

The Cily of DuBois, Pennsylvania, has not presented the management’s discussion and analysis
that accounting principles generally accepted in the United States has determined is necessary to
supplement, although not required to be part of, the baslc financlal statements.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming oplnions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Clty of DuBois, Pennsylvania's basic financlal statements. The combining
nonmajor fund financlal statements are presented for purposes of additlonal analysis and are not a
requirad part of lhe basic financlal statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of
federal awards Is presented for purposes of additiona! analysis as required by U.S. Office of
Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audils of Slales, Local Governments, and Non-Profil
Organizations, and Is also not a required part of the baslc flnancial statements of the City of
DuBols, Pennsylvania. The combining nonmajor fund financlal statements and the schedule of
expenditures of federal awards have been subjected to the auditing procedures applled In the audit
of the basic financial statemenis and, in our opinion, are fairly slated in ail materlal respects in
relatlon to the basic financlal statsments taken as a whole.

)ﬂwméfa/@znwrfd%qb@a, LLpP

SHARKEY PICCIRILLO KEEN & HANZELY, LLP
December 11, 2009



CITY OF DUBOIS, PENNSYLVANIA

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
CASH BASIS

December 31, 2008

Primary Governmenl

Governmenlal Buslness-type

Acllvilles Aclivities Tolal
SSE
Cash $ 2020914 §$ 2,201,380 % 4,222,204
Internal balances 563,231 83,034 036,265
Total Assels $ 2,674,145 § 2,204,414 § 4,858,659
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Llabllilies:

Payroll taxes payable $ 11,395 § - % 11,396

Internal balances 83,034 563,2M 638,265
Tolal Llabllltes 04,429 553,231 647,660
Nel Ascels:

Rastricled for:

Olher purposss 2,771,433 - 2,771,433

Unresiricled (291,7117) 1,731,183 1,439,466
Tolal Nel Assels 2,479,716 1,731,183 4,210,899
Tolal Liabllifles and Nel Assels $ 2574145 § 2284414 § 4,858,650

See accompanying notes to baslc financlal statements.
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CITY OF DUBOIS, PENNSYLVANIA

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
CASH BASIS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2008

Nel (Expense} Revenue and
Changes in Net Assels

Program Revenues Piimary Goyernment
Operaling Capllal
Chargas for Grants and Granls and  Governmantal Buslness-
Funcllons/Programs Expenses Services Conlribulions  Conlributions Aclivilles lype Aclivilles Tolal
Primary Government:
Govarnmenlal aclivities:
General gevarnment $ 922763 $ 142020 % - % - $ (780,704) $ - % (780.734)
Public safely 1,629,664 208,837 - - {1.330,727) - {1,330,727)
Public works 1,335,617 - - - (1,935,617) - {1.335,617)
Communily and economic -
developmenl 1.092,027 13,000 504,590 422,582 {151,855) - (161,855}
Culture and recraallon 244,514 61,077 - - (183,437) - {183,437)
Princlpal on long-term debl 195,094 - - - (195,094) - (195,004)
Interes| on long-lerm debt 14,828 - - - {14,838) - {14,838)
Tolal governmental activilies 5,434,417 514,943 604,600 422,682 (3,992,302} - (3.992,302)
Business-lype activitles:
Sawer 4,392,828 2,554,941 - 720,722 - {1,117,165) (1,417,165)
Waler 5,678,356 1,626,663 - - . (4,051,793) (4,061,793)
Tolal business-lype aclivities 10,071,184 4,181,504 - 720,722 - {5,168,958) (5,168,958)
Tolal Primary Government $ 15,505,601  $ 4696447 § 504,580 § 1,143,304 (3,992,302) (6,168,850) (9,161,260)
Goneral Revenues:
Taxes:
Real aslate ) 1,260,612 - 1,269,612
Residence 21,661 - 21,661
Per caplla 21,871 - 21,671
Real astale transfer 67,198 - 67,198
Earned Income 602,079 - 602,079
Local services lex 275,733 - 275,733
Intergovernmental revenues 481,603 - 481,803
Proceeds from borrowings 348,600 6,212,304 6,560,904
Intarest 93,634 93,069 186,693
Sales of caplial assels 28,855 - 28,855
Miscellaneous 178,249 - 178,249
Transfers 1,182,837 {1,182,837) -
Tolel General Revenues and Transfers 4,562,032 5,122,526 9,684,558
Change In Nal Assels 569,730 (46,432) 523,298
Mel Assels - Baginning 1,909,986 1,777,615 3,687,601
Nal Assaels - Ending $ 2479716 $ 1,731,183 § 4,210,099

See accompanying notes to baslc financlal statements,
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Cash and cash investmenls

SSE

Interfund recelvables

Total Assels

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Llabllilles:

Payroll {axes payabla
Interfund payablas

Tolal Llabiliies

Fund Balances:

Unreserved, reporied In:

Geneial fund

Speclal revenue funds

Tolal Fund Balances

Total Liabllities and Fund Balances

CITY OF DUBOIS, PENNSYLVANIA

BALANCE SHEET
CASH BASIS

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

December 31, 2008

See accompanying notes to baslc financlal statements.
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Other Tolal
Brewery Capllal Johnson Governmental  Governmental

General Granl Reserve Controls Funds Funds
$ 0663 % - $ 861,008 § 502,261 $ 567,262 § 2,020,914
70,488 - 830,670 - 50,072 851,130
$ 80,051 § - $ 1602378 § 692261 $ 607364 $ 2,972,044
$ 135§ - $ - % - % - $ 11,585
360,373 119,112 - - 1,448 480,933
371,768 119,112 - - 1,448 492 328
(291,717) - - - - (281,717)
- (118,112) 1,692,378 592,261 805,806 2,771,432
(291,717) {119,112) 1,692,378 592,281 605,906 2,479,716
$ 80,061 § - $ 1602378 $ 592261 $ 607,954 § 2,972,044




CITY OF DUBQIS, PENNSY1LVANIA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

CASH BASIS

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2008

Other Tolal
Brewary Capltel Johnson Governmenlal Governmental
General Grant Reserve Controls Funds Funds
Revenues:
Taxes $ 2,246,054 3 - 3 - % - 3 - $ 2,248,084
Intergovernmental 282,406 - - - 1,126,569 1,408,975
Charges lor services 366,218 - - - - 368,218
Licenses and permils 76,378 - - - . 76,378
Fines and forfeltures . 70,347 - - - - 70,347
Interesl and renlals 63,894 - 27,277 2,261 1.476 100,907
Miscellansous 95,976 - - - 75,000 170,976
Tolal Reventres 3,205,273 - 27,277 2,281 1,200,044 4,443,855
Expendilures;
Cursenl;
General government 641,797 - - - 32,681 574,470
Public safely 1,630,614 - - - 4,132 1,634,748
Public works 772,850 - - - 228,116 1,001,066
Communlly and economic developmant - 119,112 - 100,000 872,916 1,002,027
Culture and recreallon 244,614 - - - - 244,514
Debl service:
Princlpal 195,094 - - - - 195,094
Interest 14,838 - - - - 14,838
Capital oullay 438,616 - - - - 438,616
Olher 339,039 - - - - 339,039
Tolal Expendilures 4,077,461 119,112 - 100,000 1,137,844 5,434,417
Excess (Deflclency) of ‘
" Revenues over Expendilures (872,108) (119,112} 27,277 (67,739) 71,200 {990,562)
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Capltal assels sales 28,855 - - . - 26,856
Proceeds from borrowings 348,600 - - - - 340,600
Transfers in 436,104 - 119,687 690,000 24,973 1,340,764
Transfers out (154,054) - - - (2,973) (167,927)
Tolal Other Financing Sources {Uses) 650,805 - 119,607 680,000 92,000 1,560,202
Excass {Dellclency) of Revenues
and Cther Sources Over
Expendilures and Other Uses (213,603} {118,412) 146,864 592,261 163,200 569,730
Fund Balances-Beginning (78,134) - 1,645,414 - 442,708 1,909,986
Fund Balances-Ending $§ (200717) $ (119112} $ 1602378 § 6592261 $ 6059008 $ 2479718

See accompanylng notes to basic financlal statements.
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CITY OF DUBOIS, PENNSYLVANIA

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
CASH BASIS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

December 31, 2008

Business-Type Acllvitles - Enterprise Funds

Sewer Water Total
ASSETS
Current assels:
Cash $ 21437740 % 63640 $ 2,201,380
Interfund receivables 2,034 81,000 83,034
Total current assels 2,139,774 144,640 2,284,414
Total Assels $ 2139774 &% 144,640 § 2,284,414
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Current liabliilies:
[nterfund payables $ 220656 $ 332,575 $ 553,231
Total current liabllities 220,656 332,675 553,231
Total Llabilitles 220,656 332,675 553,231
Net assels: _
Unrestricted 1,919,118 (187,935) 1,731,183
Total net assels 1,919,118 {187,935) 1,731,183

Total Liabllities and Net Assels

See accompanying notes to baslc financlal statements,

10

$ 2139774 § 144640 _§ 2284414




CITY OF DUBOIS, PENNSYLVANIA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
CASH BASIS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2008

Business-Type Acllvities - Enterprise Funds
Sewer Water Total

Operating Ravenues:

Charges for services $ 2554941 $ 1626563 $ 4,181,504
Miscellaneous - - -
Tolal Operating Revenues 2,554,941 1,626,563 4,181,504
QOperaling Expenses:
Public works 1,764,992 1,306,822 3,071,814
Total Operaling Expenses 1,764,992 1,306,822 3,071,814
Operating Income 789,949 319,741 1,109,690
Non-Operating Revenues (Expénses):
Grants 720,722 - 720,722
Proceeds from borrowlngs 1,721,997 4,490,307 6,212,304
Interest Income 89,965 3,004 93,059
Capital outlay {1,034,931) (878,547) (1,913,478)
Debt sarvice principal {1,499,061) (3,291,811) (4,790,872)
Debt service Interast (93,844) (201,176) (295,020)
Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) (95,152) 121,867 26,715
Income Before Transfers 694,797 441,608 1,136,405
Transfers In - 13,075 13,075
Transfers Qut (712,332) (483,580) (1,195,912)
Change in Net Assets (17,535) {28,897) (46,432)
Total Net Assets - Beginning 1,936,653 (169,038) 1,777,615
Total Net Assets - Ending $ 1919118 $ (187935} $ 1,731,183

See accompanying notes o basic financial statements.
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CITY OF DUBQIS, PENNSYLVANIA

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

CASH BASIS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2008

Cash Flows from Operaling Activities:
Receaipls from customers
Payments to suppliers
Payments lo employees
Net Cash Provided by Operating Aclivilles

Cash Flows from Noncapltal Financing Activitles:
Transfers In
Transfers out
(Increase) decrease in interfund recelvables
Increase (decrease) In interfund payables
Net Cash Used by Noncapital Financing Activitles

Cash Flows from Capilal and Related Financing Activitles:

Acquisltion and constructlon of capital assets

Proceeds from capltal grants

Proceeds from borrowings

Principal paid on debt

Interest pald

Nat Cash Provided (Used) by Capltal and Related

Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Invesling Activitles:
Interest

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash

Cash:
Beglinning

Ending

See accompanylng notes 1o basic financial statements.
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Buslness-Type Activilies - Enterprise Funds

Sewer Waler Total
$ 2554941 $ 106265663 § 4,181,504
(1,178,984) {741,947) (1,920,931)
{586,008) {564,875) (1,150,883)
789,949 319,741 1,109,690
- 13,075 13,076
(712,332) {483,580) {1,195,912)
- {81,000) (81,000)
85,000 {82,054) 2,946
{627,332) {633,559) (1,260,891)
{1,034,931) (878,547) (1,913,478)
720,722 - 720,722
1,721,997 4,490,307 6,212,304
(1,499,061) (3,291,811) {4,790,872)
{93,844) {201,176) (295,020)
(185,117) 118,773 (66,344)
89,0965 3,094 93,059
87,465 (191,951) {124,486)
2,070,275 255,591 2,325,866
$ 21437740 % 63640 $ 2,201,380




CITY OF DUBOIS, PENNSYLVANIA

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

Dacember 31, 2008

Non-Unlformed

Employeas Police
ASSETS ’ Penslon Plan Penslon Plan Agency Funds
Cash $ - % - § 64,375
Invasimenls;
Investmant assets with PMRS, at fair value 5,430,396 - -
Insurance conlracls, at contract value - 4,219,824 -
Unallocated separate accounts, at falr value - 500,038 -
Total Invesiments 5,430,395 4,719,862 -
Tolal Assels $§ 5430385 § 4719862 % 64,375
LIABILITIES
Escrow liabllilles _ $ - % - $ 64,375
Total Liabllilies - - 3 64,375
NET ASSETS
Held in trust for penslon benefils $ 5430395 % 4,719,862

See accompanying notes to basic financlal statements.
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CITY OF DUBOIS, PENNSYL VANIA

STATEMENT OF CHANGES |N FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2008

ADDITIONS
Conlribullons:
Plan members
Employer
Slale

Total conlribullons

Nel Investment Income:
Net appreclatlon {depreclallon) in fakr value of invesimenis
Interest
Contracl Investmen! Income
Total investrment Income
Less Invesiment expenses
Net investment Income

Tolal Addillons

DEDUCTIONS
Refunds of member conlributions
Benefits
Adminlstrative expenses
Allocated insurance premlums
Tolal Deductlions
Change In Nel Assels
Net Assels-Beginning

Nel Assels-Ending

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements,
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Non-Uniformed

Employees Police Penslon
Penslon Plan Plan

$ 67,484 21,132

40 76,447

74,669 146,490

132,193 244,069

- (958,723)

305,106 -

- 214,336

305,106 (744,387)

306,106 (744,387)

437,299 (600,318}

21,850 -

311,705 254,587

1,520 16,956

1,859 -

336,934 271,542

100,366 (771,860)

5,330,030 5,491,722

$ 5430,396 $ 4,719,862




CITY OF DUBOIS, PENNSYLVANIA

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2008

Nole 1 — Reporting Entity

The City of DuBois, Pennsyivania, a clly of the third class, was created by charter granted by the
Governor of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania on December 28, 1914, The Cily is a municipal
corporation governed by an elected mayor and four member councll.

The financial slatements include only the primary government of the Clty, which consists of all
funds, organizations, inslilutions, agencies, departments, and offices that comprise the City's legal
enlity. The primary government financlal statements do not Include financlal data for the City's
legally separate component units or Joint venturesfjointly governed organizations.

Note 2 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The financlal statements of the City have been prepared on the basls of cash receipts and
disbursements, which differs from accounting principles generally accepled in the United States of
America (GAAP). The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted
standard-setting body for establlshing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.
The City also applies Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Statements and
Interpretations issued on or before November 30, 1989, to ils governmental and business-type
activitles and to ts enterprise funds provided they do not conflict with or contradict GASB
pronouncements. The City has elected not to apply FASB pronouncements issued after November
30, 1989 to Uts business-lype activitles or enterprise funds. The flnanctal statements Include
government-wide flnanclal statements prepared on the basis of cash recelpts and
disbursements and fund financial statements which present information for individua!l major
funds rather than by fund type. Nonmajor funds are aggregated and presented In a single
column. Flduciary funds are reported by type. The more significant accounting policies of the City
are described below.

A. Basis of Presentation
The City's basic financial statements consist of government-wide financial statements, including
a statemaent of net assets and a statement of activiles, and fund financial statements which
provide a more detailed level of financial information.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The statement of net assets and the slatement of aclivilles display information about the City as
‘a whole. These statements include the financial aclivities of the primary government, except for
fiduciary funds. The statements distinguish between governmental and business-type activities.
Governmenital actlvitles generally are flnanced through taxes, intergovernmental revenuss, and
other nonexchange revenues. Business-type activilies are financed In whole or In part by fees
charged to external parties for goods or services,
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Dacember 31, 2008

Note 2 — Summary of Significant Accounting Pollcles (Continued)

A. Basis of Presentation (Continued)
Government-Wide Financlal Staternents (Continued)

The statement of net assets presents the financlal condition of the governmental and business-
lype activilles of the City at year end. The statement of activities presents a comparison
between dlrect expenses and program revenues for each program or function of the City's
governmental aclivilles and business-type activities. Direct expenses are those that are
specifically assoclated with a service, program, or departiment and, therefore, clearly identifiable
to a particular function. Program revenues Include charges pald by the reclpient of the goods or
services offered by the program, grants and coniributions that are resiricled to meeting the
operational or capltal requirements of a particular program, and interest earned on grants that is
required to be used to support a particular program. Revenues that are not classified as
program revenues are presented as general revenues of the City. The comparison of direct
expenses with program revenues Identifles the extent to which each governmental program or
business activity is self-financing or draws from the general revenues of the City.

Fund Financlal Statements

The Cily segregates transactions related to certain City funclions or activitles in separate funds
in order fo aid financlal management and to demonstrate legal compliance. Fund financial
statements are designed lo present financlal information of the Cily at this more detailed level.
Funds are organized into lhree categories: governmental, proprletary, and flduciary. The focus
of governmental and proprietary fund financial statements is on major funds. Each major fund is
presented In a separate column. A fund is consldered major If It is the primary operating fund of
the Clty or meels the following crileria: tlotal assets, liabilittes, revenues, or
expendllures/expenses of that individual governmental or enterprise fund are at least 10 percent
of the corresponding total for all funds of that category or type; and tolal assets, liabilities,
revenues, or expenditures/expenses of the Individual governmental fund or enterprise fund are
at least 5 percent of the corresponding total for all governmental and enterprise funds combined.
Nonmajor funds are aggregated and presented In a single column. Fiduclary funds are reported
by type.

B. Fund Accounting
The Clty uses funds.to maintaln its financial records during the year, A fund Is defined as a fiscal
and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts. There are three categories of funds:
governmental, proprietary, and fiduclary.

Governmental Funds

Governmental funds are those through which most governmental functions of the Cily are
financed, The measurement focus of governmental funds is on the sources, uses, and bhalances
of current financlal resources. The followlng are the City's major governmental funds:
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Note 2 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

B. Fund Accounting {Conlinued)
Governmenlal Funds (Continued)

General Fund

The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the City. This fund is used to account for
all financial resources not accounted for in other funds. All general tax revenues and other
receipts that are not restricted by law or contraclual agreement to some other fund are
accounted for in this fund. General operating expenditures, fixed charges, and capltal
improvement costs that are not palid through other funds are pald from the General Fund.

Brewery Grant Fund

The Brewery Grant Fund accounts for the infrastructure improvements and development
project at the former DuBols Brewery Complex.

Capital Ressrve Fund
The Capital Reserve Fund accounts for resources accumutated and reserved for capital

projects and expendilures and to fund projects financed by Intergovernmental grants and
revenues,

Johnson Controls Fund

The Johnson Controls Fund accounts for transaction related to the Flexnet meter system
installation project.

The other governmental funds of the City account for grants and other resources whose use is

restricted for a particular purpose and the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of
debt.

Proprietary Funds

Proprietary fund reporting focuses on the determination of operating Income, changes in net
assets, financlal position, and cash flows,

Enterprise Funds

Enterprise funds are used to account for operations that are financed in a manner similar to
private business enterprises, where the intent is that costs of providing goods or services lo
the general publlc on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user
charges. The Sewage and Water Funds are the City's major enterprise funds.

Fiduclary Funds

Flduciary funds are used to account for assets held by the Clty In a trustee capagclty or as an
agent for Indlviduals, private organizations, and other governments. Fiduclary funds are not
included in the government-wide financial statements.

Penslon Trust Fund

The Penslon Trust Fund accounts for the assets of the City's Non-Uniformed Employses'
Pension and Pollce Pension plans.
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Note 2 — Summaty of Significant Accounting Policles {Continued)

B. Eund Accounting (Continued)
Fiduclary Funds (Continued)
Agency Funds

Agency Funds are custodial in nature with assets and liabllities being equal and do not
involve measurement of results of operatlon. The City's Fire Loss Escrow Fund Is an agency
fund. :

C. Measurement Focus and Basls of Accounting

Measurement focus refers to what Is being measured; basls of accounting refers {o when
revenues and expendltures are recognized in the accounis and reported in the financial
statements. Basls of accounting relates fo the timing of the measurement made, regardless of
the measurement focus applied.

The government-wide flnanclal statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the cash recelpts and disbursements basls of accounting. The
economic resources measurement focus means all assets and llabilities (whether current or
non-current) are included on the statement of net assets and the statement of acllvities present
Increases (revenues) and decreases {expenses) in net total assets. Under the cash receipis and
disbursements basis of accounting, which is a comprehensive basis of accounting other than
accounting principles generally accepted in the United Stales of America, revenues are
recognized when received and expenses are recognized when paid.

Governmental and propristary fund financlal statements are reported using the current financial
resources measurement focus and are accounted for using the cash receipls and
disbursements basls of accounting. The current financial resources measurement focus means
only current financial assets and llabllities are included on the balance sheet and inflows
(revenues and other financing sources) and outflows (expenditures and other financing uses) of
expendable financlal resources are Included on the statements of revenues, expenditures, and
changes In fund balances. '

As a result of the use of the cash receipts and disbursements basis of accounting, certaln assels
and their revenues (such as accounis recelvable and revenue for bllled or provided services not
yet collected) and certaln liabllitles and thelr related expenses (such as accounts payable and
expenses for goods or services received but not yet pald, and accrusd expenses and llabilities)
are not recorded in lhese financial statements.

Fiduciary fund financlal statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting, except for the recognition of certain liabilitles of
deflned benefit pension plans. GASB Statement No. 25, Financial Reporting for Defined Benefit
Pension Plans and Notes Disclosures for Defined Contribution Plans, requires that pian llabilities
be recognized in the Pension Trust Fund for benefits and refunds to plan members and
beneflciaries when due and payable In accordance with the terms of the plan,
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Note 2 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policles {Continued)

C. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting (Continued)

If the City ulilized the basis of accounting recognized as generally accepted, the fund financlal
statements for governmental funds would use the modified accrual basis of accounting, while
the fund financial statements for proprletary funds would use the accrual basls of accounting. All
government-wide financial statements would be presented on the accrual basis of accounting.

D. Interfund Activily

Interfund activity is reported as loans, services provided, reimbursemenis, or transfers, as
applicable. Loans are reported as interfund recelvables and payables on the fund financial
statements. Interffund receivables and payables are eliminated on the government-wide
statement of net assels. Services provided are treated as revenues and expenditures/expenses.
Relmbursements are when one fund Incurs a cost, charges the appropriate benefiting fund and
reduces iis related cost as a reimbursement. All other interfund activity Is treated as lransfers.

E. Net Assets

Net assets represent the difference between assets and llabllities. Net assels are reported as
restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use either through the snabling legislation
adopted by the City or through external restrictlons imposed by creditors, grantors, or laws or
regulations of olher governments. The City's policy Is to first apply resiricted resources when an
expense is Incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net assets are
available. ‘

F. Use of Estimates

The preparation of the financlal statemenls requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financlal statements and accompanying
notes. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

Note 3 — Cash Deposils and Investments

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania statutes provide for the Invesiment of moneys of governmental
and proprietary funds into certain authorized Investment typss, Including United States Treasury
bllls, short-term obligations of the United States Government or ils agencies or instrumentalities,
obligations of the United States of America or any of ifs agencles or Instrumentalities backed by the
full falth and credit of the United Slates of America, obligations of the Commonwealth of
Pennsylvanla or any of Its agencies or Instrumentalities backed by the full falth and credit of the
Commonwealth, obligations of any polllical subdivision of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania or
any of it agencles or instrumentalities backed by the full faith and credit of the political subdivision,
and insured or collateralized time deposits and cerlificates of deposit: The statutes do not prescribe
regulations related to demand deposits; however, they do allow the pooling of governmental funds
for investment purposes.
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Note 3 — Cash Deposits and Investments (Continued)

In addition to the investments authorlized for governmental and proprietary funds, invesiments of
the Cily's Pension Plans may also be made In legal Investmenls permitted under the Pennsyivania
Fiduciaries In corporate stocks and bonds, real estate and other investments conslstent with sound
business practice.

The deposit and investment policy of the Cily adheres to the Commonwealth statutes and prudent
business practice. There were no deposit or investment transactions during the year that were In
violation of either the Commonwealih statutes or the policy of the City.

Cash Deposits

Cash deposils are categorized to give an indicatlon of the leve! of custodial credit risk assumed by
ihe City at December 31, 2008. Category 1 includes cash deposits which are insured by the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or collateralized with securitles held by the City or by its
agent in the City's name, Category 2 includes cash deposits which are collateralized with securitles
held by the pledging financtal institution's trust department or agent in the City's name. Category 3
includes cash deposits which are uninsured and uncollateralized, or were collateralized in
accordance with Act 72, a Commonwealth statuie which permils the financlal institution to pool
collateral for all governmental deposits and have the collateral held by an approved custodian in
the Institution's name.

At December 31, 2008, the carrying amount of the Clty's cash deposits with financlal Institutions
was $4,286,669 and the financlal institutions balances lotaled $4,621,837, which Is categorized as
follows:

Category 1 $ 825506
Calegory 3 3,798,331
Total Cash Deposits $ 4621837

Invesiments — Non-Uniformed Emplovees Pension Plan

The investments of the Non-Uniformed Employees Penslon Plan are reported at fair value, and do
not represent specific idenlifiable investment securities, as they are pooled for investment purposes
with the Pennsylvanla Municipal Retlrement System (PMRS). Disclosures required by GASB
Statement No. 3 for aggregate PMRS Invesiments are Included In PRMS's separately issued
Comprehensive Annual Financtal Report.

Invesimenls — Police Penslon Plan

The Police Penslon Plan investments include unallocated Insurance contracts, which are valued at
conlract value, and unallocated separate accounts, which are valued at fair value.

For an investment, custodial credit risk s the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty,
the City will not be able to recover the value of Its Investments or collateral securities that are in the
possession of an outside parly. At December 31, 2008, the Police Penslon Plan's Investments of
$4,719,862 waere held by a counterparty in the name of the Cily.
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Note 3 — Cash Deposlts and Investments (Continued)

Investments — Police Penslon Plan {Continued)
Credit risk Is the risk that an Issuer In debt securities will not fulfill its obligation. At December 31,

2008, the Police Penslon Plan's unallocated separate accounts were commingled pools rather than
individual securities, and, as a result, these accounts are not rated.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of Investments will decrease as a result of a rise in
interest rales. The Cily's invesiments in the Police Pension Plan subjact to Interest rate risk at
December 31, 2008 included:

Effective
Investment Type Value Duratlon
Insurance Contracts, at contract value $ 4219824  4.96 years

Conceniration of credit risk is the risk of loss atiributed to the magnHude of an invesiment In a
single organizatlon. Investments of the Pollce Penslon Plan in any one organlzation that represent
5 percent or more of fotal Invesiments are as follows:
Organization Value
Principal Financial Group $ 4,719,862

Forelgn currency risk is the risk that changes in exchange rates will adversely affect the fair value
of an investment. At December 31, 2008, investments of the Police Penslon Plan were not subject
to foreign currency risk. :

Note 4 — Taxes

Real Estale Properly Taxes

Real estate properly taxes attach as an enforceable llen on property on January first. Taxes are
billed on or about March 1, with a 2% discount through April 30; face amount due from May 1
through June 30; and 10% penalty added after July 1. The Clearfleld County Assessment Office
calculates the yearly tax levy and distributes the individual tax duplicates to the City's elected tax
collector. The tax collector Is responsible for tax collections.

The City is permitted by law o levy separate and different rates of taxatlon for general City
purposes on all real estate classlified as land, exclusive of the bulldings thereon, and on all real
ostale classified as buildings on land. As a result, higher rates may be levied on land if the
respective rates on lands and bulldings are so fixed so as not to constitute a greater levy In the
aggregate than a rate of 25 mills on both land and buildings. Additional levies for ceriain other
purposses are permitted at specific maximum mlllages as provided for in the City Code.
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Note 4 — Taxes (Continued)

Real Eslate Property Taxes (Continued)

Assessed value Is 256% of market value, The City's net laxable assessed value for 2008 was
$55,849,388, The real estate tax millage rates for 2008 was:

Taxable Assessed Value Purposes Milage
Land General 89.00
Buildings and Improvements General 3.00
Tolal real estate Library and Recreation 3.50

Residence and Per Caplia Taxes
Residence and per capita taxes are collected at various times during the year by the City tax

collsctor. Each tax Is In the amount of $56.00 per taxpayer. Various Income and age provisions
determine individual tax liability.

Local Services Taxes

Emergency and Municipal Services taxes are also collected at various times by the City lax
collector, The amount Imposed on taxable residents is $47.00.

Earned Income Taxes

The City also levies a one-halif percent tax on the annual earned Income of City residents. The tax
is collected at various times throughout the year and remitted to the City by an appointed collection
agency.

Note 5§ — Interfund Balances

interfund balances at December 31, 2008 consisted of the following:

Recelvable Fund Payable Fund Amount
General Fund Communily Development Block Grant Fund 5 926
Community Revitalizallon Fund 523
Brewery Grant Fund 69,040
Caplital Reserve Fund General Fund 277,339
Sewer Fund 220,656
Walter Fund 332,575
Urban Development Fund Brewery Grant Fund 50,072
Sewar Fund General Fund 2,034
Water Fund General Fund 81,000
Total $1,034 164

Interfund balances resulted from the timing differences bstween the dates lhat interfund goods and
services are provided or reimbursable expenditures occur, transactions are recorded in the
accounting system, and payments between funds are made.
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Note 6 — Interfund Transfers

Interfund transfers for the year ended December 31, 2008 consisted of the following:

Transfer In Fund Transfer Qut Fund Amounl
General Fund Sewar Fund $ 268,224
Watesr Fund 167,800
Capilal Reserve Fund General Fund 6,354
Sewer Fund 113,332
Johnson Conlrols Fund General Fund 96,600
Sewar Fund 296,700
Waler Fund 206,700
Community Revitalization Fund Urban Development Fund 2,973
Heallh Insurance Fund Gensral Fund 52,000
Sewer Fund 21,000
Waler Fund 19,000
Waler Fund Sewsr Fund 13,075
Total $1,353,830

Transfers are used to move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires to collect them
to the fund that statute or budget requires to expend them and use unrestricted revenues collected
in the general fund fo flnance various programs accounted for in other funds in accordance with
budgetary authorizations.

Nole 7 — Debt

Short-Term Debt

The City has recelved short-term interim flnancing from S&T Bank for a Sewer Replacement
Project to be permanently financed with a loan and grant from Pennsylvania Infrastruclure
Investment Authority. The approved amount of the interlm flnancing was $3,126,291, with a
maturity date of November 3, 2009, At December 31, 2008, the outstanding balance was $0 and
the interest rate was 3.9876 percent.

Short-term debt activily during the year ended December 31, 2008 was:

Beginning Ending Interest
__Balance lssued Redesemed Balance Pald
Interim financing $1332604 § - §$§{(1.332604) 8 - § 7,651
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Note 7 — Debt (Continued)

Long-Term Debt |

The following presents the changss In long-term debt of the Clty during the year ended December
31, 2008: i

Principal
Beginning Ending Due within ,
Governmental Activilles Balance Addllions Reduclions Balance One Year '
Notes and bonds payable: _ |
Notes payable $ 142449 $ 348600 $ (30,094) $§ 460955 § 39,494
Bonds payable 166,000 - {165,000) - -
Governmental aclivities long-
term debt 307,449 348,600 {195,094) 460,965 39,494
Business-Typse Aclivilies
Notes payable 3,119,805 6,212,304 (229,913) 9,102,186 374,140
Bonds payable 3,228,355 - _{(3,228,355) = —
Business-type actlvitles long-
term debt 6,348,160 _ 6212304 _ (3.458,268) 0,102,196 374,140
Total long term debt $ 6656600 $ 6560904 §$(3,653,362) $ 9,663,151 $ 413,634
A summary of long-term debt outstanding at December 31, 2008, follows:
Amountof Balance
Criginal Issue Quistanding
$ 100,000 Pennsylvanla Emergency Management Agency loan to assist In the $ 17,589
purchase of fire apparalus, repayable at $644 monthly May 1, 1996
through Aprll 1, 2011 with 2 percent Interest.
2,490,000 General Obligatlon Note to S&T Bank dated September 22, 2008 for 2,460,263

an unsecured lean for the Flexnet meter syslem Inslallation project,
Repayable at $18,834 monthly wilh a current Interest rate of 4.27%
and a maturily date of September 22, 2023, The Sewer Fund I3
responsible for 43% of the debt, the Walter Fund Is responsible for
43% of the debt and the General Fund Is responsible for 14% of the
debt.

¥ 126,010 General Obllgation Note Issued to Pennsylvania Infrastructure Invest- $ 38,072
ment Authorily Aprll 22, 1997, slreet construclion loan, repayable
monthly at $728 with 1.00 percent Interest until May 1, 2002, and
$739 wilh 1.28 percent interest through May 1, 2013 maturity.

753,150 Guaranteed Revenue Note to Pennsylvania Infrasiruciure Invesiment 201,862
Authority, April 22, 1997 for sewage treatment plant [Improvements,
principal reduced to $654,937 by Confirmation and Raliftcation
Agresment of May 4, 2002, repayable monthly at $3,748 lhrough
May 1, 2002 wilh one percent interest and at $3,819 monihly with
1.28 percent Interest from June 1, 2002 through June 1, 2013 and a
$1,607 payment on July 1, 2013,
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Note 7 —Debt (Continued)

Long-Term Debt (Continued)

Amount of
Orlginal Issue
3,300,000

100,000

182,207

434,723

$ 1,728,413

General Obligation Note to S&T Bank dated December 23, 2008 to
satisfy the remaining balance of lhe Guaranteed Water Revenue
Bond lo United States Deparlment of Agriculture, Rural Economic
and Communily Development Service refating to the upgrade of the
waler dlslribution center, Secured by recelpts and revenues from |ls
waler system. Repayable at $17,598 monthly wilh interest currently
al 4.04% and a maturity date of December 23, 2033,

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, Emergency Management Agency,
June 21, 2002 loan for partial cost of fire apparatus, repayable in
monthly Installments of $644 with 2 percent interest for fifleen years
from August 1, 2002,

Guaranleed Revenus Note issued to the Pennsylvanla Infrastructure

Investiment Authority, Oclober 3, 2002 to flnance sewer system
improvements, funds of $9,110 were not advanced, Interest through
January 31, 2008 was 1.0 percent, and monthly payments are $841,
al February 1, 2008, Interest increased to 1.269 percent and monthly
payments are $858 through December 1, 2022,

Guaranteed Revenue Note Issued to the Pennsylvania Infrastructure
Invesiment Authorily, July 12, 2006 to finance waler supply system
construction and replacement {Backwash Tank Project), interest at
1.35 percent during sIx monlhs construction and the first sixly months
of amortizatlon and 2.622 percent during the remaining one hundred
months of the loan lerm, Inlerest only payments through January 1,
2007, $2,146 due monthly from February 1, 2007 through January 1,
2012 and $2,340 per month is payable from February 1, 2012 until
March 1, 2026 malurily. Loan advances of $119,607 were made In
2008,

General Obligallon Note' lo S&T Bank dated September 28, 2007 for
an unsecured loan lo sallsfy the remaining balance of the
Washington County Authorily Capital Funding Revenue Bonds
relaling to prior year water and wastewater projects. Repayable at

$11,389 monthiy with interest of 4.91 percent through malurity date

of Seplember 28, 2027. The Sewer Fund Is responslble for 65% of
the debt with the Water fund being responsible for the remalning 35%
of debt.
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Note 7 —Debt (Conlinued)

Long-Term Debt {Continued)

Amounl of
Original Issue
$ 1,484,050

Balance
Quistanding

Guaranleed Revenue Note lo Pennsylvania Infrastruclure Invesiment $ 1,350,143
Authority (Pennvest) for a loan to partially finance a sewer system

construction project, daled August 17, 2006 simultaneous with a

grant from Pennvest of $1,642,241 for the projecl. Interest is 1.252

percent durlng the inltial sixty six months which consists of

constructlon time and the first flve years of amorlizatlon, 2.416

percent during the remalning one hundred elghty months. Interest

only i5 payable untl February 1, 2007, $6,993 Is due monthly

beginning March 1, 2007 and ending February 1, 2012 and from

March 1, 2012 through February 1, 2027 malurlty $7,603 Is payable

monthly. Loan advances tolallng $651,297 were made In 2008,

Total Long-Term Debt Outstanding $ 9,663,164

The aggregate annual debt service requirements applicable to the City's bonded debl and notes
payable Is summarized:

Year

Principal Interest Total

2009 $ 413,634 $ 347,313 $ 760,947
2010 427,213 333,734 760,947
2011 436,159 319,639 755,798
2012 441,855 319,356 761,211
2013 430,255 306,855 736,110
2014-2018 2,252,565 1,275,566 3,528,131
2019-2023 2,636,406 786,148 3,422,653
2024-2028 1,672,633 339,681 1,912,314
2039-2033 962,432 103,469 1,065,901
$ 9,663,161 $ 4,130,761 $13,693.912

Note 8 - Non-Uniformed Employees' Pension Plan

Plan Description

The Non-Uniformed Employees’ Penslon Plan Is a single-employer deflned benefit pension plan.
The plan participates in the Pennsylvania Municlpal Retlrement System (PMRS), which Is an agent
multiple-employer public employee retirement system Lhat acts as a common investment and
adminlstrative agent for participaling munlcipal pension plans. PMRS Issues a separate
Comprehensive Annual Financlal Report (CAFR). A copy of the CAFR may be obtained by
contacting the PMRS accounting offlce. The plan provides retirement, disabillity, and death benefits
to plan membars and their beneflglaries, Vesting occurs for permanent employees after twelve
years of credited service.
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Note 8 — Non-Uniformed Employses' Pension Plan (Continued)

Membership
Membership of the plan consisted of the following at December 31, 2008:

()

Retired Members and Bensficiaries 3

Terminated plan members entltled to but not yet
racelving benefits

Active Members

Total Membership

RIE~

Funding Policy
Members are required to contribute 3.6% of gross pay. Additionally, the City must provide annual
conlributions sufficient to satisfy the actuarially determined contribution requirements.

Note 9 — Police Pension Plan

Plan Description

The Police Penslon Plan is a single-employer defined benefit penslon plan established by the Cily
lo provide retirement, disability, and death benefits to plan members and thelr beneficlaries. All full-
time members of the palice force join the plan upon hire. The Cily has delegated to Principal Life
Insurance Company the authorlty to manage certain plan assets. Princlpal Life Insurance
Company issues separate financlal statements of the Police Pension Plan. The Police Pension
Plan flnanclal stalements can be obtained by contacting Princlpal Life Insurance Company.

Membership
Membership of the plan conslsted of the following at January 1, 2007, the date of the latest
acluarial valuation:

Retired Members and Beneficiaries 10

Terminated plan members entitled to but not yet
raceiving benefits

Active Members

Total Membership

IS ~

Funding Pollcy

Members are requirad to contribute 3% of gross pay plus a $5 per month police Increment to the
plan. Addllionally, the City must provide annual contributions sufficient o satisfy the acluarially
determined contribution requirements. ‘
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Note 10 — Commitments and Contingencies

During 2002, the City entered into a consent order and agreement with the Pennsylvania
Depariment of Environmental Protection (DEP) as a result of a bypass violatlon at the Cily's
sewage tréatment plant. Under the consent order and agreement, the City agreed to consiruct flow
equallzation facllities, which was completed in a prior year, and perform sewage collection
diagnostic and rehabllitative work on the sewage collection system. Funding for the diagnostic and
rehabilitative work on the sewage colleclion system Is being financed through an interim loan, with
permanent financing through PENNVEST, which is discussed in Note 7.

During 2004, the Clty entered into a consent order and agreement with the DEP in connection wilh
wetlands vlolations within the Beaver Meadow Industrial Park, As a result, the City was to construct
and adequately monitor replacement wetlands at the DuBois Wellands Mitigatlon Slte. The
construclion of the replacement wetlands was completed during a prlor year, and annual
performance monitoring reports are to be completed through 2007. if the City fails to comply with
the provisions of the consent order and agreement, a $1,000 civll penalty may be assessed each
month the City is noncompliant,

During 2008, the City commenced the Flexnet water meter system installation project. The total
cost of the project Is estimated at $2,495,000, funded through & loan of $2,490,000 (discussed In
Note 7) and City operating funds of $5,000. Through December 31, 2008, $1,900,000 has been
paid on the project. The project Is expecled to be completed during 2009.

Note 11 — Litigation

The City, in the normal course of ils activitles, is involved in varlous claims and liligation. The
City currently has claims and lawsults pending, which could ultimately result in liability for the
City over the next few years. The amount of these claims cannot be reasonably estimated at
this time and management estimates that any claims not covered by Insurance resulting from
such litigatlon would not materially affect the financial statements of the City.

Note 12 — Granls

The City has recsived federal and state grants for specific purposes that are subject to review
and audit by the grantor agencies or thelr designee. These audits could lead to a request for
reimbursement to the grantor agency for expenditures disallowed under terms of the grant.
Based on prior experiencs, the City Council belleves such disallowances, If any, will be
Immaterial.
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CITY OF DUBQIS, PENNSYLVANIA

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

NON-UNIFORMED EMPLOYEES' PENSION PLAN

For the Year Ended December 31, 2008

Schedule of Funding Progress
(a) {b) {c) (d) {e) {n

Acluarlal UAAL as a
Actuarial Acluarial Accrued Unfunded Annual Percentage of
Valuation Value of Liability (AAL)  AAL (UAAL)  Funded Ralio Covered Covered Payroll
Date Assets = —Entry Age {b) - {(a} {a)+(b) Payroll (c)+(e)
111101 $ 6,068,680 $ 5,979,204 $ (89,476) 101.50% $ 1,404,821 -6.37%
111103 6,807,166 6,345,728 (461,438) 107.27% 1,630,185 -30.16%
1/4/05 7,369,919 7,003,697 {366,222) 105.23% 1,496,806 -24.47%
efaliird 7,865,596 7,680,127 (175,469) 102.28% 1,616,592 -10.85%

Schedule of Employer Contributions

Annual Actuarial

Required Valuation Date Percentage
Year Contributlon for Contributlons Contribuled
1997 § 48,852 1995 100%
1998 48,070 1985 100%
1999 161,796 1997 100%
2000 - 143,139 1997 100%
2001 129,772 1999 100%
2002 131,465 1999 100%
2003 85,652 2001 100%
2004 50,850 2001 100%
2005 47,605 2003 100%
20086 46,676 2003 100%
2007 67,308 2005 100%
2008 74,669 2005 100%

Notes to the Redquired Schedules

The information presented in the required supplementary schedules was determined as parl of the
actuarlal valuations at the dates Indicated. Additlonal information as of the latest actuarial valuation follows:

Valuatlon Date January 1, 2007
Actuarlal Cost Method Entry Age Normal
Asset Valuation Method Falr Value
Amorllzation Method Level Dollar Closed
Remaining Amortization Period 14.33 Years
Acluarial Assumpllons:

Invesiment Rate of Return 6.00%

Prajected Salary Increases 5.20%
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(a)

CITY OF DUBOIS, PENNSYLVANIA

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

POLICE PENSION PLAN

For the Year Ended December 31, 2008

Schedule of Funding Progress

{b)

{c)

(d)

(o)

(N

Acluarial UAAL asa
Acluarlal Acluarial Accrued Unfunded Annual Percentage of
Valuallon Value of Liabllity (AAL)  AAL {(UAAL)  Funded Ralio Covered Covared Payroll
Dale Assets —Eniry Age {b) - (a) {a)+(b} Payroll (c)+{e)
411104 $ 2,869,327 $ 3,132,796 $ 263,469 92% $ 482477 55%
171/03 3,742,309 3,841,530 99,131 97% 483,774 20%
111108 4,280,073 4,574,354 294,281 94% 640,559 46%
11107 5,037,128 5,396,440 369,312 93% 734,767 49%
11109 5,625,616 6,067,630 416,016 93% 763,059 54%
Schedule of Employer Contributions
Annual
Required Employer Percentage

Year Conltributlon Contribullons Conlributed

2001 $ 75443 $ 75443 100%

2002 64,923 64,923 100%

2003 109,900 117,357 107%

2004 129,468 140,620 109%

2005 142,823 153,882 108%

2006 219,483 221,133 101%

2007 230,582 230,582 100%

2008 222,937 222,937 100%

Notes to the Required Schedules

The information presented In the required supplementary schedules was determined as part of the
acluarial valuations at the dates indicated. Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation follows:

Valuatlon Date

Acluarial Cost Method

Asset Valuatlon Method:
FPI Grouped Accounts

Amortization Method

Actuarial Assumptions:
Investment Rate of Relurn
Projected Salary Increases
Cost-of-Living Increase

January 1, 2009
Entry Age Normal

Market Value Is adjusted by spreading the expected value
minus the actual value over four years. Actuarial value
equals market value In the first year.

Level Dollar Closed

6.75%
4.50%
6.666% or 7.500% {(based on retirement date)
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CITY OF DUBOIS, PENNSYLVANIA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
CASH BASIS

GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended December 31, 2008

Vartance with
Budgeled Amounts Final Budget
Orlginal Final Actual Over (Under)
Roevenues:
Taxes $ 2,195323 §$ 2,196323 % 2,248,064 § 52,71
Intergovarnmental 77,280 77,280 282,408 206,126
Charges for services 363,406 363,406 368,218 4,812
Licenses and permits 74,070 74,070 76,378 2,308
Fines and forfeilures 64,647 64,647 70,347 5,700
Inlerest and rentals 186,177 185,177 63,094 {121,283)
Miscellaneous 130,000 130,000 95,976 (34,024)
Total Revenues 3,080,903 3,089,903 3,205,273 115,370
Expendltures:
Current:
General government 628,094 628,094 641,797 80,207
Public safaly 1,618,425 1,618,426 1,530,614 87,611
Public works 780,733 769,733 772,950 16,783
Communlly and economtc developmenl 5,000 5,000 - 5,000
Culture and recreation 201,671 201,671 244,614 (42,843)
Debl sarvice:
Principal 177.357 177,367 195,094 (17,737)
Interest 9,373 9,373 14,838 (5,465)
Capltal oullay 36,720 . 36,720 438,615 {401,895)
Other 142,825 142,825 339,039 {196,214)
Tolal Expendilures 3,609,190 3,609,198 4,077,481 {468,263)
Exceoss (Dellelency) of
Revanues over Expendilures (619,295) (619,295) (872,188) {352,893)
Other Flnancing Sources (Uses):
Capllal assels sales 83,200 83,200 28,8656 (54,345)
Proceads Irom borrowings 348,600 348,600
Transfera In 436,104 436,104 436,104 -
Transfers oul - - (164,954) {154,954)
Tolal Other Finencing Sources {Uses) 510,304 519,304 658,606 139,301
Excess (Deflclency) of Revenues
and Other Sources Ovar
Expendituras and Other Uses 9 0 (213,583) {213,592)
Fund Batance-Beglnning (78,134) {78,134) (76,134)
Fund Balance-Ending $ {76,126) $ (78,126) § {(201,717)  $ {213,592)

See accompanying notes to budgetary comparison schedules,
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CITY OF DUBOIS, PENNSYLVANIA

NOTES TO BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES

December 31, 2008

Note 1 — Budgstary Information

The City has adopted the following procedures In establishing the budgetary data reflected In the
basic financial stalements:

(1) At the last stated meeting In November In each year, the Cily Manager shall present to
Council for first reading a proposed budget ordinance for all funds showing the estimated
receipts, expendilures, and liabllities for the ensuing year with the balance of unexpended
appropriations and all other Information of value as a basls for fixing the levy and lax rate
for the nex! fiscal year, Councll shall, upon passing the proposed budget ordinance on first
readlng, fix a date for adoption thereof, which shall be not later than December 31 of such
year.

(2) The Cily Clerk shall make the proposed budget ordinance avallable for public inspection
and publish a nolice to that effect once In at least one newspaper, Such notice shall state
the date fixed by Councll for adoption of the proposed budget ordinance and such notice
shall be published at least twenty days prior to the fime fixed by Council for adoption of the
proposed budget ordinance. The proposed budget ordinance shall be avallable for public
inspection at the City Clerk's office for at least ten days after the newspaper notice Is
published.

(3) Councll shall, after making such changes and modiflcations therein as appear proper,
adopt the budget and any appropriation measures required to put it into effect upon the
date fixed for adoption thereof. If, upon any revision of the budget, estimated expenditures
are increased more than ten percent In the aggregate or more than twenty five percent in
any Individual item over the proposed budget, such budget shall not be adopted with any
such Increases therein unless the same be again made avallable for public inspection and
for protest of such Increases for a period of at least ten days after notice to that effect is
published,

(4) During the month of January following any municipal election, Council may amend the
budget and the levy and tax rate to conform to the amended budget ordinance. The
procedures for adopting an amended budget shall be In accordance with the above, except
that the amended budget ordinance must be adopted on or before February 15.

Note 2 — Other Informatlon

GASB Statement No. 34 requires a budgetary comparison schedule to be presented for the
General Fund and for each major special revenue fund that has a legally adopted annual
budget. The City did not adopt budgets for the Brewery Grant, Jonson Controls, and Capital
Reserve Funds {major special revenue funds) and, therefore, presentation of budgetary
comparison information Is not required.
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CITY OF DUBOIS, PENNSYLVANIA

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
CASH BASIS

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Dacember 31, 2008

Speclal Revenus Funds

Communily
Development Communily Farmers Foolbridge Growing
Block Grant Revitaltizallon EDA QGrant Nallonal Granl Greeners Granl
ASSETS
Cash and cagh Invesimenis $ 25 % 8172 8 8646 § 765,608 % 60,311 $§ 227.204
Interfund recelvables - - - - - -
Total Assels $ 25 % 8172 % 8646 % 75506 § 50,311 $ 227,204
—— —§ ———§ — N — —— _§ &% ]
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabllitles:
Payroll laxes payable $ - § - § - % - 8 - 8 -
Interfund payables 926 623 - - -
Total Llabllities 926 623 - - -
Fund Balances: - .
Unreserved {900) 7,649 8.648 75,608 60,311 227,204
Tolal Llabllltles and Fund Balances $ 25 § 8172 § 8648 $ 76,606 § 60,311 § 227,204
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Special Revenue Funds

Tolal Other

Huoalth Liquld Fusls Urben Governmental
Insurance Land Sele Tax PEMA Grant Publlc Sefely Devalopment Funds

$ 33798 % 63814 § 47,405 § 2416 § 6012 % 34074 $ 667,282
- - - - - 50,072 50,072
$ 33,708 § 03,814 $ 47,4056 & 2415 % 5912 % 84,146 $ 607,354
$ - % - 3 - 8 - 5 - % - % -
- - - - - 1,448
- - - - - - 1,448
33,798 63,814 47,405 2,416 6,912 84,146 805,906
$ 33,798 % 63,814 § 47,406 § 2416 § 65812 § 84,148 § 607,354




CITY OF DUBQIS, PENNSYLVANIA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
CASH BASIS

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

For the Year Ended Decembar 31, 2008

Speclal Revenue Funds

Community
Davelopmenl Community Farmers
Block Granl Rovilalizallon EDA Grant Nallonal

Footbridge
Grant

Growing
Greanar Grani

Revenues:

Taxes $ - 3 - 3 - % - $

Intergovernmenial 604,590 91,632 - -
Charges for services - - - .
Licenses and permils - - - -
Fines and florfellures - - - -
Interest and renlals ‘ T a9 815 508
Miscellaneous - 76,000

70,950

290

$ -
250,000

Tolal Revenues 504,690 91,671 616 76,508

71,240

250,000

Expenditures:
Currenl:
General governmen! - - . -
Public saletly - - - .
Public works - - -
Communily and economlc development 505,400 82,482 130,250 -
Cullure and recreatlon - - . -
Dabl service: ’
Principal - - -
Interest - - - -
Capltal oultay - . . -
Other

Tolal Expandiivies 606,400 82,482 130,260 -

20,929

22,798

Excess (Deficlency) of
Revenues Qver Expendilures {818) 9,189 {129,635) 75,608

50,311

227,204

Other Fnancing Sources (Uses):
Capital assels sales - - .
Transfers In - 2,973 - -
Transfers out - - - .

Total Other Flrancing Sourcaes (Uses) . - 2,973 - -

Excess (Daficiency) of Revenuas
and Other Sources Over
Expendliures and Olher Uses {818) 12,162 {129,6356) 75,608

50,311

227,204

Fund Balances-Beginning {82) {4,513} 138,201

.

Fund Balancas-Ending $ {800} § 7649 § 8646 § 75508 _$ 60,311
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Speclal Revenue Funds

Tolal Other
Health Liquid Fuels Urban Govarnmanlal
Insuranca Land Sale Jex PEMA Granl Public Safaly _ Davelopment Funds

3 - % - % - § - $ - % - 3 -
- - 199,297 - - 10,000 1,126,569

167 2,306 1,338 657 23 2,144 7,475

- - - - - - 75,000

157 2,308 200,736 57 23 12,144 1,208,044

32,601 - - - - - 32,681

- - - - 4,132 - T 4432

25,678 - 202,430 - - - 228,116

- - - - - 111,060 872,415

58,360 - 202,438 - 4,132 111,050 1,137,844
(68,202) 2,306 {1,703) 57 {4.109) {90,906) 71,200
92,000 . - - - - 94,973
] . R . - {2,973 {2,973)

92,000 . - - - (2,973 92,000
33,798 2,306 (1,703) b7 (4,109) {101,879) 163,200
61,508 49,108 2,358 10,021 186,026 442,708

$ 33798 % 63814 _§ 47406 _§ 24156 % 5912 _§ 84,146 _$ 606,906




CITY OF DUBOIS, PENNSYLVANIA

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

For The Year Ended December 31, 2008

Pass-Through Faderal
Federal Grantor Agency/ Granler CFDA
Program Title (If Applicable) Number Granl Title/Number
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URPAN DEVELOPM ENT
Communily Developmenl Block Grant/Siate’s Program PA DCED 14.228 C000014671
Comimunily Davelopment Block Grant/State’s Program PA DCED 14.228 C000020787
Communily Developmenl Block Grant/Slate’s Program PA DCED 14.228 C000029559
Communily Development Black Granl/Slate’s Program PA DCED 14.228 C00003413¢9
Tolal Communily Developmen! Block Grant/Slate’s Program
Emergency Sheller Granls Program PADCED 14.234 C000020978
HOME Investmeni Partnerships Program PA DCED 14.230 000007691
HOME Invesimen! Partnershlps Program PADCED 14.239 C000016657
HOME Investmenl Parinerships Program PA DCED 14.239 C000022631
Tolal HOME Invasiment Parlnerships Program
Tolal U.S. Departmsnt of Housing and Urban Developmsnt
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE
Bullstproof Vesl Partnershlp Program N/A 16.607 Bullatprool Vest Parlnership Program

Tolal Expendllures of Federal Awards

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of this statement.
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Cash Balance Faderal Federal Cash Balence

1112008 Recelpls Expendllures Other 1213172008
- 4,628 4,626 -
(108} 13,830 13,733 .
- 206,798 296,798 -

. 126,423 126,348 (926)

{108) 440,506 441,406 {926)
- 30,664 30,664 -
- 2,952 2,052 -
- 30,487 30,487 .
- 33,438 33,439 -

(108) 504,589 605,408 (9256)
- 5,801 6,891 -

$ {106) $ 610480 § . 511,299 $ (925}




CITY OF DUBOIS, PENNSYLVANIA

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2008

Note 1 — Baslis of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expendltures of federal awards Includes the federal grant activity of
the Cily of DuBois, Pennsylvania and is presented on the accrual basis of accounting. The
informalion In this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-
133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Therefore, some
amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the
preparation of, the primary government financial statements.
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DuBoIs, PA 15801-1084 Ripeway, PA 15853-0157
P.O. Box 1084 P.O. Box 157

SHARKEY PicciriLLo KEEN & HaNzELy, LLP

CERTIFIED PUBLIC AGCQUNTANTYS
DuBois, Pennsyivanta 15801

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE
AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the City Councll
City of DuBois, Pennsylvania
DuBols, Pennsylvania

We have audited the financlal statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
actlvilles, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of DuBois,
Pennsylvania, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2008, which collectively comprise the
baslc financial statements of the Clty of DuBols, Pennsylvania’s primary government and have
Issued our report thereon dated December 11, 2009. The report on the aggregate remaining fund
Informatlon was qualifled because of the effects of omitting blended component unlts. The report
on the aggregate discretely presented component units was adverse because the primary
government financlial statements do not include financial data for the City's legally separate
component units. We conducted our audit In accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United Stales of America and the slandards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States. ~

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we consldered the City of DuBois, Pennsylvanla’s Internal
control over flnancial reporting as a basls for designing our audiling procedurss for the purpose
of expressing our opinions on the primary government financlal statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of DuBois, Pennsylvania's
internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an oplnion on the
effectiveness of lhe Cily of DuBols, Pennsylvanla's Internal control over financial reporting.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding
paragraph and would not necessarlly Identify all deficlencies In Internal control over financial
reporling that might be signiflcant deficiencles or material weaknesses. However, as discussed
below, we idenlified a deficlency in internal control that we consider {o be a significant
dsficlency.
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A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing thelr assigned functlons, to
prevent or detect misstatements on a tlmely basls. A significant deficiency Is a control
deficiency, or combinatlon of conirol deficlencies, that adversely affects the Cily of DuBols,
Pennsylvanla's abllity to inillate, authorize, record, process, or report financial data reliably in
accordance with the cash receipts and disbursements basis of accounting, which is a
comprehensive basis of accounting other than accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of Amaerica, such that there is more than a remote likelihood that a misstaternent
of the Cily of DuBois, Pennsylvanla's primary government financial statements that is more than
Inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the City of DuBois, Pennsylvania's internal
control. We consider the deficlency described in the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs, listed as llem 08-01, to be a significant deficlency In internal control over
financial reporling.

A material weakness is a slgnificant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencles, ihat
results in more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the primary government
financial statements will not be prevented or detected by the City of DuBols, Pennsylvania’s
Internal control.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose
described in the first paragraph of thls section and would not necessarlly identify all deficiencies
in internal control that might be significant deficlencles and, accordingly, would not necessarlly
disclose all signlficant deflclencies that are also considered to be material weaknesses.
However, we consider the significant deficiency above, item 08-01, to be a material weakness.

Compliance and Olher Matters

As part of oblaining reasonable assurance about whether the Cily of DuBols, Pennsylvania’s
primary government financlal statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests
of Its compliance with certaln provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements,
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of
financlal statement amounts. However, providing an oplnion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed ne instances of noncompllance or other malters that
are requlred to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

The Cily of DuBois, Pennsylvania's response to the finding identifled in our audit is described in
the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. We did not audit the City of
DuBols, Pennsylvania's response and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

This report Is intended solely for the Iinformation and use of management, Clty Council, and

federal awarding agencies and pass-through entittes and s not intended lo be and should not
be used by anyone other than these specified partles.

Bhankuglhccinitly Mt Marrply, L0 P
SHARKEY PICCIRILLO KEEN & HANZELY, LLP
December 11, 2009
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DuBois, PA 15801-1084 RiDGWAY, PA 15853-0157
P.O. Box 1084 P.0. Box 157

SHARKEY PicciriLLo KEEN & HaNzeLy, LLP

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

DuBols, Pennsylvania 15801

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR
PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH
OMB CIRCULAR A-133

To the City Council
City of DuBois, Pennsylvanla
DuBols, Pennsylvania

Compliance

We have audited the compllance of the City of DuBois, Pennsylvania, with the types of
compllance requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB)
Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that are applicable to each of its major federal
programs for the year ended December 31, 2008. The City of DuBols, Pennsylvania's maljor
federal programs are Identified in the summary of auditors’ results section of the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws,
regulailons, contracts, and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is the
responsibllity of the City of DuBois, Pennsyivania's management. Our responsibllity is to
express an opinion on the City of DuBois, Pennsylvanla’s compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance In accordance with auditing standards generally
accepled in the Unlted States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained
in Government Auditing Standards, issuad by the Comptroller General of the United States; and
OMB Circular A-133, Audlts of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations: Those
standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit o obtain
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and materlal effect on a major federal program
occurred. An audlt Includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City of DuBois,
Pennsylvania’s compliance wlith those requirements and performing such other procedures as
we considered necessary In the circumstances. We belleve that our audit provides a reasonable
basls for our opinion. Our audlt does not provide a legal determination on the City of DuBois,
Pennsylvania's compllance with those requirements.

In our oplnlon, the City of DuBois, Pennsylvania complied, In all materiai respects, with the

requirements referred 1o above that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the
year ended December 31, 2008,
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Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of the City of DuBois, Pennsylvanla is responsible for establishing and
malntaining effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws, regulatlons,
contracts, and grants applicable to federal programs. In planning and performing our audit, we
considered the Cily of DuBols, Pennsylvania's internal control over compliance with the
requirements that could have a direct and materlal effect on a major federal program In order to
determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on lhe effectiveness of internal control over
compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effecliveness of the City of
DuBois, Pennsylvania’s internal control over compllance.

A conirol deficlency in an entity's internal control over compliance exists when the design or
operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of
performing thelr assigned functions, to prevent or detect noncompllance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
control deflciency, or combination of control deficlencles, that adversely affects the entily's
abllity to administer a federal program such that there Is more than a remote likelihood that
noncompliance with a type of compllance requirement of a federal program that Is more than
inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the entity's Internal control.

A malerial weakness Is a slgnificant deficlency, or combination of significant deflciencies, that
results in more than a remote llkelihood that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented or detacled by the entity’s internal
control,

Our consideration of internal conlrol over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the flrst paragraph of thls section and would not necessarily Identify all deficiencles in internal
control that might be significant deficiencles or material weaknesses, We did not identify any
deficlencles In internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as
defined above.

This report Is intended solely for the informatlon and use of management, City Councll, others

within the entity, and federal awarding agencles and pass-through entlties and Is not Intended to
be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Spankeeg Hlecinillo Kens fumpdy, ¢ 2

SHARKEY PICCIRILLO KEEN & HANZELY, LLP
December 11, 2009
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CITY OF DUBOIS, PENNSYLVANIA

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2008

SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS

1.

The auditors’ report expresses an unqualifled opinion on the governmental aclivities,
the business-lype activitles, each major fund, and the aggregate remalining fund
Information for the primary government financlal statements of the City of DuBolis,
Pennsylvanla in conformity with the cash recelpts and disbursements basis of
accounting. The auditors' reporl expresses an adverse opinion on the aggregate
discretely presented component units because the primary government financial
statements do nol Include financial data for the Cily's legally separate component
units.

One significant deficlency related to the audit of the primary government financial
statements is reported In the Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
and on Compllance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards. The condition is
reported as a materlal weakness.

No instances of noncompliance material to the primary government financlal
statements of the City of DuBois, Pennsylvania were disclosed during the audit.

No contro! deflciencles relating to the audit of the major federal award programs are
reporled In the Report on Compliance with Requirements Applicable to Each Major
Program and Internal Control Over Compllance In Accordance with OMB Circular A-
133.

The auditors’ report on compliance for the major federal award programs for the Cily
of DuBois, Pennsylvanla expresses an unqualified opinlon on all major federal
programs.

There are no audit findings that are required to be reported In accordance with
Section 510(a) of OMB Circular A-133.

The programs tested as major federal programs included:

Program . CFDA NO.
Communlity Development Block Grants/State's Program 14.228

The thrashold for distingulshing Types A and B programs was $300,000.

The Clty of DuBols, Pennsylvania was determined not to be a low-risk auditee.
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CITY OF DUBOIS, PENNSYLVANIA

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2008

FINDINGS — IN'I"ERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCIES

MATERIAL WEAKNESS:

08-1,

Financial Reporting Duties of the City

Statement of Condition

The City's personnel responsible for the accounting and reporting functions of the
Clty do nol currently possess an appropriate level of technical knowledge and
experlence of generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and Government
Accounting Slandards Board's (GASB) pronouncements and certaln Financial
Accounting Slandards Board's (FASB) pronouncements to prepare the City's
financlal statements, Including note disclosures, In accordance with the reporting
requirements of those principles and pronouncements. GAAP s the standard
framework of guidelines for financial accounting used in the preparation of financial
statements and note disclosures, while GASB and FASB are the accepted standard-
setting bodies for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting
principles used by state and local governments.

Criteria
Internal control over financial reporting includes controls over financial statement

preparation, which would prevent or detect a misstatement in the flnancial
statements, including note disclosures.

Effect of Condition

This condition increases the risk of possible misstatements In the financlal
statements.

Recommendation

An Ideal internal control system over flnancial reporting would include an indlvidual
within an organization that would have technical knowledge and experlence of the
reporling requirements of generally accepted accounting principles and the
Government Accounting Standards Board.

Response

The City Council and management are aware of the exlstence of the material
weakness and agree that an Ideal Internal conirol system over financial reporting
would Include an Individual described In the recommendation, which would reduce
the risk of possible misstatements in the financlal statements. The personnel
responsible for the accounting and reporting functlons of the City currently possess
sultable skill, knowledge, and expsrience to perform the dally accounting functions of
the City. Therefore, the City Council and management have made a consclous
declslon to accept the degree of risk resuiting from the materlal weakness, as the
benefit of the reduced risk does not justify the addlitlonal costs necessary to reduce
this risk.
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CITY OF DUBOIS, PENNSYLVANIA

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2008

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS — MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDIT

Nons.
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DuBois, PA 15801 RiDGwaAY, PA 15853
991 Beaver Drive P.O. Box 1567

SHARKEY PicciRILLO KEEN & HANZELY, LLP

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

DuBois, Pennsylvania 15801

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the City Council
City of DuBols, Pennsylvania
DuBois, Pennsylvania

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund Information of the City
of DuBols, Pennsylvania, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2009, which collectively
comprise the basic financial statements of the City's primary government as fisted in the table of
contents, These financial statements are the responsibility of the City of DuBols, Pennsyivania's

management. Our responsibility Is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our
audit. _

We conducted our audit in accordance with audiling standards generally accepted In the United
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement,
An audlt includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and the
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presenta\ution. We belleve that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

As discussed in Note 2, the City of DuBols, Pennsylvania, prepares its financial statements on the
basis of cash receipts and dishursements, which is a comprehensive basis of accounting other
than accounting principles generally accepted in the Unlted States of America.

The financial statements do not include financial data for the City's legally separate component
units. Accounting principles generally accepted in the Unlted States of America require the financial
data for those component units to be reported with the finandial dala of the City's primary
government uniess the City also issues financlal statements for the financial reporting entity that
Include the financial data for its component units. The City has not issued such reporting entity
financlal statements. The amount by which this depariure would affect the assets, liabililles, net
assets, revenues, and expenses of the aggregate discretely presented component units is not
reasonably determinable.

In our opinion, because of the omission of the discretely presented component units, as discussed
above, the financial statements referred to above do not present fairly, the cash basis financlal
position of the aggregate discretely presented component units of the City of DuBois,
Pennsylvanla, as of December 31, 2009, or the changes In cash basis financial position thereof for
the year then ended in conformity with the basis of accounting described in Note 2.

In addition, in our opinfon, except for the effects of omitting blended component unlts, the financial
statements referred to above present fairly, In all materlal respects, the cash basis financial posltion
of the aggregate remaining fund Information for the City of DuBols, Pennsylvania, as of December
31, 2009, and the changes in cash basis financlal position thereof for the year then ended in
canformity with the basis of accounting described In Note 2.
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Further, In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the respeclive cash basis financial posillon of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, and each major fund of the City of DuBols, Pennsylvania, as of December 31, 2009,
and the respectlve changes in cash basls financial position thereof for the year then ended In
conformity with the basis of accounting described in Note 2,

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the historical
penslon information and budgetary comparison information on pages 30 through 33 be presented
to supplement the basic financial statements. Such Information, although not a part of the baslic
financial statements, Is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers
it to be an essentlal part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an
appropriate operatlonal, economic, or historical context. We have applied certaln limited
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted In the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with
management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we
obtained during our audlt of the baslic financial statements. We do not express an opinlon or
provide any assurance on the information bacause the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinlon or provide any assurance.

Management has omitted the management's discussion and analysls that accounting principles
generally. accepted in the United States of America require to be presented to supplement the
baslc financlal statements. Such missing information, although not part of the baslc financial
statements, is required by the Gavernmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be
an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historic context. Our opinion on the basic financial statements Is not
affected by this missing information.

Our audit was conducted for the purpese of forming opinions on the financlal statements that
collectively comprise the Clty of DuBois, Pennsylvania’s primary government basic financial
statements. The combining nonmajor fund financial statements are presented for purposes of
addltional analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements. The combining nonmajor
fund financlal statements are the responslbility of management and were derived from and relate
directly to the underiying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements.
The information has. been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial
statements and certaln additional procedures, Including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underiying accounting and other records used to prepare the financlal
statements or to the financlal statements themselves, and other additional procedures In
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; In our

opinion, the informatlon is falrly stated in all matertai respects in relation to the primary government
financial statements as a whole.

MW/% eW Lo

SHARKEY PICEIRILLO KEEN & HANZELY, LLP
December 8, 2010 i




Gash
Internal balancas
Tolal Assets

Llabllltles:

Internal bafances
Total Liabilitles

Net Agsals:
Restiicted for:
Olher purposes
Unrestricted
Total Net Asssta

Total Liabilitles and Net Assets

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

CITY OF DUBOIS, PENNSYLVANIA

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

CASH BASIS

December 31, 2009

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Payroll taxes payeble

5

Primary Government

Governmental Businesas-type
Activilies Acllvitles Total

$ 4,074,387 % 3,601,060 $ 7,765,447
854,564 2,034 856,598
$ 4,028951 § 3603094 §$ 8,622,045
$ 11,640 § T 1 11,640
2,034 854,664 056,598
13,674 7 854,664 868,238
2,857,797 - 2,857,797
2,057,480 2,830,630 4,896,010
4,916,277 2,838,530 7,753,807
$ 4,028061 $ 3,603,084 $ 8,622,046




CITY OF DUBOIS, PENNSYLVANIA

For the Year Ended Dacember 31, 2009

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

CASH BASIS

Program Reveniias

Net (Expenss) Revenue and
Changes in Net Assets

Primary Govarnment

Operaling Caplial
Charges for Granls and Grantsand  Governmental  Business-
Funcllons/Programs Expenses Services GContribulions  Conlribulions Aclivities lype Aclivilles Tolal
Primary Government:
Governmental aclivillas:
General govaernment $ 896979 § 119592 § - 3 - § (777387) % - & (777.387)
Public safely 1,960,929 209,719 - - {1,661,210) - (1,661,210)
Publlc works 1,529,641 - - - (1,526,541) - (1,528,541)
Community and economic
development 872,980 386,200 365,342 429,239 308,493 - 308,403
Culture and recreation 267,615 45,110 - - (212,405) - {212,405)
Principal on long-tarm debt 64,668 - - - {64,658) - (64,668)
Interest on long-term debl 20,813 - - - (20,813) - (20,813)
Total govarnmental aclivilies 5,603,323 851,321 365,242 429,239 {3,967 421) - (3,957 421)
Business-lype aclivilies;
Sewer 3,680,158 2,607,922 - - - (972,233} (972,233)
Waler 6,625,260 2,249,498 - - - {3,376,761) (3,375,761)
Tolal business-type activitles 9,205,415 4,857 421 - - - {4,347,894) (4,347,994)
Total Primary Governmant $ 14,808,736 § 6,708,742 $ 365342 $ 420,239 (3,057,421)  (4,347,994) {8,3065,415)
General Revenues;
Taxes;
Real estate 1,220,656 - 1,229,656
Resldence 20,087 - 20,087
Per caplta 20,076 - 20,076
Real eatate transfer 60,803 - 60,803
Eamed Income 610,728 - 618,726
Local services tax 338,657 - 338,667
Intergoveramental revenues 477,614 - 477,614
Proceeds from borrawings 814,000 7,645,000 8,459,000
Interast 196,332 5,765 202,087
Sales of capllal agseols 287,822 - 287,822
Miscallaneous 133,795 - 133,795
Tianslers 2,105,414 {2,195,414) -
Total General Revenues and Tranafers 6,392,982 5,455,341 11,848,323
Change In Net Agsets 2,435,561 1,107,347 3,642,008
Nel Assels - Beginning 2,478,716 1,731,183 4,210,899
Net Assets - Ending $ 4915277 § 2!838.530 $ 7!753!807

See accompanying notes to basic financlal statements,
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ASSETS

Cash and cash Invesimenls
Interfund receivables
Total Assets

CITY OF DUBOIS, PENNSYLVANIA

" BALANCE SHEET
CASH BASIS

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

December 31, 2009

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Llabliltles:
Payroll 1axes payable
Interfund payables
Tolal Liabllitles

Fund Balancss:
Unreserved, reported In:
General fund
Speclal revenue funds
Total Fund Balances

Total Llgbllitles and Fund Balances

Other Tolal
Capllal Pentz Run  Governmental Governmental

Goneral Reserve Bridges Funds Funds
$2230857 $ 464,820 § 814,001 $ 574,709 $ 4,074,387
192,268 1,021,852 - - 1,214,120
$ 2,423,126 $ 1476672 $ 814,001 $ 574,708 $ 6,288,607
$ 11840 3 - $ - $ - % 11640
364,005 - - 7,686 361,690
365,845 - - 7,585 373,230
2,057,480 - - - 2,057,480
- 1,476,672 814,001 567,124 2,857,797
2,057,480 1,476,672 814,001 567,124 4,915,277

$ 2423125 § 1,476672 $ 844,001

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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CITY OF DUBOIS, PENNSYLVANIA

~  STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
CASH BASIS

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2009

Other Total
Capital Pentz Run Governmental Governmental
General Reserve Bridges Funds Funds
Revenues:
Taxas $ 2288005 $ - $ - § - § 2,288,005
Intergovernmental 285,612 - - 986,683 1,272,195
Charges for services 695,892 - - - 695,892
Licenses and permits 75,352 - - - 75,352
Fines and lorfellures 80,077 - - - 80,077
Interast and rentals 184,968 9,294 1 4,686 198,849
Miscellansous 131,278 - - - 131,278
Total Revenues - 3,741,084 9,294 1 991,269 4,741,648
Expendliures:
Current;
General government 670,788 - - 23,226 694,014
Publlc safety 1,907,101 - - - 1,907,101
Publle works 805,919 - - 169,981 1,055,900
Community and economic development - - - 819,270 819,270
Culture and recreation 257 515 - - - 257,615
Dabt service;
Piinclpal 64,658 - - - 64,658
Inlerest 20,813 - - - 20,813
Capital cultay 588,865 - - - 680,856
Other 164,297 - - - 194,207
Total Expenditures 4,600,846 - - 1,002,477 5,603,323
Excess {Deficlency) of
Revenues over Expenditutes (859,762) 9,294 1 (11,208) (861,675}
Ciher Financing Sources {Uses): _
Capllal assals sales 287,822 - - - 267,822
Proceeda from botrowings 814,000 - - - 814,000
Transfara In 3,064,265 - 814,000 04,250 3,962,516
Transfers oul (947,128) (225,000) - (594,073) (1,767,101}
Total Olher Financing Sources (Usas) 3,208,969 (225,000) 814,000 {500,723) 3,297,236
Excass (Deflclency) of Revenues
and Other Sourcaes Ovar
Expendilures and Other Uses 2,349,197 {215,708) 814,001 {611,931) 2,435,561
Fund Balances-Baginning {201,717) 1,692,378 - 1,079,066 2,479,716
Fund Balancas-Ending $ 2057480 § 1476672 _$ 814001 g 267!124 g 4!916!277

See accompanying hotes to basic financial statements.
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CITY OF DUBOIS, PENNSYLVANIA

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

CASH BASIS

PROPRI|ETARY FUNDS

December 31, 2009

ASSETS

Current assels:
Cash
Interfund recelvables
Total current assels

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabillties:
Interfund payables
Total current liabilities

Total Liabllittes

Net assets;
Unrestricted

Total net assets

Total Liabilitles and Net Assets

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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Business-Type Actlvities - Enterprise Funds
Sewer Water Total

$ 608,007 $ 3083053 $ 3,691,060
14,634 - 14,634
622,641 3,083,053 3,706,694

§ 622641 § 3,083,063 _§ 3,705694

$ 390309 $§ 476865 $ 887,164

390,308 476,865 867,164
390,309 476,856 867,164
232,332 2,608,198 2,838,630
232,332 2,608,198 2,838,530

$ 622641 $ 3,083,063 $ 3,706,604



CITY OF DUBOIS, PENNSYLVANIA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

CASH BASIS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2009

Operaling Revenues:
Charges for services
Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses:
Public works
Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income
Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses):
Proceeds fromi borrowings
Interest income
Capital outlay
Debt service principal

Dabt service interest
Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)

Income Before Transfers

Transfers In
Transfers Qut

Change in Net Assets
Total Net Assets - Beginning

Total Net Assets - Ending

See accompariylng hotes to basic financlal statements.
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Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Sewer Water Total
$ 2607923 $ 2249498 $ 4,857.421
2,607,923 2,249,498 4,867,421
1,773,642 1,737,521 3,511,083
1,773,642 1,737,621 3,511,063
834,381 511,977 1,346,358
1,529,000 6,116,000 7,645,000
2,950 2,805 5,756
(1,423,568) (3,276,932) (4,700,500)
(207,166) (168,437) (376,602)
{175,881) {442,369) {618,2560)
{274,664) 2,231,067 1,956,403
569,717 2,743,044 3,302,761
296,412 371,176 667,688
{2,642 915) (320,087) {2,863,002)
{1,686,786) 2,794,133 1,107,347
1,919,118 (187,935) 1,731,183

$ 232332 $ 2608198 $ 2838,530




CITY OF DUBOIS, PENNSYLVANIA

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

CASH BASIS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2009

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Receipts from customers
Payments to suppllers
Payments to employees
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

.Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activilies:
Transfers in
Transfers out
(Increase) decrease In interfund receivables
Increase (decrease) In interfund payables
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Noncapital Financlng Actlvitles

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activitles:
Acquisition and construction of capltal assets
Proceeds from borrowings
Princlpal paid on debt
Interest pald
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capltal and Related
Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Interest .

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash

Cash:
Beginning

Ending

Sea accompanying notes to-basic financlal statements.
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Business-Type Activilies - Enterprise Funds

Sewer Water Total
$ 2607923 $ 2249498 §$ 4,857,421
(1,201,565) (1,168,366) (2,369,931)
{571,977) (569,165) {1,141,132)
834,381 511,977 1,346,358
206,412 371,176 667,588
(2,542,915) (320,087) (2,863,002)
(12,600) 81,000 68,400
169,653 144,280 313,933
(2,089,450) 276,369 (1,813,081)
(1,423,668) (3,276,032) (4,700,600)
1,529,000 6,116,000 7,645,000
(207,165) (168,437) (375,602)
(175,881) (442,369) {618,250)
{277,614) 2,228,262 1,950,648
2,950 2,805 5,766
{1,529,733) 3,019,413 1,489,680
2,137,740 63,640 2,201,380
608,007 $ 3,083,063 $ 3,691,080




CITY OF DUBOIS, PENNSYLVANIA

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

December 31, 2009

Non-Uniformed

Employees Police
ASSETS Penslon Plan  Rellreament Plan  Agency Funds
Cash and cash equivalents $ - % 1162188 § 66,936
Invesiments:
Invesiment assels wilh PMRS, al falr value 5,533,602 - -
Invesiment assets, at falr value - 3,429,918 -
Total investmeants 5,533,602 3,420,918 -
Total Assels $ 5!533!692 § 4,692,100 2 66,936
LIABILITIES
Escrow liablilties $ - $ - % 66,936
Total Llabliitles - - $ 66,935
NET ASSETS
Held in trust for pension benefits $ 55336802 § 4592106

See accompanying notes to basle financial statements.
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CITY OF DUBOIS, PENNSYLVANIA

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2009

Non-Uniformed

Employees Police
ADDITIONS Penslon Plan  Retirement Plan
Coniribullons:
Plan members $ 66,831 $ 24,296
Employer 60 99,404
State 68,798 148,762
Total contributions 126,689 272,461
Net Invesiment Income:
Invesiment return - (454,660)
Interest 311,762 -
Investment expenses - {34,137)
Total Investment Income 311,762 {408,797)
Less Invesiment expenses - -
Net Investment income 311,762 (488,797)
Total Additions 437,451 (216,336)
DEDUCTIONS
Benefils 332,109 255,471
Adminlsirative expenses 1,620 -
Allocated insurance premiums 525 -
Total Deduclions 334,164 265,471
Change In Net Assets 103,297 (471,807)
Net Assets-Beginning 5,430,395 5,083,913
Met Assels-Ending $ 6533602 $ 4,602,108

See accompanying notes to baslic financlal statements.
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CITY OF DUBOIS, PENNSYLVANIA

NQTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2009

Note 1 — Reporting Entity

The City of DuBois, Pennsylvanla, a city of the third class, was created by charter granted by the
Governor of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania on December 28, 1914, The City Is a munlclpal
corporation governed by an elected mayor and four member councl.

The financial statements Include only the primary government of the Clty, which consists of all
funds, organizations, institutions, agencies, departments, and offices that comprise the Clty's legal
entity. The primary government financlal statements do not inciude financial data for the City’s
legally separate component units or Joint ventures/jointly governed organizations.

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policles

The financial statements of the City have been prepared on the basis of cash receipts and
disbursements, which differs from accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAP). The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Is the accepted
standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financlal reporting principles.
The City also applies Financlal Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Statements and
Interpretations issued on or before November 30, 1989, to its governmental and business-type
actlvilies .and to its enterprise funds provided they do not conflict with or contradict GASB
pronouncements. The City has elected not to apply FASB pronouncements issued after
November. 30, 1989 to Its business-type activities or enterprise funds. The financial statements
include government-wide financlal statements prepared on the basis of cash recelpts and
disbursements and fund financial statemenis which present information for indlvidual major
funds rather than by fund type. Nonmajor funds are aggregated and presented in a single

column, Fiduclary funds are reported by type. The more significant accounting policies of the City
are described below,

A. Basis of Presentation

The City's basic financlal statements consist of government-wide financial statements,
including a statement of net assets and a statement of activities, and fund financial statements
which provide a more detalled level of financial information.

Government-Wide Financlal Statements

The statement of net assets and the statement of activities display information about the City
as a whole. These statements Include the financial activities of the primary government, except
for fiduciary funds. The statements distinguish between govemmental and business-type
aclivifies. Governmental activitles generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental
revenues, and other nonexchange revenuss, Business-type activitles are financed in whole or
in part by fees charged to external parties for goods or services.
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CITY OF DUBOIS, PENNSYLVANIA

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2009

Note 2 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

A. Basls of Presentation (Continued)
Government-Wide Financial Statements (Continued)

The statement of net assets presents the financial condition of the governmental and business-
type activities of the City at year end. The statement of activitles presents a comparison
between direct expenses and program revenues for each program or function of the City's
governmental activities and business-type activities. Direct expenses are those that are
specifically associated with a service, program, or department and, therefore, clearly
identifiable to a particular function. Program revenues Include charges paid by the recipient of
the goods or services offered by the pragram, grants and contributions that are restricted to
meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular program, and interest earned on
grants that is required to be used to support a particular program. Revenues that are not
classlfied as program revenues are presented as general revenues of the City. The
comparison of direct expenses with program revenues identifies the extent to which each
govarnmental program or business activity is self-financing or draws from the general revenues
of the City.

Fund Financial Statements

The Cily segregates transactions related to certain City functions or activities in separate funds
in order to aid financial management and {0 demonstrate legal compliance. Fund financial
statements are designed to present financial information of the City at this more detalled levet.
Funds are organized into three categories: governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary. The focus
of governmental and proprietary fund financial statements is on maijor funds. Each major fund
is presented In a separate column. A fund Is considered major if It is the primary operating fund
of the City or meets the following criteria: total assets, liabilitles, revenues, or
expenditures/expenses of that individual governmental or enterprise fund are at least 10
percent’ of the corresponding total for all funds of that category or type; and total assets,
liabilities, revenues, ar expenditures/expenses of the individual governmental fund or enterprise
fund are at least 5 percent of the corresponding total for all governmental and enterprise funds
combined. Nonmajor funds are aggregated and presented in a single column. Fiduciary funds
are reported by type.

B. Fund Accounting
The City uses funds to maintain its financial records during the year, A fund is defined as a
fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts. There are three categorles of
funds: governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary.

Governmental Funds

Governmental funds are those through which most governmental functions of the City are
financed. The measurement focus of governmental funds Is on the sources, uses, and
balances of current financial resources. The foliowing ars the City's major governmental funds:

16



CITY OF DUBOIS, PENNSYLVANIA

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2009

Note 2 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policles (Continued)

B. Fund Accounting (Confinued)
Governmental Funds (Continued)

General Fund

The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the Cily. This fund Is used to account for
all financial resources not accounted for in other funds. All general tax revenues and other
recelpts that are not restricted by law or contractual agreement to some other fund are
accounted for in this fund. General operating expenditures, fixed charges, and capital
Improvement costs that are not paid through other funds are paid from the General Fund.

Capital Reserve Fund
The Capital Reserve Fund accounts for resources accumulated and reserved for capital

projects and expendilures and to fund projects financed by intergovernmental grants and
revenues.

Pentz Run Bridges 'Fund

The Pentz Run Bridges Fund accounts for Infrastructure improvements in the demolition and
construction of two bridges within the City.

The other governmental funds of the City account for grants and other resources whose use is

restricted for a particular purpose and the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of
" debt. '

Proprietary Funds

Proprietary fund reporting focuses on the determination of operating Income, changes in net
assets, financial position, and cash flows,

Enterprise funds are used to account for operations that are financed in a manner similar to
private business enterprises, where the intent is that costs of providing goods or services to
the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarlly through user
charges. The Sewage and Water Funds are the Clty's major enterprise funds.

Fiducia:[y' Funds
Fiduclary funds are used to account for assets held by the City in a trustes capacity or as an

agent for Individuals, private organizations, and other governments. Fiduciary funds are not
Includ_'gt_;l in the government-wide financiai statements.

Penslon Trust Fiind
The Pension Trust Fund accounts for the assets of the City's Non-Uniformed Employees’
Penslon and Police Pension plans.
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CITY OF DUBOIS, PENNSYLVANIA
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2009

Note 2 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policles (Continued)

B. Fund Accounting (Continued)
Fiduciary Funds (Continued)

Agency Funds

Agency Funds are custodial in nature with assets and liabilities being equal and do not
involve measurement of results of operation. The City's Fire Loss Escrow Fund is an agency
fund.

C. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting
Measurement focus refers to what Is being measured; basis of accounting refers to when
revenues and expenditures are recognized In the accounts and reported in the financial
statements. Basis of accounting relates to the timing of the measurement made, regardless of
the measurement focus applled.

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the cash receipts and disbursements basis of accounting. The
economic resources measurement focus means all assets and liabilities (whether current or
non-current) are Includsd on the statement of net assets and the statement of activities present
Increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in net total assets. Under the cash raceipts
and disbursements basls of accounting, which is a comprehsnsive basls of accounting other
than accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, revenues are
recognized when received and expenses are recognized when paid.

Governmental and proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the current financial
resources measurement focus and are accounted for using the cash receipts and
disbursements basis of accounting. The current financial resources measurement focus means
only current financial -assets and liabllitles are Included on the balance sheet and inflows
(revenues and other financing sources) and outflows {expenditures and other financing uses)
of expendable financial resources are Included on the statements of revenues, expenditures,
and changes In fund balances.

As a result of the use of the cash recelpts and disbursements basis of accounting, certain
assels and their revenues (such as accounts raceivable and revenus for billed or provided
services not yet collected) and certain llabilities and their related expenses (such as accounts
payable and expenses for goods or services received but not yet pald, and accrued expenses
and ligbilities) are not recorded in these financial statements.

Flduciary fund financlal statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basls of accounting, except for the recognition of certain liabllities of
defined benefit penslon plans. GASB Statement No. 25, Financial Reporting for Defined Benefit
Pension Plans and Notes Disclosures for Defined Contribution Plans, requires that plan
liabllities be recognized in the Penslon Trust Fund for benefits and refunds to plan members
and beneficlarles when due and payable in accordance with the terms of the plan.
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2009

Note 2 — Summary of Significant Accounting Peligles (Continued)

C. Measurement Focus and Basls of Accounung‘ (Continued)

If the City ulilized the baslis of accounting recognized as generally accepted, the fund financial
statements for governmental funds would use the modified accrual basis of accounting, while
the fund financial statements for proprietary funds would use the accrual basis of accounting.
All government-wide financlal statements would be presented on the accrual basis of
accounting.

D. Interfund Activity
Interfund aclivity Is reported as loans, services provided, reimbursements, or transfers, ‘as
applicable. Loans are reported as interfund receivables and payables on the fund financial
statements. Interfund receivables and payables are eliminated on the government-wide
statement of net assets. Services provided are ftreated as revenues and
expenditures/expenses. Relmbursements are when one fund Incurs a cost, charges the

appropriate benefiting fund and reduces its related cost as a reimbursement. All other interfund
activity Is treated as transfers.

E. Net Assets.

Net assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities. Net assets are reported as
restricted when there are. limitations imposed on their use either through the enabling
legislation adopted by the City or through external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors,
or laws or regulations of other governments. The City's pollcy Is {o first apply restricted

resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted
net agsets are available,

F. Use of Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make estimates and
assurmptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying
notes. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

Note 3 — Cash Deposits and Investments

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania statutes provide for the Investment of moneys of governmental

and proprietary funds into certain authorized Investment types, including United States Treasury

bills, short-term obllgations of the United States Government or its agencles or instrumentalities, 7
obligations of the United States of America or any of its agencies or instrumentalities backed by

the full faith and credit of the United States of America, obligations of the Commonwealth of
Pennsylvania or any of its agencies or insirumentalities backed by the full faith and credit of the

Commaonwealth, obligations of any political subdivislon of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania or

any of it agencles or Instrumentalitles backed by the full falth and credit of the political subdivision,

and Insured or collateralized time deposits and certificates of deposit. The statutes do not

prescribe- regulations related to demand deposits; however, they do allow the pooling of
governmental funds for investment purposes.
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2009

Note 3 — Cash Deposits and Investments (Continued)

In addition to the investments authorized for governmental and proprietary funds, investments of
the City's Penslon Plans may also be made in legal investments permitted under the Pennsyivania
Fiduciaries in corporate stocks and bonds, real estate and other investments consistent with
sound business practice.

The deposit and investment policy of the City adheres to the Commonwealth statutes and prudent
business practice. There were no deposit or investment transactions during the year that were in
violation of either the Commonwealth statutes or the policy of the City.

Cash Deposits

Cash deposits are categorized to give an indication of the lave! of custodial credit risk assumed by
the City at December 31, 2009, Category 1 Includes cash deposits which are insured by the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or collateralized with securities held by the Cily or by its
agent in the City's name. Category 2 includes cash deposits which are collateralized with
securities held by the pledging financial institution's trust departmant or agent in the City's name.
Category 3 Includes cash deposits which are uninsured and uncollateralized, or were
collateralized in accordance with Act 72, a Commonwealth statute which permits the financial
instifution to pool collateral for all governmental deposits and have the collateral held by an
approved custodian In the institution's name.

At Deceﬁ%t_)er 31, 2009, the carrying amount of the City's cash deposits with financial institutions
was $7,832,382 and the financlal Institutions balances totaled $8,473,710, which is categorized as
follows: ' -

Catsgory 1 $ 748,491
Category 3 — 7,725,219
Total Cash Deposits $ 8473710

Invesiments — Non-Uniformed Employees Pension Plan

The investments of the Non-Uniformed Employees Pension Plan are reported at fair value, and do
not represent specific identifiable investment securities, as they are pooled for investment
purposes with the Pennsylvania Municipal Retirement System (PMRS). Disclosures required by
GASB Statement No. 3 for aggregate PMRS investments are included in PRMS's separately
issued Comprehensive Annual Financlal Report.

Investments — Pollce Retirement Plan

The investments of the Police Retlrement Plan are reported at fair value. Securitles traded on a
natlonal of International exchange are valued at the last reported sales price at current exchange
rates. Investments that do not have an established market are reported at sstimated fair value.
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Note 3 — Cash Deposits and Investments (Continued)

Investments — Police Retirement Plan (Continued)

Custodial credit risk is the risk that the City will not be able to recover the value of its investment or
collateral securities that are in possession of an outside party. The City does not have a written
investment policy on custodlal credit risk. The falr value of the Police Retirement Plan securities
held by a counterparty, not in the retirement plan’s name, are as follows:

US Government Debt $ 148,219
Corporate Debt 1,145,244
Equities 1.410,804
Total $ 2,704,267

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in Interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. Investments held for longer periods are subject to increased risk of adverse interest
rate changes. The City does not have a written investment policy on Interest rate risk, The City's
Investments in the Police Retirement Plan subject fo interest rate risk at Dacember 31, 2009
Included the following:

Remalning Malurilies {Years)
1-6

Investmant Type Falr Value Less than 1 6-10 More than 10
US Agencies $ 148,219 $ - 8 74789 $ - § 73,430
Municipal Bonds . 523,232 - 202,776 155,011 76,446
Corporate Bonds 1,145,244 74,366 553,390 370,105 147,383

Totel by Maturity Dales ~ §_ 18166956 § 74386 $ 030055 $ 626116 $ 206268

Credlt ris'k' is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its
obligations. The County does not have a written Investment policy on credit risk. At December 31,
2009, the credit quality ratings of the Pension Trust Fund's debt securities are as follows:

Investment Type Ealr Valus Raling
Money Market $ 1,142,922 N/A
US Agencles 148,219 NIA
Municipal Debt 146,622 AA
Municipal Debt 221,699 A
Municipal Debt 155,011 N/A

Tolal Municlpal Deht 52323
Comporate Debl 147,383 AAA
Corporate Debt 76,032 AA
Corporate Debt 128,861 A
Corporate Debt 718,682 BBB
Corporate Debt 74,368 N/A
Tolal Corporate Debt 1,145,244
Tolal $_2050017

Concentration of credit risk Is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of an investment In a
single issuer, The City does not have a written investment policy on concentration of credit risk,
There were no investments, other than US Government and US Government guaranteed
obligations, mutual funds, or other pooled investments, In any one issuer that represented 5
percent or.more of total investments at December 31, 2009.

BT
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December 31, 2009

Note 4 — Taxes

Real Estate Property Taxes

Real estate property taxes aftach as an enforceable lien on property on January first. Taxes are
billed on or about March 1, with a 2% discount through April 30; face amount due from May 1
through June 30; and 10% penalty added after July 1. The Clearfield County Assessment Office
calculates the yeariy tax levy and distributes the individual tax duplicates to the City's elected tax
collector, The tax collector is responsible for tax collections.

The City is permitted by law to levy separate and different rates of taxation for general City
purposes on all real estate classified as land, exclusive of the buildings thereon, and on all real
estate classified as bulldings on land. As a result, higher rates may be levied on land if the
respective rates on lands and buildings are so fixed so as not to constliute a greater levy in the
aggregate than a rate of 25 mills on both land and buildings. Additional levies for certain other
purposes are permitted at specific maximum millages as provided for in the City Code.

Assessed value is 25% of market value. The City's net taxable assessed value for 2009 was
$56,383,304. The real estate tax millage rates for 2009 was:

Taxabie Assessed Value- Purposes Millage

Land ' General 88.00

.. Buildings and improvéments General 2.00
Tolal real estate Library and Recreation 3.50

Resldencé-.and Per Cagfta Taxes

Resldencé and per capita taxes are collected at various times during the year by the City tax
coliector: Each tax is in the amount of $5.00 per taxpayer. Various Income and age provisions
determiné individual tax liabllity.

Local Services Taxes

Emergeri_cy and Municipal Services taxes are also collected af various times by the City tax
collector. The amount imposed on taxable residents Is $47.00.

Earned Income Taxes .
The City also levies a one-half percent tax on the annual earned income of City residents. The tax

is collected at various times throughout the year and remitted to the Clty by an appointed
collection agency.
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Note 5 — Interfund Balances

Interfund balances at December 31, 2009 conslsted of the following:

Recelvable Fund Payabla Fund Amount
General Fund Community Development Block Grant Fund $ 7082
Communily Revitallzation Fund 6523
Sewer Fund 63,003
Water Fund 131,880
Capital Reserve Fund General Fund 351,971
Sewer Fund 337,308
Water Fund 332,676
Sewer Fund General Fund 2,034
Water Fund 12,800
Total $1.228,754

Interfund balances resulted from the timing differences between the dates that interfund goods
and services are provided or reimbursable expenditures occur, transactions are recorded In the
accounting system, and payments betwaen funds are made.

Note 6 — |nterfund Transfers

Interfund transfers for the year ended December 31, 2009 consisted of the following:

‘ Transfer In Fund Transfer Out Fund Amount
General Fund Johnson Controls Fund $ 230,686
Sewar Fund 2,523,776
Water Fund 299,823
Community Revitalization Fund PEMA Grant Fund 2417
Pentz Run Bridges Fund General Fund 814,000
Health Insurance Fund General Fund 52,430
Sewer Fund 19,139
Water Fund 20,284
Sewar Fund General Fund 40467
Johngon Controls Fund 180,245
Capltal Reserve Fund 76,000
" Waler Fufid ' General Fund 40,231
: ' Johnson Controls Fund 180,945
. Capital Reserve Fund ) 150,000
Total | $4,630103

Transfers are used to move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires to collect them
to the fund that statute or budget requires to expend them and use unrestricted revenues
collected In the general fund to finance varlous programs accounted for In other funds In
accordarce with budgetary authorizations.
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Note 7 —Debt

Short-Term Debt

The Cily has recelved short-term Interim financing from S&T Bank for a Sewer Replacement
Project to be permanently financed with a loan and grant from Pennsylvania Infrastructure
Investment Authority. The approved amount of the interim financing was $3,126,291, with a
maturity date of November 3, 2009. The note was amended on October 5, 2009 to a non-
revolving straight line Credit Note in the original avallable princlpal of $3,126,291 with $108,750
indisbursed principal ressrved for the funding of Letter of Credit. The maturity date has been
extended to November 3, 2010. At December 31, 2009, the outstanding balance was $0 and the
interest rate was 3,25 percent.

Short-term debt activity during the year ended December 31, 2009 was:

Beginning Ending Interest
. _ Balance Issued Redeémed Balance Pald
Interim financing 3 - & -8 - $_ =% =

Long-Term Debt
The following presents the changes in long-term debt of the City during the year ended December
31, 2009;

Principal
Beginning Ending Due within
Governmental Activitles Balance Addilions = Reductions Balance One Year
Notes payable $ 460955 3 814000 $ (84,558) $ 1210397 $ 116,629
. Govemmental activilies long- -
term debt 460,856 814,000 (64,558) _ 1,210,397 116.629
Business-Type Activitles -
Notes payable - - 9,102,196 - (376,602) 8,726,594 386,484
Bonds payable - - _ 7.645.000 - _ 7,646,000 145,000
Business-type actlvities long-
ferm debt 9102.196 _ 7,645,000 (375,602) _ 16,371,694 531,484
Total long term debt $ 9,663,161 § 8450000 $ (440,160) $17.581,991 $ 648,113
A summary of long-term debt outstanding at December 31, 2009, follows:
Amount of Balance
Orlglnal Issue Outstanding

$ 100,000 Pennsylvania Emergency Management Agency loan to assist In the $ 10,160
A purchase of fire apparalus, repayable at $644 monthly May 1, 1996
through April 1, 2011 with 2 percent interest,

$ 126,010 General Obligation Nole Issued to Pennsylvania Infrastructure Invest- $ 29,640
ment Authority April 22, 1897, sireet construction loan, repayable
monthly at $728 with 1.00 percent interest until May 1, 2002, and
$739 with 1.28 percent interest through May 1, 2013 maturity.
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Note 7 —Debt {Continued)

Long-Term Debt (Continued)

Amount of
Original |ssue
$ 2,490,000

753,160

3,300,000

100000

182,207

434,723

General Obligation Note to S&T Bank dated Seplember 22, 2008 for
an unsecured loan for the Flexnat meler system installation project.
Repayable at $18,834 monthly with a current interest rate of 4.27%
and a maturity date of Seplember 22, 2023, The Sewer Fund is
responsible for 43% of the debt, the Water Fund Is responsible for
43% of the debt and the General Fund Is responsible for 14% of the
dabt,

Guaranteed Revenue Note to Pennsyivania Infrastructure Invesiment
Authority, Aprit 22, 1997 for sewage treatment plant improvements,
principal reduced to $654,937 by Confirmation and Ratification
Agreement of May 4, 2002, repayable monthly at $3,748 through
May 1, 2002 with one percent Interest and at $3,819 monthly with
1.28 percent interest from June 1, 2002 through June 1, 2013 and a
$1,607 payment on July 1, 2013,

General Obligation Note to S&T Bank dated December 23, 2008 to

- satisfy the remalning balance of the Guaranteed Water Revenue

Bond 1o United States Department of Agriculture, Rural Economic
and Community Development Service relating to the upgrade of the

water distribution center. Secured by recelpts and revenues from its

water system. Repayable at $17,598 monthly with interest currently
at 4,04% and a maturity date of December 23, 2033,

Commonweallh of Pennsylvanla, Emergency Management Agency,
June 21, 2002 loan for partlal cost of fire apparatus, repayable in
monthly Instaliments of $644 with 2 percent Interest for fifteen years
from August 1, 2002,

Guaranteed Revenue Nole lssued to the Pennsylvania Infrastructure

Investment Authority, October 3, 2002 to finance sewer system
improvements, funds of $9,110 were not advanced, Interest through
January 31, 2008 was 1.0 percent, and monthly payments are $841,
at February 1, 2008, interest increased to 1.269 percent and monthly
payments are $868 through December 1, 2022,

Guaranteed Revenue Note issued to the Pennsylvanla infrastructure

Investment Authority, July 12, 2006 to finance waler supply system
conslruction and replacement (Backwash Tank Project), interest at
1.36 percent during six months construction and the first sixty
months of amortizalion and 2.622 percent during the remaining ane
hundred months of the loan term. Interest only payments through
January 1, 2007, $2,146 due monthly from Febryary 1, 2007 through
January 1, 2012 and $2,340 per month Is payable from February 1,
2012 until March 1, 2026 malurity. Loan advances of $119,607 were
made In 2008.
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3,209,669
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Note 7 —Debt (Continued)

Long-Term Debt (Continued)

Amount of
Orlglnal lssue
$ 1,728,413

1,484,050

814,000

7,645,000

General Obligation Note to S&T Bank dated September 28, 2007 for
an unsecured loan to satisfy the remaining balance of the
Washington County Authority Capital Funding Revenue Bonds
relating to prior year water and wastewater projects. Repayable at
$11,389 monthly with Interest of 4.91 percent through maturity date
of Seplember 28, 2027. The Sewer Fund Is responsible for 85% of
the debt with the Water fund being responsible for the remaining
35% of debt.

Guaranteed Revenue Note to Pennsylvania infrasltructure Investment
Authority (Pennvest) for a loan to parfially finance a sewer system
construction project, dated August 17, 2006 simultaneous with a
grant from Pennvest of $1,642,241 for the project. Interest Is 1.252
percent during the Initial sixty six months which consists of
construction time and the first five years of amortization, 2.416
percent during the remaining one hundred eighty months. Interest
only Is payable until February 1, 2007, $6,993 Is due monthly
beginning March 1, 2007 and ending February 1, 2012 and from
March 1, 2012 through February 1, 2027 maturity $7,603 Is payable
monthly.

Commaonwealth of Pennsylvanla, Department of Transportation,
August 5, 2008 loan for infrastructure improvements, repayable in
monthly instaliments of $7,354 with 1.625 percent Interest and a
maturity date of September 9, 2019.

General Obligation Bond Serles of 2009 used for capital projects,
including improvements to the reservoir and City's water system,
dated February 19, 2009 are secured the full faith, credit and taxing
power of the City. The bonds are scheduled to mature at varlous
{imes through December 15, 2034 and bear Interest rates varylng
from 2.000% to 6.376%.

Total Long-Term Debt Qutstanding
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Note 7 ~Debt (Continued)

The aggregate annual debt service requirements applicable to the Clty's bonded debt and notes
payable is summarized:

Year Principal Interest Total
2010 $ 648113 $ 704,887 $ 1,352,780
2011 658,304 686,066 1,344,370
2012 670,265 681,617 1,351,882
2013 664,951 663,644 1,328,595
2014 664,024 642,665 1,296,689
2016-2019 3,681,048 2,855,625 6,436,673
2020-2024 3,643,102 2,146,482 5,789,684
2025-2029 3,394,908 1,386,195 4,781,103
2030-2034 3,667,278 558,182 4225458

17681961  $10325143  $27.907,134

Note 8 — Non-Uniformed Employees' Pension Plan

Plan Description

The Non-Uniformed Employees’ Pension Plan is a single-employer defined benefit pension plan.
The plan participates in the Pennsylvania Municipal Refirement System (PMRS), which is an
agent multiple-employer public employee retirement system that acts as a common investment
and administrative agent for participating municipal pension plans. PMRS issues a separate
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR). A copy -of the CAFR may be obtained by
contacting the PMRS accounting office. The plan provides retirement, disability, and death

benefits to plan members and thelr beneficiaries. Vesting occurs for permanent employees after
twelve years of credited service.

Membership :
Membership of the plan gonsisted of the following at December 31, 2009:
Relired Membéers and Beneflclarles 31
Terminated plan members entitled to but not yet
receiving benefits 4
Active Members 40
Total Membership 5

Funding Pollcy

Members are required to contribute 3.5% of gross pay. Additionally, the City must provide annual
contributions sufficlent to satisfy the actuariatly determined contribution requirements.
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Note 8 — Non-Uniformed Employees’ Pension Plan (Continued)

Actuarlal Valuation Information

Actuarial valuations are performed biannually. The following methods and assumptions as of the
latest actuarial valuation date were used to determine the Annual Required Contrlbution for 2009:

Valuation Date January 1, 2007
Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal
Asset Valuation Method Fair Value
’ Amortization Method Level Dollar Closed
Remaining Amortization Period 14.33 Years
Actuarial Assumptions:
Investment Rate of Return 6.00%
Projected Salary Increases 5.20%
Schadule of Annual Required Contributions
Annual Actuarial
Required Valuation Date Percentage
Year Contribution for Contributions Contributed
2005 $ 47,505 2003 100%
2006 46,678 2003 100%
2007 67,898 2005 100%
. 2008 74,669 2005 100%
.. - 2009 69,798 2007 100%

Note 9 ~ Police Pension Plan

Plan Description

The Police Pension Plan Is a single-employer defined benefit pension plan established by the City
to provide retirement, disabllity, and death benefits to plan members and their beneficiariss. All
full-time members of the police force join the plan upon hite. The Police Penslon Plan was
amended and restated effective January 1, 2008. The City has delegated to Mockenhaupt
Beneflts Group the authority to manage certain plan assets. Mockenhaupt Benefits Group issues
separate: financial statements of the Pollce Pension Plan. The Police Pension Plan financial
statements can be obtained by contacting Mockenhaupt Benefits Group.

Membership

Membership of the plan consisted of the following at. January 1, 2009, the date of the latest
actuarial valuation:

Retired Members and Beneficiaries 11

Terminated plan members entitled to but not yet
recelving bensfits 1
Actlve Members 13
25

Total Membership
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Note 9 — Police Pension Plan (Continued)

Funding Pollcy

Members are required to contribute 3% of gross pay plus a $5 per month police increment to the
plan. Additionally, the City must provide annual contributions sufficient to satisfy the acluarially
determined contribution requirements.

Actuarial Valuation Information

Actuarial valuations are performed annually. The following methods and assumptions were used
in the actuarial valuation performed for the Plan as of December 31, 2009:

Valuatlon Date January 1, 2009
Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal
Asset Valuation Method 4-year smoothing
Amortization Method Level Dollar Closed
Remalning amortization period 7 years (aggregate)
Actuarial Assumptions:

Investment Rate of Return 6.75%

Projected Salary Increases 4.50%

(Includes inflation at 3%)

Annual Penslon Cost and Net Pension Obllgation
The City's annual pension cost and net pension obligation to the Police Pension Plan for the year
ended ngember 31, 2009 were as follows:

* Annual required contribution $ 248,166
“~ Interest on net pension obligation -
Adjustment to annual required contribution =
Annual pension cost 248,166
‘Contributions made : 248 166
‘Change In'net pension obligation -

Net pension obligation beginning of year i

Net pension obligation end of year $ -

Historical Trend Information

Fiscal Year =~ Annual Pension Percentage of Net Pension
Ending Cost (APC) APC Contributed Obligation
12/31/08 $ 226,346 98.49% $ (64,144)
12/31/07 234,172 98.47% (67,653)

~ 12/31/08 223,173 92.08% (71,143)
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Note 10 —~ Litigation

The City, in the normal course of its activities, is involved in various claims and litigation. The
City currently has claims and lawsuits pending, which could ultimately result in liability for the
City over the next few years. The amount of these claims cannot be reasonably estimated at
this time and management estimates that any claims not coversd by Insurance resulting from
such litigation would not materially affect the financlal statements of the City.

Note 11 — Grants

The City has recelved federal and state grants for specific purposes that are subject to review
and audit by the grantor agencies or their designes. These audits could lead to a request for
reimbursement to the grantor agency for expenditures disallowed under terms of the grant.
Based on prior experience, the Clty Council believes such disallowances, If any, will be
immaterial.

Note 12 — Subsequent Events

Subssaquent events were evaluated through December 8, 2010, which is the date the finanglal
statements were available to be issued. There were no events subsequent to the balance sheet
date that were required to be disclosed.
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CITY OF DUBOIS, PENNSYLVANIA

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATICN
NON-UNIFORMED EMPLOYEES' PENSION PLAN

For the Year Ended December 31, 2009

Schedule of Funding Progress

(a) (b) {c) (d) (e) (f
Actuarlal UAAL as a
Actuarial Actuarlal Accrued Unfunded Annual Percentage of
Valuation Value of Liabllity (AAL)  AAL (UAAL)  Funded Ratlo Covered Covered Payroll
Date Assets —Eniry Age (b) - (a) {a)+(b) Payroll {c}+{e)
1M/01 $6,068,680 $ 5979204 $ (89,476) 101,50% $ 1,404,821 -6.37% .
1/1/03 6,807,166 6,345,726 (461,438) 107.27% 1,630,185 -30.16%
~ 1/1/06 7,369,919 7,003,697 {366,222) 105.23% 1,496,806 -24.47%
1107 7,866,596 7,680,127 {175,469) 102.28% 1,616,592 -10.86%
111109 8,561,368 8,233,630 {327,728) 103.98% 1,603,282 ~19.47%

The schedule of funding progress presents the change In the actuarlal value of plan assets over time
relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits.
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CITY OF DUBOIS, PENNSYLVANIA

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY {INFORMATION

POLICE PENSION PLAN

For the Year Ended December 31, 2009

Schedule of Funding Progress
(a) {b) (c) (d) (e) 6]

Actuarial UAAL as a
Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Annual Percentage of
Valuation Value of Liability (AAL)  AAL (UAAL)  Funded Ratio Covered Covered Payroll
Date Assets —Eniry Age {b) - (a) {a}+(b) Payroll (c)+{e)
1/1/01 $ 2,869,327 $ 3,132,796 $ 263,469 92% $ 482477 55%
1/1/03 3,742,399 3,841,530 99,131 97% 483,774 20%
1/1/06 4,280,073 4,574,3b4 294,281 94% 640,559 46%
1M1/07 5,037,128 6,398,440 359,312 93% 734,757 49%
11109 5,662,615 6,067,630 415,015 93% 763,069 54%

The schedule of funding progress presents the change in the actuarial value of plan assets over time
relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits.
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CITY OF DUBOIS, PENNSYLVANIA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
CASH BASIS

GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended December 31, 2009

Varlance with
Budgeted Amaunls Final Budgst
Orlginal Final Aclual Over (Under)
Revanues:
Taxas $ 2,203,766 % 2203756 $ 2,288,006 $ 84,249
intergovernmental 78,462 78,462 285,512 207,050
Charges for sarvices 378,926 378,926 696,892 318,966
Licenses and parmits 76,543 76,643 76,352 {1,191)
Fines and forfaltures 66,216 66,215 80,077 13,862
Interest and rentals 200,458 200,456 184,968 {15,488)
Miscellaneaus 462,580 462,580 131,278 (331,302}
Total Revanues 3,466,938 3,466,938 3,741,084 274,146
Expenditures:
Current;
General government 663,022 663,022 670,768 {7.766)
Publlc safety 1,752,700 1,752,709 1,907,101 (154,392)
Publle works 827,694 827,694 895,919 (68,225)
Community and economic development 6,000 5,000 - 6,000
Culture and recrealion 236,638 238,538 257,515 (20,977)
Debt service:
Princlpal 25,712 26,712 64,658 (38,846)
Interest . 14,800 14,800 20,813 (6,013)
Capllal oullay 224,354 224,364 569,856 (385,601)
Other 128,088 126,860 194,297 {67,629)
Total Expendliures 3,876,497 3,876,497 4,600,846 (724,349)
Excass {Deflclancy) of
Revenues over Expandituras (409,559) (409,659) {859,762) {450,203)
Other Fnancing Sowrces (Uses):
Capilal assels sales - - 287,622 287,822
Praceeds from borrowings - - 814,000 814,000
Transfers In 401,650 481,659 3,054,286 2,572,708
Transfars out {72,000) (72,000) {847,128) {876,128)
Total Other Financing Saurcea (Uses) 409,659 400,669 3,208,959 2,799,400
Excess (Daﬂclé_ncy) of Ravenues
-and Other Sources Qver
ExpendIlures and Other Uses - - 2,349,197 2,348,197
Fund Balance-Baginning (201,717) (291,717) (201,717} -
Fund Balance-Ending S _@iAn 8 (oLT7) 8 2067460 $ 2349197

See accompanying notes to budgetary comparison schedutes.
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CITY OF DUBOQIS, PENNSYLVANIA

NOTES TO BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES

December 31, 2009

Note 1 — Budgetary Information

The City has adopted the following procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the
basic financial statements:

(1) At the last stated meeting In November in each year, the City Manager shall present to
Council for first reading a proposed budget ordinance for all funds showing the estimated
receipts, expenditures, and liabilities for the ensuing year with the balance of unexpended
appropriations and all other Information of value as a basis for fixing the levy and tax rate
for the next fiscal year. Council shall, \upon passing the proposed budget ordinance on first
reading, fix a date for adoption thereof, which shall be not later than December 31 of such
year.

(2) The City Clerk shall make the proposed budget ordinance available for public inspection
and publish a notice to that effect once in at least one newspaper. Such notice shall state
the date fixed by Council for adoption of the proposed budget ordinance and such notice
shall be published at least twenty days prior to the time fixed by Councll for adoption of the
proposed budget ordinance, The proposed budget ordinance shall be available for public
inspection at the Cily Clerk's office for at least ten days after the newspaper notice Is
published.

(3) Council shall, after making such changes and modifications therein as appear proper,
adopt the budget and any appropriation measures required to put it into effect upon the
date fixed for adoption thereof. If, upon any revislon of the budget, estimated expenditures
are increased more than ten percent in the aggregate or more than twenty five percent in
any indlvidual item over the proposed budget, such budget shall not be adopted with any
such increases thereln unless the same be agaln made avallable for public Inspection and
for protest of such increases for a period of at least ten days after notice to that effect Is
published,

(4) During the month of January following any municipal election, Council may amend the
budget and the levy and tax rate to conform to the amended budget ordinance. The
procedures for adopting an amended budget shall be in accordance with the above,
except that the amended budget ordinance must be adopted on or before February 15.

Note 2 — Other Information

GASB Statement No. 34 requires a budgetary comparison schedule to be presented for the
General Fund and for each major speclal revenue fund that has a legally adopted annual
budget. The City did not adopt budgets for the Capital Reserve Funds and Pentz Run Bridges
Fund, major speclal revenue funds, and, therefore, presentation of budgetary comparison
information is not required.
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CITY OF DUBOIS, PENNSYLVANIA

COMBINING BALANGE SHEET
CASH BASIS

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

December 31, 2009

Spaclal Revenue Funds

Communtly
Developmenl Community Eim Sireet Famers Footbridge
Brewiary Grant_ __ Block Granl Revilalizallon EDA Grant Granl Nallona) Gtant
ASSETS
Cash and cash Invesimenis $ 104661 $ 26§ 10620 $ B663 $§ 25000 $ 76816 $ 330
Interfund recelvables . - - - - - -
Total Assels $ 104681 § 26 $ 10629 $ 8663 $& 26000 $ 76616 § 330
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Llabiiltlas:

Payroll taxes payable $ - % - % - % - 3 - 3 - 3 -

Interfund payables - 7,062 523 - - - -
Total Liabllitles - 7.082 523 - - - -
Fund Balances:

Unreserved 104,661 {7,037) 10,106 8,663 26,000 76,618 330
Total Liabilitles and Fund Balances $ 104581 § 25§ 10620 % 8663 $ 265000 % 76618 ¢ 330
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Spaclal Revenue Funds

Total Other

Growing Heallh Johnson Liquid Fuels Urban Govemmental
Greaner Granl Insurance Conlicls Lend Sala Tax PEMA Granl Public Safaty _ Development Funds

$ - § 65008 § - § 65730 § 97738 $ - 8 6923 $ 94456 $ 574,709

$ = $ 6508 § -3 65!730 $ 91738 % - 8 6923 % 94!456 $ 674,700

$ - 8 - % - % - % - 8 - 8 - % - % -

- - - - - - - - 7,685

- - - - - - - - 7,585

- 85,038 - 65,730 07,738 - 5,823 94,456 667,124

—_—

$ - $ 8503 $ - 66,730 $ 97,738 $ - 3 6923 § 94466 $ 574709



CITY OF DUBOIS, PENNSYLVANIA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,

Revenues:
Taxes
Intergovernmenial
Charges for services
Licenses and pammils
Flnes and forfellures
Interest and rentals
Miscellaneous

Total Revanues

Expenditures:

Current;
General goveramant
Publlc safety
Public works
Community and aconomic development
Cullure and recreallon

Dabt service:
Piinclpal
Interest

Capilal outlay

Other
Total Expendliures

Excess (Deficlency) of
Ravanues Over Expandifures

Other Financing Sources (Usas):
Caplte! assels sales
Transfers In
Transfers out
Total Other Flnancing Sources (Uses)

Excass (Deficlency) of Revenues
and Olher Sources Over
Expenditures and Other Uses

Fund Balances-Beglnning
Fund Balances-Ending

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

CASH BASIS

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

For the Year Ended Decemher 31, 2009

Specigl Revenus Funds

Communtly
Davetlopment Community Elm Sireet Fammers Footbridge
Brewery Grant Block Grani Revilatizallon  __ EDA Grant Granl Nalignal Grant
$ - - % -8 - - 8 -8 -
250,000 365,342 75,000 - 25,000 - 68,229
- - 40 17 1,110 40
250,000 365,342 75,040 17 26,000 1,110 69,279
28,327 371,479 76,000 - - - 119,260
26,327 371,479 76,000 - - - 119,260
223,673 {6,137) 40 17 26,000 1,110 {49,981)
- - 2417 - - - -
- - 2,417 - - N -
T 223,673 {8,137) 2,467 17 25,000 1,110 (49,981)
(118,112} (900) 7,649 8,646 - 76,606 60,311
g 104!561 g 57!037; $ 10108 _§ 8,663 ) g 25!000 g ?6!616 330
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Speclal Revenue Funds

Tolal Olher

Growing Heatlh Johnson Liquid Fuels Urhan Governmeantal
Gieener Gran)  _  Instirance Contrels Land Sale Tax PEMA Grant Public Safety Devalopment Funds

$ - % - 3 - % - % - % - $ - % - % -

- - - - 192,102 - - 10,000 966,683

- 154 295 1,916 691 2 11 o 4,586

- 154 295 1,916 192,793 2 11 10,310 991,269

- 23,226 - - - - - - 23,226

- 17,521 - - 142,460 - - - 159,981

227,204 - - - - - - . 819,270

227,204 - - 40,747 : - - 142,460 - - - 1,002,477

{227,204) (40,693) 295 1918 50,333 2 11 10,310 (11,208)

- 91,833 - - - - - - 94,260

- - (682,656) - - {2,417) - - {694,973}

- 91,633 (592,558) - - (2,417) - - (600,723)

(227,204) -~ 51,240 (692,261) 1,916 60,333 (2,415} 11 10,310 (511,931)

227,204 33,708 592,261 83,814 47,405 2415 5912 84,146 1,079,055

$ = $§ 05038 _$ - _§_ 65730 $ 97,738 $ = .3 5923 $ 04458 $ 567,124



DuBoIS, PA 15801 RIDGWAY, PA 15853
991 Beaver Drive P.O. Box 167

SHARKEY PicciriLLO KEEN & HANZELY, LLP

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

DuBois, Pennsylvanla 16801

COMMUNICATION OF SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCIES AND MATERIAL WEAKNESSES

To the City Councll and Management
City of DuBols, Pennsylvania
DuBois, Pennsylvania

In planning and performing our audit of the flnancial statements of the governmental activities,
the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund Iinformation of
the City of DuBois, Pennsylvania as of and for the year ended December 31, 2009, in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, we
considered the City's internal control over financial reporting (Interhal control) as a basls for
designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's

internal control, Accordingly, we do hot express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's
internal control. ‘

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding
paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficlencies in internal control that might be
significant deficiencies or material weaknesses and therefore there can be no assurance that all
such deficiencies have baen identified. In addition, because of inherent limitations in internal
control, Including the possibility of management overrlde of controls, misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected by such controls. However, as discussed below, we
identified certain deficlenciss in internal control that we conslder to be material weaknesses.
|

A deficiency In Internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management ar employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functlons, to
prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness Is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencles In internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibllity that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not preventad, or
detected and corrected on a timely basis. We consider the following deficiencies in the City's
internal control to be material weaknesses:

Financial reporting duties of the City

Internal control over financial reporting includes controls over financial statemeént
preparation, which would prevent, or detect and correct a misstatement In the financial
statements, Including note disclosures. An ideal control system over financlal reporting
would include an Individual within an organization that would have knowledge and
experlence of the reporting requirements of generally accepted accounting princlples and
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board.




Financial reporting duties of the City {Continued)

We noted the personnel responsible for the accounting and reporting functions of the City
do not currently possess an appropriate level of technical knowledge and experlence of
generally accepted accounting principles and Governmental Accounting Standards Board
pronouncements and certain Financial Accounting Standards Board pronouncements to
prepare the City's financial statements, including note disclosures, in accordance with the
reporting requirements of those principles and pronouncements. This condition increases
the risk of possible misstatements; however, it is not possible to reduce this risk without
incurring additional costs, |

This communication is for the purpose of reporting certaln conditions relating to the City's
internal control that we have identified during our audit, as required by Statement on Auditing
Standards (SAS) No. 115, Communication of internal Conirof Related Matters Identified in an
Audit. As stated in SAS No. 115, the existence of significant deficiencies or material
weaknesses may already be known to management and may represent a conscious decision
by management or those charged with governance to accept the degres of risk associated with
the deficiencles because of cost or other considerations. Management is responsible for
making decisions concerning costs to be incurred and related benefits. The auditor's
responsibility to communicate significant deficiencies and material weaknesses exists
regardless of management's decisions.

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of management, City
Council, and others within the organization, and is not Intended to be and should not be used by
anyone other than these specified parties.

Aackefloeritly Ko o fon i,

SHARKEY PIGCIRILLO KEEN & HANZELY, LLP
December 8, 2010



DuBois, PA 16801-1084 Ripeway, PA 15853-01567
991 Beaver Driva P.0. Box 1567

SHARKEY PiccirILLO KEEN & HANZELY, LLP

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
DuBois, Pennsylvania 15801

SUPPLEMENTAL LETTER TO MANAGEMENT

To the City Council and Management
City of DuBois, Pennsylvania
DuBois, Pennsylvania

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the governmental activities,
the buslness-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund Information of
the City of DuBols, Pennsylvania as of and for the year ended December 31, 2009, in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, we
considered the City's Internat control over financlal reporting (internal control) as a basis for
designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opintons on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an oplnion on the effectiveness of the City's

internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's
internal control,

However, during our audit we became aware of a matter that is an opportunity for strengthening
internal controls and operating efficiency. The item discussed below summarizes our comments
and suggestions regarding the matter, A separate Ietter dated December 8, 2010, contains our
communication of significant deficiencies and material weaknesses identified in the City's
internal control. This letter does not affect our report dated December 8, 2010, on the financial
statements of the City of DuBois, Pennsylvania,

Propsr Classification of Expenditures

During our audit it was noted that certain public safely expenditures were incorrectly posted
to expenditure accounts within public works funds. Upon discussion with management, it
was determined that certain goods and services orderad by the City were for both public
works and public safety. The expenditures for these goods and services were not properly
segregated on the Invoices or the disbursements, which resulted In the public works

expenditures being overstated and public safety expenditures being understated in the
City's general ledger.

We sdgge'st that the City prepare separate purchase orders and checks for goods and
services ordered for different expenditure classifications, which will decrease the likelihood
of incorrect posting of expenditures.

This letter. is intended for the information and use of management. This restriction is not
intended to limit the distribution of this report, which is a matter of public record.

. A‘:l/% ,/W’ét /.,ﬁ;' gﬂLbJ& /;,'1,\_ & 7(/4?4{)' 7

SHARKEY PICCIRILLO KEEN & HANZELY, LLP
December 8, 2010




DuBois, PA 16801 Ribcway, PA 15853
991 Beaver Drive P.O. Box 157

SHARKEY PIccIRILLO KEEN & HANZELY, LLP

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

DuBois, Pennsylvania 15801
December 8, 2010

To the City Coungil
City of DuBois, Pennsylvania
DuBois, Pennsylvania

We have audifed the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
aclivities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of DuBais,
Pennsylvania for the year ended December 31, 2009. Professional standards require that we
provide you with information about our responsibilities under generally accepted auditing
standards (and, If applicable, Government Auditing Standards and OMB Circular A-1 33), as well
as certain information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. We have
communicated such information in our engagement letter to you dated February 3, 2010,
Professional standards also require that we communicate to you the following information related
to our audit.

Significant Audit Findinas

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Praclices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The
significant accounting policies used by the City of DuBois, Pennsylvania are described in Note 2
to the financial statements. No new accounting policies ware adopted and the application of
existing policies was not changed during 2009. We noted no transactions entered into by the
governmental unit during the year for which there is a tack of authoritative guidance or
consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in the
proper period.

Difficulties Encountered in Petforming the Audit

We encountered no significant difficuities in dealing with management in performing and
completing our audit,

Correcled and Uncorrected Misstatemenis

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified
during the audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropiiate
level of management. Management has corrected all such misstatements. The adjustments
listed in the attached Adjusting Journals were detecled as a result of audit procedures and were
corrected by management.



City of DuBois, Pennsylvania
December 8, 2010
Page 2

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as
a financlal accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction,
that could be significant to the financial statements or the auditors' report. We are pleased to
report that no such disagresments arose during the course of our audit.

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the
management representation letter dated Dacember 8, 2010.

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and
accounting malters, similar to obtaining a "second opinion” on certain situations. If a
consuitation involves application of an accounting principle to the governmental unit's financial
statements or a determination of the type of auditors' opinion that may be expressed on those
statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to
determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such
consultations with other accountants.

Other Audit Findings or Issues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and
auditing standards, with management each year prior to retention as the governmental unit's
auditors. However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional
relationship and our responses were not a condition to our retention.

Additionally, we have communicated certain internal control related matters noted during our

audit in our Communication of Significant Deficiencies and Material Weaknesses, which
accompanies this letter.

This information is intended solely for the information and use of the City Council and
management of the City of DuBois, Pennsylvania and is not intended to be and should not be
used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Very truly yours,

Mk%‘lidv %’(’_’xccﬂ’b / fm,p'f/'- /%?445—:5, 2

Sharkey Picciifllo Keen & Hanzely, LLP




CITY OF DUBOIS 2008 CDBG FUND

- (SPECIAL REVENUE FUND)
AdJusling Journa)
1213172009
Description Acclit Debit Credit
|
DUE TO OTHER FUNDS €8-230-000 924.64
MISC. ADMINISTRATION C8-401-100 924.64

TO ADJUST.

Sharkey Piccirillo, LLP

Page |



CITY OF DUBOIS BREWERY FUND

(SPECIAL REVENUE FUND)
Adjusting Journal

12/31/2009
Dascriplion Accl# Deblt Credit
1
DUE TO OTHER FUNDS BG-230-000 119,111.84
GRANT EXPENSES BG-480-100 119,111.84
TO RECLASSIFY AMOUNTS DUE TO UDAG FUND AND GENERAL

FUND.

Shurkey Picgirillo, LLP Page |




CITY OF DUBOIS CAPITAL RESERVE FUND

(CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND)
Adjusting Journal

12131/2000

Description Acctl Debit Credit

1
CAP RES-CD ACCT CR-100-101 677.18
INTEREST INCOME CR-341-100 677.18
TO ADJUST INTEREST EARNED ON CD'S.

2
INTEREST INCOME CR-341-100 4,793.22
CAP RES-MISC WATER CR-100-102 1,134.07
CAP RES-SEWER CR-100-103 185.49
CAP RES-SEWER PROJECTS CR-100-104 1,030.64
CAP RES-GENERAL CR-100-106 705,56
CAP RES-SEWER LEGAL FEES CR-100-108 243.01
CAP RES-WATER VACATION CR-100-107 76.69
CAP RES-SEWER VACTOR TRUCK CR-100-108 1,098.12
CAP RES-GF VACATION CR-100-109 202.66
CAP RES-SF VACATION CR-100-110 47.90

TO ADJUST FOR 12/08 INTEREST ALLOCATED BASED ON
PERCENTAGE OF 12/31/08 BALANCES,

Sharkey Picelrillo, LLP Mage 1



CITY OF DUBOIS COMM REVITALIZATION FUND

(SPECIAL REVENUE FUND)
Adjusting Journal
12/3112009
Descriplion Acctit Debit Credit
H
PEMA FUNDS LEFT OVER CC-380-400 2,418.91
TRANSER FROM PEMA ACCOUNT C0-395-400 2.416.91

TO RECLASSIFY TRANSFER OF FUNDS TO CLOSE ACCOUNT.

Shackey Pleclrillo, LLP Page |




CITY OF DUBOIS GENERAL FUND

Adjusting Journal

12/31/2009

Dascription Acctit Dablt Cradl|

|
1988 PEMA FIRE TRUCK LOAN GF-255-204 1.91
1996 PEMA FIRE TRUCK L.OAN GF-189-200 1.91
TG ADJUST.

2
FIRETRUCK LOANS - INTEREST GF-472-300 1,441.04
FIRETRUCK LOANS - PRINGIPAL GF-471-300 14,003.20
CONTRIBUTION TO FIRE DEPARTMENT GF-411-540 15,444.24
TO RECLASSIFY LOAN PAYMENTS,

3
TRANSFER TO PENTS RUN FUND GF-492-800 814,000,00
PROCEEDS FROM LONG TERM DEBT GF-391-200 814,000.00
TO RECORD GENERAL OBLIGATION NOTE THATS PAYABLE BY THE
GENERAL FUND,

4
TRANSFER TO SEWER FUND GF-492-700 236,02
PENNVEST LOAN - PRINCIPAL - NEW ST. GF-471-208 58,72
PENNVEST LOAN - INTEREST - NEW ST. GF-472-208 177.30
TO ADJUST FOR INCORRECT PENNVEST PAYMENTS FEB & MARCH
MODE OUT OF WRONG FUND,

3
PIB LOAN WASH. & WEBER BRIDGES GF-471-210 6,174.80
PIB LOAN INTEREST GF-472-210 5,174,80
TO ADJUST.

6
PiB LOAN GF-189-900 788,942.41
PIB LOAN GF-255-660 788,942.41
TO RECORD PIB LOAN.

7
TRANSFER TO WATER FUND GF-492-800 40,230.89
TRANSFER TO SEWER FUND GF-492-700 40,230.08
MISCELLANEOUS REVENUES GF-380-100 150,203.81
TRANSFER FROM JOHNSON CONTROL GF-395-800 230,686.58
TO RECLASS OPERATING TRANSFERS.

8
REAL ESTATE TAX - GURRENT YEAR GF-301-100 20,958.24
RECREATION & CULTURE TAX GF-301-300 3,030.40
RESIDENCE TAXES - CURRENT YEAR GF-308-100 797.50
PER CAPITA TAXES - CURRENT YEAR GF-310-010 797.50
REAL ESTATE TAXES - PRIOR YEAR GF-301-200 20,968.24
RECREATION & CULTURE TAX - PRIOR YR GF-301-400 3,030.40
PER CAPITA TAXES - PRIOR YEAR GF-310-020 797.60
RESIDENCE TAXES - PRIOR YEAR GF-308-200 797.50
TO RECLASS PRIOR YEAR REAL ESTATE AND PER CAPITA TAXES TO
PROPER ACCOUNT.

9
PER CAPITA TAXES - CURRENT YEAR GF-310-010 120.00
RESIDENCE TAXES - CURRENT YEAR GF-308-100 120.00

TO RECLASSIFY.

Sharkey Picelrillo, LLP 'nge |



CITY OF DUBOQIS GENERAL FUND
Adjusling Journg!

12/31/2000

Dascription Accti Debil Credit

10
CONTRACTUAL SERVICES - CENTAX GF-403-452 28,10
OCCUPATIONAL PRIVILEGE TAX GF-310-500 28,10
TO ADJUST FOR CORRECT COMMISSIONS,

]
PA UNEMPLOYMENT - EMPLOYER GF-216-100 288.00
EMS TAX WITHHELD GF-219-000 40.00
MISCELLANEQUS EXPENSE GF-400-480 3268.00
TO ADJUST,

12
INTEREST EARNINGS GF-341-100 21.12
CHECKING - GENERAL FUND GF-100-010 21.12
To correct Interest earnings racorded.

13
REFUNDS OF PRIOR YEAR EXPENDITURES GF-394-100 7.183.52
DUE FROM DUBO!S BREWERY PROJECT GF-130-430 7,183.52
TO RECLASSIFY REIMBURSEMENT FROM THE BREWERY FUND.

14
DUE FROM LITTLE LEAGUE GF-130-410 20,000.00
REMBURSEMENT LITTLE LEAGUE GF-330-405 20,000.00
TO RECLASSIFY.

15
VIOLATION OF ORDINANCES GF-331-120 20,00
RENT OF LAND GF-342-100 20.00
To reclasslify mispesting of $20 which Is part of Osburn Rent.

16
DUE FROM OTHER FUNDS GF-130-000 4,735.80
OPERATING SUPPLIES GF-430-246 4,735,080
To reclasslfy ck #34334 posled Incorreclly 8/28/09.

7
PUBLIC SAFETY - FIRE DEPT GF-411-745 72,875.00
PAYMENTS FROM WATER FUND GF-382-060 30,360.00
PAYMENTS FROM SEWER FUND GF-362-080 42,315.00

To record repalr work done for lhe Fire depariment paid by the Water and

Sawer Fund,

Sharkey Plecirillo, LLP

Pnge 2




CITY OF DUBOIS GROWING GREENER FUND

(SPECIAL REVENUE FUND)
Adjusting Journal
12131/2009
Descrlplion Acctl} Debit Credit
|
GRANT EXPENSES GG-380-100 77,497.02
GRANT DRAWDOWN GG-354-100 77.497.02
TO RECLASSIFY.

Sharkey Pleeiritto, LLP

Page |



CITY OF DUBQIS HEALTH INSURANCE FUND

Adjusling Journa!
12/31/2009
Description Acclit Debil Credit
|

PRIOR YEAR EXPENSES HI-400-491 246,82

EBDS DRAWDOWN HI-480-100 7,500.00

TRANSFERS FROM OTHER FUNDS HI-395-000 7.500.00
DEDUCTIBLE TRANSFER IN HI-380-100 246.82

TO RECLASSIFY.

Shorkey Plecirlilo, LLP Puge |




CITY OF DUBOIS JOHNSON CONTROLS FUND

{SPECIAL REVENUE FUND)
Adjusiing Journal
1213112009
Description Acctt Debit Creadit
I

TRANFER TO GENERAL FUND JC-495-000 230,665,58

TRANFER TO WATER FUND JC-496-010 180,945.00

TRANFER TO SEWER FUND JC-495-020 180,945.00

LOAN PROCEEDS PAYABLE JC-260-000 381,890.00
LOAN PAYOUTS TO JOHNSON CONTROLS JC-480-100 230,665,568

TO RECLASSIFY OPERATING TRANFERS AND CLOSE ACCOUNT.

Sharkey Piceirillo, LLP

Page |



CITY OF DUBOIS LAND SALE FUND
(SPECIAL REVENUE FUND)

Adjusting Journal
1213172000

Descriplion Accti Debil Credil

]
LAND SALE ACCOUNT LS-100-010 944.48
FUND BALANCE LS-279-000 044.48
TO ADJUST BEGINNING BALANCES,

2
LAND SALE ACCOUNT LS-100-010 1,9156.83
INTEREST INCOME LS-341-100 1,016.83

TO RECORD INTEREST EARNED ON CD.

Sharkoy Picelrillo, LLP

Page |




CITY OF DUBOIS PEMA FUND

(SPECIAL REVENUE FUND)
Adjusting Journal
12/31/2009
Dascription Acchi Dabil Cradit
|
TRANSF TO COMM REV. FUND PM-492-200 2416.91
PRIOR YEAR EXPENSE Pi-400-481 2,416.91

TO RECLASSIFY.

Sharkey Piceirlto, LLP Pago 1



CITY OF DUBOQOIS PENTZ RUN BRIDGES FUND

(SPECIAL REVENUE FUND)
Ad]usting Journal
Run: Dec 8 2010 @ 08:01 AM 12/3142009
Description Acchi Debil Cradil
l
MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE PR-380-100 814,000.00
TRANSFER FROM GENERAL FUND PR-392-100 814,000.00

TO RECLASSIFY INTERFUND TRANSFER.

Sharkey Piceirillo, 1LLP Puge |




CITY OF DUBOIS SEWER FUND

(PROPRIETARY FUND)
Ad|usling Journal
12/31/2009

Descriplion Acchl "~ Deblt Credit

!
1996 PENNVEST LOAN - INTEREST SF-427-708 46,41
19868 PENNVEST LOAN - PRINCIPAL SF-427-707 48.41
TO ADJUST.

2
2002 PENNVEST LOAN - SS INTERCEPTOR SF-189-400 0.02
2002 PENNVEST LINE REPAIR LOAN PRIN SF-427-713 49.37
2002 PENNVEST LINE REPAIR LOAN INT SF-427-714 186.65
2002 PENNVEST LOAN - SS INTERCEPTOR SF-252-200 0.02
TRANSFER FROM GENERAL FUND SF-395-070 238.02
TC ADJUST FOR INCORRECT PENNVEST PAYMENTS FEB & MARGCH
MADE OUT OF WRONG FUNDS.

k)
2004 PENNVEST LINE REPAIR INTEREST #74114 SF-427-716 139.65
PENNVEST LINE REPAIR PRINCIPAL #74114 SF-427.716 139.65
TO ADJUST,

4
BOND ISSUE INTEREST EXPENSE SF-427-723 6717222
BOND ISSUANCE COST SF-427-640 600.01
CAPITALIZED INTEREST SINKING FUND SF-110-000 57,772.23
TO RECORD INTEREST PAYMENTS ON 2009 BOND SERIES AND
RECCRD BOND EXPENSES FROM SINKING FUND.

. L)

2000 BOND ISSUE GAPITAL IMPROV ‘ SF-185-800  3,058,000.00
2009 BOND ISSUE CAPITAL IMPROV SF-255-900 3,068,000.00
TO RECLASSIFY TO PROPER ACCOUNTS.

6
2006- CENTRIFUGE LEASE SF-252-700 199,021.62
2006 - CENTRIFUGE LEASE SF-189-700 199,021.92
TO ADJUST.

7
JOHNSON CONTROL LN PROCEEDS SF-364-660 221,175.88
TRANSFER FROM JOHNSON CONTROLS SF-395-090 180,945.00
TRANSFER FROM GENERAL FUND SF-386-070 40,230,880
TO RECLASS OPERATING TRANSFERS.

8
CASH - PENNVEST SF-101-010 19.37
INTEREST EARNINGS SF-384-800 19.37
TO ADJUST.

9
TRANSFER TQ HEALTH INSURANCE FUND SF-492-460 17,416.74
HOSPITALIZATION - BC/BS SF-427-166 468.37
HEALTH INSURANCE - SANITARY SEWERS SF-428-166 6,876.00
HEALTH INSURANCE - STP SF-429-1568 10,083.37

TO RECLASSIFY TRANSFERS TO HEALTH INSURANGE FUND.

Sharkey Piceirillo, 1.1.P Page 1



CITY OF DUBOIS SEWER FUND

(PROPRIETARY FUND)
Adjusling Journal

12/31/2009

Description Acchi} Debit Credit

10
TRANSFER TQ GENERAL FUND SF-492-200  2,025,210.85
PRIOR YEAR EXPENSE SF-400-481 2,025,210.85
TO RECLASSIFY OPERATING TRANSFERS.

I
DUE FROM OTHER FUNDS SF-130-000 7.300,00
NEW SEWER GARAGE SF-493-832 7,300,00
Reclass Moore & Kyler Ck 34747 posted Incorrecily.

12
DUE FROM OTHER FUNDS SF-130-0C0 3,832.80
OPERATING SUPPLIES SF-420-245 3,032,80
Reclasslfy Catalone Ck 34334 posted Incorreclly,

13
DUE FROM OTHER FUNBS SF-130-000 1,466.97
OPERATING SUPPLIES SF-428-245 1,488.97
Reclassify Calalone Ck 34639 posted Incorroctly.

14
TRANSFER TO GENERAL FUND SF-492-200 42,315.00
NEW SEWER GARAGE SF-493-832 42,316,00

To reclass expenses paid by the sewer fund for Public Safely Fire Dept,

Sharkey Pleclrillo, LLP

Page 2




CITY OF DUBOIS SURCHARGE ACCOUNT FUND

(PROPRIETARY FUND)
AdJusting Journal
Run: Dec 8 2010 @ 09:06 AM 12/31/2009
Descriplion Acchl Debit Credit
1
WATER SURCHARGES SA-260-000 126,064.04
SEWER SURCHARGES SA-260-000 27,217 62
TRANSFER FROM WATER FUND SA-392-100 126,054.84
TRANSFER FROM SEWER FUND S5A-392-200 27,217.82

TO RECLASSIFY TRANSFERS.

Sharkey Piccirillo, LLF

Muge |



CITY OF DUBOIS UDAG FUND

(SPECIAL REVENUE FUND)
Adjusting Journal

12/31/2009

Descriplion Acchit Dabit Credit

)
MISCELLANEOUS INCOME RV-380-100 §4,086.86
BREWERY LAND PURCHASE RV-480-800 4,024.37
DUE FROM BREWERY PROJECT GRANT RV-130-500 50,071.49
TO RECLASSIFY DUE TO/ DUE FROM TO PROPER ACCOUNTS.

2
MISCELLANEOUS INCOME RY-380-100 10,000.00
DCNR GRANT RV-380-200 10,000.00
TO.RECLASSIFY DCNR GRANT.

Sharkey Piceirillo. LLP Page |




CITY OF DUBOIS VEOLIA ENVIRON, ACCT FUND

(AGENCY FUND)
Adjusting Journal
12/31/2009
Description Acchit Dabil Credit
VEOLIA ENVIRONMENTAL ACCOUNT VE-100-010 042,97
INTEREST INCOME VE-341-100 842.97
TO RECORD INTEREST EARNED ON CD.
Sharkey Picgirillo, LLI Poge |



CITY OF DUBOIS WATER FUND

(PROPRIETARY FUND)
Adjusling Journal

Run: Dec 8 2010 @ 08:08 AM 1213172009
Description Accil Debil Credit
1
2007 - S&T LOAN - WTP INSTRUMENTATION WF-189-220 0.02
2007 - S&T LOAN - WTP INSTRUMENTATION WF-265-220 0,02
TO ADJUST.
2
PENNVEST-BACKWASH TANK INTEREST WF-447-708 21.10
PENNVEST- BACKWASH TANK PRINCIPAL WF-447-707 21,10
TO ADJUST.
3
BOND ISSUE INTEREST EXP WF-447-716 228,688.86
BOND ISSUANCE COST WF-447-640 2,400.06
CAPITALIZED INT SINKING FUND WF-110-000 231,088.92
TO RECORD INTEREST PAYMENTS ON 2009 BOND SERIES AND
REGORD ADMIN EXPENSES FROM SINKING FUND.
4
JOHNSON CONTROLS LN PROCEEDS WF-378-680 221,175.89
TRANFSER FROM JOHNSON CONTROL WF-385-070 160,945.00
TRANSFER FROM GENERAL FUND WF-305-080 40,230.89
TO RECLASS OPERATING TRANSFERS.
5
PENNVEST CHECKING WF-101-010 1.83
INTEREST EARNINGS WF-370-600 1.83
TO ADJUST.
6
TRANSFERS TO GENERAL FUND WF-492-000 81,000.00
LEASE OF LAND WF-447-531 81,000.00
TO RECLASSIFY.
7
BUILDING REPAIR & MAINTENANCE WF-450-373 7,300.00
DUE TO OTHER FUNDS WF-230-000 7.300.00
To reclass Moore & Kyler ck 34747 posted incorreclly.
8
OPERATING SUPPLIES WF-450-246 8,568.60
DUE TO OTHER FUNDS WF-230-000 8,568.60
Reclasslfy Catalone ck 34334 posted incorrectly,
9
OPERATING SUPPLIES WF-4560-245 1,466.97
DUE TO OTHER FUNDS WF-230-000 1,466.97
Reclassify Catalone ck 34639 posted Incorrectly.
10
TRANSFERS TO GENERAL FUND WF-402-000 30,360.00
NEW GARAGE WF-493-843 30,360.00

To raclass expenses pald by the water fund for Public Safely - Fire Dapt.

Shackey Pieclrillo, LLP

Puge |
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DuBots, PA 15001 ; RipGgway, PA 15853
991 Beaver Drive 331 Maln Sirest

SHARKEY PiccIRILLO KEEN & HANZELY, LLP

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

DuBois, Pennsylvania 15801
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the City Council
City of DuBols, Pennsylvania
DuBols, Pennsylvanla

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activilies, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund Information of the City of DuBois,
Pennsylvania, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2010, which collectively comprise the basic
financlal statements of the Cily's primary government as listed in Ihe table of contents. These financial
stalements are the responslbility of the City of DuBois, Pennsyivania's management. Our responsibilily Is to
express oplnions on these financlal statements based on our audit,

We conducted our audit In accordance with auditing standards generally accepted In the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financlal audits contalned In Government Auditing Standards, Issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States, Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financlal statements are free of material misstatement. An
audit Includes examining, on a lest basls, evidence supporting the amounls and disclosures In the financial
statements. An audlt also includes assessing the accounting princlples used and the significant estimales
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audit provides a reasonable basis for our oplnlons.

As discussed in Note 2, the City of DuBolis, Pennsylvanta, prepares its financial statements on the basls of
cash receipts and disbursements, which is a comprehensive basis of accounting other than accounting
princlples generally accepted in the United States of America,

The financlal statements do not Include financial data for the City's legally separate component units,
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require the financial data for those
component units to be reported with the financial data of the City's primary government unless the City also
issuas financial statements for the financlal reporling entity that include the financlal data for its component
units. The City has not Issued such reporting entity financial slatements. The amount by which this departure
would affect the assets, liabllities, net assets, revenues, and expenses of the aggregate discretely presented
companent units Is not reasonably determinable.

In our opinlon, because of the omission of the discretely presented component units, as discussed above, the
financial staterents referred to above do not present falrly, the cash basis financial position of the aggregate
discretely presented component units of the City of DuBois, Pennsylvania, as of December 31, 2010, or the
changes in cash basls financlal posiiion thereof for the year then ended in conformity with the hasls of
accounting described In Note 2.

In addition, in our oplnion, except for the effects of omitting blended component unils, the finrancial statements
referred lo above present fairly, In all materlal respects, the cash basis financlal position of the aggregate
remaining fund Information for the primary government of the City of DuBols, Pennsyivania, as of December
31, 2010, and the changes in cash basis financial position thereof for the year then ended In conformity with
the basis of accountlng described In Note 2,

Further, in our opinion, the financlal statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, tha
respective cash basls financlal position of the governmental activitles, the business-lype aclivities, and each
major fund of the primary government of the City of DuBols, Pennsylvania, as of December 31, 201 0, and the
respective changes In cash basis financlal position thereof for the year then ended in conformity with the
basls of accounting described In Note 2.




In accordance with Government Audlling Slandards, we have also issued our report dated March 2, 2012, on
our consideration of the City of DuBois, Pennsylvania's Internal control over financial reporling and on our
tests of ils compliance with cerlain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matlers. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our tesling of inlernal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the resulls of that tesling, and not to provide an opinion on Internal control over
financtal reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Govermment Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the resulls of our audit.

Accounting principles generally accepted In the Uniled States of America require that the historical pension
informallon and budgetary comparison information on pages 30 through 33 be presented to supplement the
basic financial slatements. Such Information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporling for placing the basic financial statements in an approprlate operational, economic, or historical
context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information In accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted In the United States of America, which consisted of inquirtes of
management about the methods of preparing the Information and comparing the information for conslistency
with. management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we
obtained during our audit of the basic financial slatements. We do not express an oplnion or provide any
assurance on the Information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to
express an oplinion or provide any assurance,

Management has omitted the management's discussion and analysis that accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of Arnerica require to be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such missing information, although not part of the basic financial statements, s required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for
placing the baslc financlal stalements In an appropriate operational, economic, or historic context. Our
opinion on the basic financial statements is not affected by this missing information.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming oplnions on the financlal statements that collectively
comprise the City of DuBols, Pennsylvanla's primary government financial stalements. The combining
nonmajor fund financial statements are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required
part of the financlal statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented
for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133,
Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and is also not a required part of the
primary government financial stalements. The combining nonmajor fund financial stalements, and the
schedule of expenditures of federal awards are the responsibility of management and were derived from and
relale directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financlal statements. The
Information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such Informatlon directly to the underlylng
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial stalements or to the financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. In our opinion, the information Is falrly stated in all material respects in relation to
the primary gevernment financlal staternents as a whole.

£ . .
_)4/ e Mo %Mﬂ e /&W WL
SHARKEY PICCIRILLO KEEN & HANZELY, LLP
March 2, 2012



CITY OF DUBOIS, PENNSYLVANIA

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
CASH BASIS

December 31, 2010

Primary Government
Governmental  Buslness-lype
Aclivities Actlvilies Total
ASSETS ’
Cash i $ 4,857,743 % 2,066,488 % 6,914,231
Invasimenls 281,269 - 281,269
Intesnal batances - 990,097 2,034 992,131
Tolat Assels $ 6,120,109 § 2,058,622 $ 8,187,631
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Llabllities:

Payroll taxes payable $ 89711 § - % 8,971

Internat balancas 2,034 990,097 992,131
Tolal Llabililles 11,006 990,097 1,001,102
Nel Assets;

Reslrictad for;

Other purposes 1,794,564 - 1,794,664

Unrestricted 4,323,640 1,068,425 5,391,965
Total Nat Assets ‘ 6,118,104 1,088,426 7,186,529
Total Llabilltles and Net Assels $ 6,120,109 $ 2,058,522 § 8,187,631

See accompanying notes to hasic financial statements.
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CITY OF DUBOIS, PENNSYLVANIA

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
CASH BASIS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

Net (Expense) Revenus and
Changes in Net Assels

Program Revenues Primary Government
Operating CapHal
Charges for Granls and Grants and  Governmental Business-
Functlions/Programs Expenses Services Conliibulions  Contributions Aclivilles type Aclivilles Total .
Primary Government:
Governmental aclivilles:

Ganeral governmant $ 1200892 § 136557 § - % - $ (1,064,335 $ - § (1,064,335)

Public safely 1,915,704 498,854 - 40,000 (1,376,850) - (1,376,850)

Publlc works 1,434,434 - - - {1,434,434) - {1,434,434)
Communily and economlic

development 1,777,089 12,000 733,409 900,519 (131,141) - {131,141}

Culture and racrealfon 733,587 58,760 - - (674,819) - (674,819)

Princlpal on long-term dabt 116,638 - - - (116,638) - (116,638)

Interest on long-term deb! 27,665 - - - (27,565) - {27,665)

Total governmantal aclivilles 7,205,869 706,179 733,400 940,619 {4,826,782) - (4,825,782)

Businese-type acllvities:

Sewer 3,062,185 2,487,140 - 496,450 - (78,595) {78,595)

Water 3,435,273 3,034,429 - - - {400,844) {400,844)

Total business-lype aclivities 6,497 450 5,521,560 - 496,450 - (479,439) (479,439)

Total Primary Government $ 13,703,347 $ 6,227,748 $ 733409 $ 1,436,960 (4,825,782) {479,439) (5,305,221)

Goneral Revanues:

Taxes:
Real eslate 1,240,697 - 1,240,897
Resldence 10,802 - 18,802
Per caplila 18,803 - 18,803
Real astate transfer 56,482 - 58,482
Earned Incorme 599,329 - 599,329
Local services lax 332,148 - 332,148
Intergovernmental revenues 477,325 - 477,325
Interest 162,320 1,288 163,608
Sales of capital assets 216,804 2,159 219,063
Misceflanacus 1,611,496 - 1,611,496
Transfors 1,294,113 (1,294,113) -
Total General Ravenues and Transfers 8,028,600 {1,290,666) 4,737,943
Change in Net Assels 1,202,827 (1,770,106) (567,270)
Net Assets - Boglnning 4,915,277 2,838,630 7,753,607
Nel Assals - Ending $ 6118104 S 1068425 § 7,186,520

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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ASSETS
Cash and cash Investmenls
Invesimenls
Interfund racelvables
Tolal Assels

CITY OF DUBOIS, PENNSYLVANIA

BALANGE SHEET
CASH BASIS

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

December 31, 2010

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Llabililes:
Payroll {axes payable
Interfund payables
Total Llabliities

Fund Balances:
Unreservad, reported In:
General fund
Speclal revenue funds
Total Fund Balances

Total Llabllitles end Fund Balancas

Community Other Total
Capllal Development Governmental Governmental

General Reserve Block Grant Funds Funds
$ 4023652 $ 618601 § 26 ¢ 3158375 5 4,057,743
281,269 - - 281,269
367,671 967,280 - - 1,334,051
$ 4672692 $ 1486971 § 26 § 315,376 § 6,473,063
$ 89711 § - 8 - § - 8,971
340,081 - 1,159 5,648 346,888
349,052 - 1,169 5,648 366,869
4,323,540 - - - 4,323,540
- 1,485,971 {1,134} 309,727 1,794,564
4,323 540 1,486,971 (1,134} 300,727 6,118,104
$ 4872592 $ 1485971 § 25 § 3153756 _$ 6,473,963
F——————————————— § —— N — ——— —____§ ___  ———

See accompanying notes te basic financial statements.
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CITY OF DUBOIS, PENNSYLVANIA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
CASH BASIS

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

Community Other Tolal
Capllal Development Governmental Governmenlal
General Reserve Block Grant Funds Funds
Revenuas:;
Taxes $ 2286461 § - 8 - 8 - § 2,266,461
Intergovernmental 763,619 - 733,409 654,325 2,151,263
Chargaes for services 557,155 - - - 557,166
Licenses and permits 74,590 - - - 74,590
Fines and forfelluros 74,434 - - - 74,424
Interest and renlals 162,692 9,299 - 1,417 163,308
Miscellaneous 1,610,508 - - 2 1,610,508
Total Revenues 5,499,267 9,299 733,400 655,744 6,697,709
Expendilures:
Cuirent;
General government 690,244 - - 24,895 715,140
Public safaly 1,853,673 - - - 1,863,873
Public works 1,095,931 - - 301,526 1,397,456
Community and economic devalopment - - 727,506 375,438 1,102,944
Culture and recreation 526,843 - - 180,001 706,844
Debt service:
Principal 116,638 - - - 116,638
Interest 27,565 - - - 27,666
Capltal outlay 922,567 - - - 922,567
Other 363,062 - - - 363,062
Total Expendilures 5,596,523 - 727,506 881,860 7,205,089
Excess {Deficlency) of
Revenues over Expenditures (97,266) 9,299 5,903 {226,116) {308,180)
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Capital assets salas 216,894 - - - 216,894
Transfers in 2,224,863 - - 147,487 2,372,350
Transfers out (78,431) - - {999,806) (1,078,237)
Tolal Other Financing Sourcas (Usas) 2,363,326 - - (852,319) 1,611,007
Excess (Deficlency) of Revenues
and Qther Sources Qver
Expendilures and Other Uses 2,266,060 9,299 5,903 {1,078,435) 1,202,827
Fund Balancas-Beginning 2,057,480 1,476,672 (7,037) 1,388,162 4,915,277

Fund Balances-Ending

$ 4323540 g 1,485,971

See accompanying notes to basle financlal statements.
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CITY OF DUBOIS, PENNSYLVANIA

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
CASH BASIS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

December 31, 2010

Businass-Type Aclivities - Enterprise Funds

Sewer Water Total
ASSETS
Cuirent assets: ‘
Cash $ 233988 §$ 1,822502 $ 2,056,488
Interfund recelvables ' 15,044 892 16,736
Total current asssts 249,030 1,823,194 2,072,224
Tolal Assets $ 249030 $ 1823194 _$§ 2072224
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Current liabililles;
Interfund payables $ 619520 $ 484,279 $ 1,003,799
Total current liabilities 519,620 484,279 1,003,799
Total Liabilities 519,520 484,279 1,003,798
Net assets: _
Unrestricted {270,490) 1,338,915 1,068,425
Total net assets {270,490) 1,338,915 1,088,425
Total Liablliities and Net Assets $ 249030 $ 1823194 _3 2072224

See accompanylng notes to basic financial statements.

9




CITY OF DUBOIS, PENNSYLVANIA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
CASH BASIS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

Operating Revenues;
Charges for services
Tolal Cperating Revenues

Operating Expenses:
Public works
Total Operaling Expenses

Operating Income

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses);
Granis
Capital asset sales
interest Income
Capital outlay
Debt service principal
Debt service interest
Total Non-Operating Revenues {Expenses)

Income Before Transfers

Transfers In
Transfers Out

Change in Net Assels
Total Net Assels - Beglnning

Tolal Net Assels - Ending

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements,
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Business-Type Aclivities - Enterprise Funds

Sewer Water Total

$ 2487140 § 3034429 $ 5,521,569
2,487 140 3,034,429 6,521,569
1,785,226 1,598,838 3,384,064
1,786,226 1,598,838 3,384,064
701,914 1,435,691 2,137,605
496,450 - 496,460

- 2,159 2,159

738 550 1,288
(850,969) {1,063,849) (1,904,818)
{241,818) (291 1248) {633,066)
(184,172) {491,338) {675,510)
(779,771) (1,833,726) (2,613,497)
(77,857) (398,1356) (475,992)
(420,667} (873,446) {1,204,113)
{498,524) {1,271,581) (1,770,105}
228,034 2,610,496 2,838,530

§ g270!490! $ 1338916 $ 1,068,425




CITY OF DUBOIS, PENNSYLVANIA

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

CASH BASIS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

Business-Type Aclivilies - Enterprise Funds

Sewer Water Total
Cash Flows from Operating Actlvities:

Recelpts from cuslomers $ 2,487,140 3 3,034420 $ 5,521,669

Payments to suppliers {1,238,404) (1,012,152) {2,250,556)

Payments to employess {546,822) (686,686) {1,133,508)

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 701,914 1,436,691 2,137,606
Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities:

Transfers out (420,667) {B873,446) (1,294,113)

{Increase) decreass in Interfund recoeivables {410) {692) (1,102)

Increase (decrease) in interfund payables 129,211 7,424 136,635

Net Cash Used by Noncapital Financlng Aclivities (291,866) (866,714) (1,158,580)
Cash Flows from Capilal and Related Financing Aclivities:

Acquisition and constructlon of capital assets (850,969) (1,053,849) (1,904,818)

Capital asset sales - 2,159 2,159

Grants 496,450 - 496,450

Principal pald on debt {241,818) (291,248) (633,066}

Interest paid {184,172) {491,338) {676,510)

Net Cash Used by Capilal and Related (780,509) {1,834,278) {2,614,785)
Financing Activities
Cash Flows from Investing Aclivities:

Interest 738 550 1,288
Net Decrease In Cash (369,723) (1,264,849) (1,634,672)
Cash:

Beglnning 603,709 3,087,351 3,691,060

Ending $ 233986 $§ 1822602 § 2,056,488

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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CITY OF DUBOIS, PENNSYLVANIA

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

December 31, 2010

Non-Unlformed

Employees Police
ASSETS Pension Plan  Retlrement Plan  Agency Funds
Cash and cash equivalents $ - % 268475 44,772
Invastmenlts:
Investment assets with PMRS, al falr value 5,226,839 - -
Investment assels, at fair value - 4,855,683 -
Tolal investmenls 5,228,839 4,055,683 -
Total Assels $ 5226839 § 5124058 § 44,772
LIABILITIES
Escrow llabililles $ - % 18,620 & 44,772
Total Llabililies - 18,620 _§ 44,772
NET ASSETS
Held in trust for pension benefits $ 5226839 §& 5105438

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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CITY OF DUBOIS, PENNSYLVANIA

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

Non-Unlformed

Employees Police
ADDITIONS Pension Plan  Relirement Plan
Coniribulions:
Plan members $ 72,006 $ 56,869
Employer 20 26,769
State 58,803 184,163
Miscellaneous 3,902 -
Total contributions 134,730 267,791
Net Investment Income:
Net appreclation (depracfation) In fair value of Investments - 434,624
Interest/dividends 309,704 142,713
Invesiment expenses - (34,208)
Total investment income 309,704 ‘642,939
Less Investment expenses . - -
Net investment income 309,704 542,939
Total Addillons 444 434 810,730
PEDUCTIONS
Benefils 749,353 299,190
Adminlstratlve expenses 1,460 -
Allocated insurance premlums 474 -
Total Deductions 751,287 299,190
Change in Net Assels (306,863) 611,640
Net Assets-Beginning 5,533,692 4,593,808
Net Asaels—Enalng $ 6226839 $% 5105438

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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CITY OF DUBOIS, PENNSYLVANIA
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2010

Note 1 — Reporling Entity

The Cily of DuBols, Pennsylvania, a city of the third class, was created by charter granted by the
Governor of the Commonweaith of Pennsylvania on December 28, 1914. The City is a municlpal
corporation governed by an elected mayor and a four member council.

The financlal statements Include only the primary government of the Cily, which consists of all
funds, organizations, institutions, agencles, depariments, and offices that comprise the City's legal
entity. The primary government financial statements do not include financial data for the City's
legally separate component units or joint ventures/jointly governed organizations.

Note 2 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements of the City have been prepared on the basis of cash receipts and
disbursements, which differs from accounting principles generally accepted In the United States of
America (GAAP). The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Is the accepted
standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.

Private sector standards of accounting and financial reporting Issued prior to December 31, 1989
generally are followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the
extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board. Governments also have the option of following subsequent private
sector guidance for thelr business-type aclivitles and enterprise funds, subject to the same
limitation. The City has elected not to follow subsequent private sector guidance,

The financial statements include government-wide financial statements prepared on the basis of
cash receipts and disbursements and fund financial stalements which present information for
individual major funds rather than by fund type. Nonmajor funds are aggregated and presented
in a single column. Fiduciary funds are reported by type. The more significant accounting policies
of the City are described below.

A. Basis of Presentation
The Cily's basic financial statements consist of government-wide financial statements, including
a statement of net assets and a statement of activilies, and fund financlal statements which
provide a more detailed level of financlal Informatlon.

Government-Wide Financial Statements _

The statement of net assets and the statement of activities display information about the City as
a whole. These statements include the financlal activities of the primary government, except for
fiduclary funds. The statements distinguish batween governmental and business-type activities.
Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and
other nonexchange revenues. Business-type actlvities are financed In whole or In part by fees
charged to external parties for goods or services,
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CITY OF DUBOIS, PENNSYLVANIA

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2010

Note 2 — Summary of Significant Accounting Pollcles (Continued)

A. Basls of Presentation (Continued)

Government-Wide Financial Statements (Continued)

The statement of net assets presents the financial condition of the governmental and business-
type activities of the City at year end. The statement of activities presents a comparison
between direct expenses and program revenues for each program or funclion of the City's
governmental aclivities and business-ype activities. Direct expenses are those that are
specifically associated with a service, program, or department and, therefore, clearly identifiable
to a particular function. Program revenues include charges pald by the recipient of the goods or
services offered by the program, grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the
operational or capltal requirements of a particular program, and interest earned on grants that is
required to be used to support a padicular program. Revenues that are not classified as
program revenues are presented as general revenues of the City. The comparison of direct
expenses with program revenues identifies the extent to which each govemmental program or
business activity is self-financing or draws from the general revenues of the City.

Fund Fihanclal Statements

The City segregates transactions related to certain City functions or activities In separate funds
in order to ald financial management and to demonstrate legal compliance. Fund financial
statements are designed to present financial information of the City at this more detailed level.
Funds are organized into three categorles: governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary. The focus
of governmental and propristary fund financial statements Is on major funds. Each major fund [s
presented in a separate column. A fund is considered major if it is the primary operating fund of
the City, or if the fund meets the following criterla: total assets, liabilities, revenues, or
expenditures/expenses of that individual governmental or enterprise fund are at least 10 percent
of the corresponding total for all funds of that category or type; and total assets, liabilities,
revenuss, or expenditures/expenses of the individual governmental fund or enterprise fund are
at least 5 percent of the corresponding total for all governmental and enterprise funds combined.

Nonmajor funds are aggregated and presented in a single column. Fiduclary funds are reported

hy type.

B. Fund Accounting

The City uses funds to maintain its fnancial records during the year. A fund is defined as a fiscal
and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts. There are three categorles of funds:
governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary.

Governmental Funds

Governmental funds are those through which most governmental functions of the City are
financed. The measurement focus of governmental funds Is on the sources, uses, and balances
of current financial resources. The following are the Clty's major governmental funds:
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CITY OF DUBQIS, PENNSYLVANIA

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2010

Note 2 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policles (Continued)

B. Fund Accounting (Continued)
Governmental Funds (Continued)

General Fund

The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the City. This fund is used to account for
all financial resources not accounted for in other funds. All general tax revenues and other
receipts that are not restricted by law or contractual agreement to some other fund are
accounted for in this fund. General operating expenditures, fixed charges, and capital
improvement costs that are not paid through other funds are paid from the General Fund.

Capital Reserve Fund

The Capital Reserve Fund accounts for resources accumulated and reserved for capital
projecis and expenditures and to fund projects financed by intergovernmental grants and
revenues.

Community Block Grant Fund

The Community Development Block Grant fund accounts for federal ald revenues received
-from the Pennsylvania Depariment of Community and Economic Development pursuant to
the Community Development Block Grants/States Program administered by the United
States Department of Housing and Urban Development.

The other governmental funds of the City account for grants and other resources whose use is
restricted for a particular purpose and the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of
debt.

Proprietary Funds
Proprietary fund reporting focuses on the determination of operating incoms, changes in net
asseis, financial position, and cash flows.

Enterprise Funds

Enterprise funds are used o account for operations that are financed in a manner simftar to
private business enterprises, where the Intent is that costs of providing goods or services o
the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user
charges, The Sewage and Water Funds are the Cily's major enterprise funds.

Fiduciary Funds

Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held by the City in a trustee capacity or as an
agent for individuals, private organizations, and other governments. Fiduciary funds are not
included in the government-wide financlal statements.

Pension Trust Fund

The Pension Trust Fund accounts for the assets of the City's Non-Uniformed Employees’
Pension and Police Pension plans.
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CITY OF DUBOIS, PENNSYLVANIA

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2010

Note 2 — Summary of Sianificant Accounting Policies (Continued)

B. Fund Accounting (Continusd)
Fiduciary Funds (Continued)

Agency Funds

Agency Funds are custodial in nalure with assets and liabllities being equal and do not
Involve measurement of results of operation, The Cily's Fire Loss Escrow Fund Is an agency
fund.

C. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting
Measurement focus refers to what is being measured; basis of accounting refers to when
revenues and expenditures are recognized In the accounts and reported in the financial
statements. Basls of accounting relates to the timing of the measurement made, regardless of
the measurement focus applied.

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the cash recelpts and disbursements basis of accounting. The
economic resources measurement focus means all assets and Ilabilities {(whether current or
non-current) are included on the statement of net assets and the statement of activities present
increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in net total assets. Under the cash receipts and
disbursements basis of accounting, which is a comprehensive basis of accounting other than
accounting princlples generally accepted in the United States of America, revenues are
recognized when recelved and expenses are recognized when pald.

Governmental and proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the current financial
resources measurement focus and are accounted for using the cash recelpts and
disbursements basis of accounting. The current financial resources measurement focus means
only current financlal assets and liabllittes are included on the balance sheet and inflows
(revenues and other financing sources) and outflows (expenditures and other financing uses} of
expendable financial resources are included on the statements of revenues, expenditures, and
changes in fund balances.

As a result of the use of the cash receipts and disbursements basis of accounting, certain assets
and their revenues (such as accounts receivable and revenus for billed or provided services not
yet coltected) and certain liabillties and their related expenses (such as accounts payable and
expenses for goods or services received but not yet pald, and accrued expenses and liabilities)
are not recorded in these financtal statements.

Fiduclary fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basls of accounting, except for the recognition of certain liabilities of
defined benefit pension plans. GASB Statement No. 25, Financlal Reporting for Defined Benefit
Pension Plans and Noles Disclosures for Defined Contribution Plans, requires that plan liabilities
be recognized In the Pension Trust Fund for benefits and refunds to plan members and
beneficiaries when due and payable in accordance with the terms of the plan,
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CITY OF DUBOIS, PENNSYLVANIA

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Deacember 31, 2010

Note 2 ~ Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

C. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting (Continued)

If the City utllized ihe basis of accounting recognized as generally accepted, the fund financial
statements for governmental funds would use the modified accrual basis of accounting, while
the fund financlal stalements for proprietary funds would use the accrual basis of accounting. All
government-wide financial statemants would be presented on the accrual basls of accounting.

D. Interfund Activity .
Interfund activity is reported as loans, services provided, reimbursements, or transfers, as
applicable. Loans are reported as interfund receivables and payables on the fund financial
statements. Interfund receivables and payables are eliminated on the government-wlde
statement of net assets, Services provided are treated as revenues and expenditures/expenses.
Reimbursements are when one fund incurs a cost, charges the appropriate benefiting fund and
reduces its related cost as a reimbursement. All other interfund activity is treated as transfers,

E. Not Assets
Net assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities. Net assets are reported as
restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use either through the enabling legislation
adopted by the City or through external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, or laws or
regulations of other governments. The City's policy [s to first apply restricted resources when an
expense is Incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net assets are
available.

F. Use of Estimates
The preparation of the financial statements. requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying
notes. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

Note 3 — Cash Deposits and Investments

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania statutes provide for the Invesiment of moneys of governmental
and proprietary funds into certain authorized investment types, including United States Treasury
bills, short-term obligations of the United States Government or its agencies or instrumentalities,
obligations of the United States of America or any of its agencies or instrumentalities backed by the
full faith and credit of the United States of America, obligations of the Commonwealth of
Pennsylvania or any of its agencles ar instrumentalities backed by the full faith and credit of the
Commonwealth, obligations of any political subdivision of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania or
any of it agencles or instrumentalities backed by the full faith and credit of the political subdivision,
and insured or collateralized time deposits and certificates of deposit. The stalutes do not prescribe
regulations related to demand deposits; howaver, they do allow the pooling of governmental funds
for investment purposes.
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CITY OF DUBOIS, PENNSYLVANIA

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2010

Note 3 — Cash Deposits and Investments (Continued)

In addition to the investments authorized for governmental and proprietary funds, investments of
the City's Pension Plans may also be made in legal investments permitted under the Pennsylvania
Fiduclaries in corporate stocks and bonds, real estate and other Investments consistent with sound
business practice.

The deposit and investment policy of the City adheres to the Commonweaith statutes and prudent
business practice. There were no deposlt or investment transactions during the year that were In
violation of either the Commonwealth statules or the policy of the City.

Cash Deposits

Cash deposits are categorized to give an indication of the level of custodlal credit risk assumed by
the Cily at December 31, 2010. Category 1 Includes cash deposits which are insured by the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or collateralized with securities held by the City or by Its
agent in the City's name. Category 2 includes cash deposits which are collateralized with securities
held by the pledging financial Institution’s trust department or agent in the City's name. Category 3
includes cash deposits which are uninsured and uncollateralized, or were collaterallzed In
accordance with Act 72, a Commonwealth statute which permits the financlal institution to pool
collateral for all governmental deposits and have the collateral held by an approved custodlan in
the institution's name.

At December 31, 2010, the carrying amount of the Clty's cash deposits with financlal institutions
‘was $6,959,003 and the financial Instltutions balances totaled $8,272,568, which Is categorized as
follows: . : |

Category 1 $ 622,664
Category 3 : 7,650,004
Total Cash Deposits $ 8272568

Investments — Non-Uniformed Employees’ Pension Plan

The Investments of the Non-Uniformed Employees' Pension Plan are reported at fair value, and do
not represent spacific identifiable investment securitles, as they are pooled for investment purposes
with the Pennsylvania Municlpal Retirement System (PMRS). Disclosures required by GASB
Statement No. 3 for aggregate PMRS Investments are Included in PRMS's separately issued
Comprehensive Annual Financlal Report, '

Invesiments — Government-wide and Pollce Retirement Plan

The Investments of tha City are reported at cost. Falr value reporting for securitles traded on a
national or international exchange are valued at the last reported sales price at current exchange
rates. Investments that do not have an established market are reported at estimated falr value.

The Investments of the Police Retirement Plan are reported at fair value. Securities traded on a
national or Internatlonal exchange are valued at the last reported sales price at current exchange
rates. Investments that do not have an established market are reported at estimated fair value.

19




CITY OF DUBOIS, PENNSYLVANIA

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Dacember 31, 2010

Note 3 — Cash Deposits and Investments (Continued)

Investments — Government-wide and Police Retirement Plan (Conlinued)

Custodial credit rlsk is the risk that the City will not be able to recover the value of ils investment or
collateral securities that are in possession of an outside party. The City does not have a written
investment policy on custodial cradit risk. The fair value of the Cily's government-wide securities
and the Police Retirement Plan securities held by a counterparty are as follows:

Government- Police
wide Relirement Total
FDIC Insured Deposits $ 1,265 $ - 3 1,265
Certificates of Deposit 299,180 - 299,180
Municlpal Debt - 911,615 911,515
Corporate Debt - 1,272,134 1,272,134
Equities - 2,191,683 2,191,683
Converlible Bonds - 164,588 164,588
Exchange-iraded Funds - 325,663 325,663
Total $ 300445 $ 4855583 § 5,156,028

Interest rate risk Is the risk that changes in Interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. Investments held for longer periods are subject to increased risk of adverse interest
rate changes. The City does not have a wrilten investment policy on interest rate risk. The City's
invesiments subject to interest rate risk at December 31, 2010 included the following:

Remalning Malurities (Years)
1-5

Invesiment Type Falr Value Less than 1 6-10 Mora than 10
Certificates of Deposil $ 289,180 $ - 3 299,180 § - % -
Municipal Debl 911,616 - 362,615 472,440 76,480
Corporate Debt 1,272,134 = 623,682 488,271 160,281

Total by Maturily Dales $ 2402820 § -~ $ 1285377 $ 060711 § 236,741

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparly to an investment will not fulfill its
obligations. The City does not have a writtan Investment policy on credit risk. At December 31,
2010, the credit quality ratings of the Pension Trust Fund's debt securities are as follows:

Investment Type _FairValue  _ Rating
Municipal Dabt $ 199613 AA
Municipal Debl 432,252 A
Municipal Debt 279,650 NIA

Total Municipal Debt 911,615
Corporale Debt 86,495 AAA
Corporale Debt 78,641 AA
Corporale Debt 264,172 A
Corporale Debt 769,040 BBB
Corporate Dabt 74,786 NIA
Tolal Corporate Debl 1.272134
Total § 2,183,649
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CITY OF DUBOIS, PENNSYLVANIA

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2010

Note 3 — Cash Deposits and Investments (Continued)

Investments — Government-wide and Pollce Relirement Plan (Continued)

Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss atiributed to the magnitude of an investment in a
single Issuer. The City does not have a written investment policy on concentration of credit risk.
There were no investments other than certificates of deposit, US Government and US Government
guaranteed obligations, mutual funds, or other pooled investments, in any one issuer that
represented 5 parcent or more of total investments at December 31, 2010,

Note 4 — Taxes

Real Estate Property Taxes

Real estate property taxes altach as an enforceable lien on properly on January first. Taxes are
billed on or about March 1, with a 2% discount through April 30; face amount due from May 1
through June 30; and 10% penally added after July 1. The Clearfleld County Assessrent Office
calculates the yearly tax levy and distributes the individual {ax duplicates to the City's elected tax
collector. The tax collecior is responsible for tax collections.

The Cily is permitted by law to levy separate and different rates of taxation for general City
purposes on all real estate classified as land, exclusive of the buildings thereon, and on all real
estate classified as buildings on land. As a result, higher rates may be levied on land if the
respective rates on lands and buildings are so fixed so as not to constitute a greater levy In the
aggregate than a rate of 25 mills on both land and buildings. Additional levies for certain other
purposes are permitted at specific maximum millages as provided for in the City Code.

Assessed value Is 26% of market value. The City's net taxable assessed value for 2010 was
$56,550,365. The real estate fax millage rates for 2010 was;

Taxable Assessed Value Purposes Millage
Land General 88.00
Bulldings and improvements General 2.00
Total real estate Library and Recreatlon 3.50

Resldence and Per Capita Taxes

Residence and per capita taxes are collected at various times during the year by the City tax
collector. Each tax is In the amount of $5.00 per taxpayer. Various Income and age provisions
determine individual tax liability.

Local Services Taxes

Emergency and Municipal Services taxes are also collected at various times by the City tax
collector, The amount imposed on taxable residents Is $47.00,

Earned Income Taxes

The Clty aiso levies a one-half percent tax on the annual earned income of City residents, The tax
Is collected at various times throughout the year and remitted to the Clty by an appointed collection
agency.
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CITY OF DUBOIS, PENNSYLVANIA

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2010

Note 5 = Interfund Balances

Interfund balances at December 31, 2010 consisted of the following:

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount
General Fund Community Development Block Grant  $ 1,169
Fire Training School 5,648
Sewer 176,670
Water 184,194
Capital Reserve General Fund 338,047
Sewer 342,158
Waler 287,075
Sewer General Fund 2,034
Walter : 13,010
Water Sewer 692
Total $ 1,360,687

Interfund balances resulted from the timing differences between the dates that interfund goods and
services are provided or reimbursable expendilures occur, transactions are recorded in the
accounting system, and payments between funds are made.

Note 6 — Interfund Transfers

Interfund transfers for the year ended December 31, 2010 consisied of the following:

Transfer In Fund Transfer Qut Fund Amount
General Fund Land Sale Fund $ 66,100
Pentz Run Bridges Fund 814,001
Sewer Fund 400,000
Urban Development Grant Fund 94,483
Water Fund 850,279
Community Revilalization Fund General Fund 523
Farmers Natlonal Fund Community Revilalizallon Fund 10,632
EDA Grant Fund 8,665
Public Safety Fund 5,025
Health Insurance Fund General Fund 45,683
Sewer Fund 20,667
Waler Fund 23,167
Liquid Fuels Tax Fund General Fund 32,326
Total $ 2,372,350

Transfers are used to move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires to collect them
to the fund that statute or budget requires to expend them and use unrestricted revenues collected
In the general fund to finance various programs accounted for In other funds In accordance with
budgetary authorizations,
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CITY OF DUBOIS, PENNSYLVANIA

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2010

Note 7 —Debt

Short-Term Debt

The City has recelved short-term interim financing from S&T Bank for a Sewer Replacement
Project to be permanently financed with a loan and grant from Pennsyivania Infrastructure
Investment Authority. The approved amount of the interim financing was $3,126,291, with a
maturity date of November 3, 2009, The note was amended on October 5, 2008 to a non-revolving
straight line Credit Note In the original available principal of $3,126,291, with $108,760 indisbursed
principal reserved for the funding of Letier of Credit, together with a variable interest rate, which
was 3.25 percent at December 31, 2010. The amendment also extended the maturily date to
November 3, 2011. There was no outstanding balance on the short-termi note at December 31,
2010, and no advances or payments during the year then ended.

Long-Term Debt
The following presents the changes In long-term debt of the City during the year ended December
31, 2010:

Princlpal
Beglnning Ending Due within
Governmental Activitles Balance Additions = _Reductlons Balance One Year
Notes payable $ 1210397 $ - $ (116638) $ 1093759 $ 112,550
Governmenlal activitles long- _
term deht 1,210,397 - (116,638) _ 1,093,759 112,550
Business-Type Activities
Notes payable 8,726,594 - (368,087) 8,338,627 400,648
Bonds payable 7.645.000 - (146,000} _ 7,500,000 145,000
Business-type activitles long-
term debt 16,371,694 - {633,087) _16.838,627 545,648
Total long term debt $17.681,991 $ - $ (649,705) $16.932,286 $ 668,198

A summary of long-term debt outstanding at December 31, 2010, follows:

Amount of Balance
Original Issue Outstanding
$ 100,000 Pennsylvania Emergency Management Agency loan for assistance $ 2,562

with the purchase of fire apparalus, repayable at $644 monlhly May
1, 1996 through April 1, 2011 with 2 percent interest.

126,010 General Obligation Note to Pannsylvania Infrastructure Invesiment 21,098
Authority April 22, 1997, street construction loan, repayable monthly
at $728 with 1.00 percent Interest until May 1, 2002, and $739 with
1.28 percent Interest through May 1, 2013 maturity.
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CITY OF DUBQIS, PENNSYLVANIA

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2010

Note 7 —Debt (Continued)

Long-Term Debt (Continued)

Amount of Balance
Original Issue Quistanding

$ 753,150 Guaranteed Revenue Nota issued to the Pennsylvania Infrastructure $ 114,280
Investment Authorlty, Aprll 22, 1997 for sewage lreatment plant
improvements, principat reduced to $654,937 by Confirmation and
Ralification Agreement of May 4, 2002, repayable monthly at $3,748
through May 1, 2002 with one percent Interest and at $3,819 monthly
with 1,28 percent interest from June 1, 2002 through June 1, 2013
and a $1,607 payment on July 1, 2013.

100,000 Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, Emergency Management Agency, 47 595
June 21, 2002 joan for partial cost of fire apparatus, repayable in
monthly installments of $644 with 2 percent interest for fifteen years
from August 1, 2002,

182,207 Guaranteed Revenue Note issued to the Pennsylvanla Infrastructure 104,631
invesiment Authority, Oclober 3, 2002 to finance sewer system
improvements, funds of $9,110 were not advanced, interest through
January 31, 2008 was 1.0 percent, and monthly payments are $841,
at February 1, 2008, interest increased to 1.269 percent and monthly
payments are $858 through December 1, 2022,

434,723 Guaranteed Revenue Note issued lo the Pennsylvania Infrastructure 323,99

Investment Authority, July 12, 2006 to finance water supply system
construction and replacement (Backwash Tank Project), interest at
1.35 percent during six months construction and the first sixty months
of amortization and 2.622 percent during the remalning one hundred
menths of the loan term. Interast only payments through January 1,
2007, $2,146 due monthly from February 1, 2007 through January 1,
2012 and $2,340 per month is payable from February 1, 2012 until
March 1, 2026 maturity. Loan advances of $119,607 were made in
2008,

1,484,050 Guaranteed Ravenue Note Issued to the Pennsylvania Infrastruclure 1,216,088
Investment Authorlty (Pennvest) for a loan to partially finance a
sewer system construction project, dated August 17, 2006
simultaneous with a grant from Pennvesl of $1,642,241 for the
project. Interest Is 1.262 percent during the initial sixty six months
which consists of conslruction time and the first five years of
amortization, 2,416 percent during the remalnlng one hundred eighty
months. Interest only Is payable until February 1, 2007, $6,993 is due
monthly beginning March 1, 2007 and ending February 1, 2012 and
from March 1, 2012 through February 1, 2027 maturity $7,603 Is
payable monthly.
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CITY OF DUBOIS, PENNSYLVANIA

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Dacember 31, 2010

Note 7 ~Debt {Conlinued)

Long-Term Debt (Continued)

Amount of
Original lssue

$ 1,728,413

2,490,000

3,300,000

7,645,000

814,000

General Obligation Note Issued to S&T Bank, dated September 28,
2007, for an unsecured loan to salisfy the remalning balance of the
Washington Counly Authority Capltal Funding Revenue Bonds
relating lo prior year water and waslewater projects. Repayable at
$11,389 monthly with Interest of 4.91 percent through malurity date
of September 28, 2027. The Sewer Fund is responsible for 66% of
the debt with the Water fund being responslble for the remalning 36%
of debt.

General Obligation Note Issued to S&T Bank, dated September 22,
2008 for an unsecured loan for the Flexnet meter system installation
project. Repayable at $18,834 monthly with a current interest rate of
4.27% and a malurity date of September 22, 2023. The Sewer Fund
s responsible for 43% of the debt, the Water Fund Is responsible for
43% of the debt and the General Fund Is responsible for 14% of the
debl.

General Obligation Nole lo S&T Bank dated December 23, 2008 to
salisfy the remaining balance of the Guaranteed Waler Revenue
Bond to United Stales Department of Agriculture, Rural Economic
and Community Development Service relating to the upgrade of the
water distribution center. Secured by receipts and revenues from its
water system. Repayable at $17,698 monthly with Interest currently
at 4.04% and a maturlty date of December 23, 2033.

General Obligalion Bond, Serles of 2009, used for capltal projects,
including Improvements to the reservolr and Cily's water system,
dated February 19, 2009 are secured the full faith, credit and taxing
power of the City. The bonds are scheduled to mature at various
times through December 15, 2034 and bear Interest rates varying
from 2.000% to 5,3756%.

Commonwealth of Pennsyivanla, Departiment of Transportation, loan
for Infrastructure improvements, daled August 5, 2009, repayable In
monthly installments of $7,354 with 1.626 percent interest and a
maturity date of September 9, 2019.

Total Long-Term Debt Qutstanding
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Balance
Quistanding

$ 1,649,570

2,211,089

3,128,431

7,500,000

712,961




CITY OF DUBOIS, PENNSYLVANIA

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2010

Note 7 —Debt (Continusd)

The aggregate annual debt service requirements applicable to the City's bonded debt and notes
payable is summarized:

Year Principal Interest Total
2011 $ 658,198 $ 686,172 $ 1,344,370
2012 670,160 681,722 1,351,882
2013 664,847 663,747 1,328,594
2014 653,921 642,768 1,296,689
2015 676,807 620,723 1,297,630
2016-2020 3,614,506 2,725,758 6,340,263
2021-2025 3,649,110 1,996,832 5,646,942
2026-2030 3,364,950 1,230,192 4,695,142
2031-2034 2 979,788 374,153 3,353,941

$16.932206 2 § 9622067  §$26,504.363

Note 8 — Non-Uniformed Employaes’ Pension Plan

Plan Description

The Non-Uniformed Employees' Pension Plan s a single-employer defined benefit pension plan.
The plan parlicipates in the Pennsyivania Municipal Retirement System (PMRS), which is an agent
mulliple-employer public employee retirement system that acts as a common investment and
administrative agent for participating municlpal pension plans. PMRS issues a separate
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR). A copy of the CAFR may be obtained by
contacting the PMRS accounting office. The plan provides retirement, disabliity, and death benefits
to plan members and their beneficiaries. Vesling occurs for permanent employees after twelve
years of credited service.

Membership
Membership of the plan consisted of the following at December 31, 2010:
Retired Members and Beneficiaries 32
Terminated plan members entitled to but not yet
receiving benefits 3
Active Members 39
Total Membership 74

Funding Polic
Members are required to contribute 3.5% of thelr gross compensation, with the City providing

annual contributions sufficient to satisfy the actuarially determined contribution requirements.
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2010

Note 8 — Non-Uniformed Employees’ Pension Plan {Continued)

Acluarial Valuation Information
Actuarial valuations are performed biannually. The following methods and assumptions as of the
latest actuarial valuation date were used to determine the Annual Required Conlribution for 2010:

Valuation Date January 1, 2009
Actuaria! Cost Method Entry Age Normal
Asset Valuation Method Falr Value
Amortization Method Level Dollar Closed
Remaining Amortization Period 14.33 Years
Actuarial Assumptions;

Investment Rate of Return 6,00%

Projected Salary Increases 5.20%

Schedule of Annual Required Contributions

Annual Actuarial

Required Valuation Data Parcentage
Year Conlribution for Contributions Contributed
2006 $ 46,6876 2003 100%
2007 67,898 2005 100%
2008 74,669 2005 100%
2009 69,798 2007 100%
2010 58,803 2007 100%

Note 9 — Police Pensich Plan

Plan Descriptlon

The Police Pension Plan is a single-employer defined benefit pension plan established by the City
to provide retirement, disability, and death benefits to plan members and their beneficiaries. All full-
time members of the police force jon the plan upon hire. The Police Pension Plan was amendsd
and restated effective April 12, 2010. The City has delegated to Mockenhaupt Benefits Group the
authority to manage certain plan assets. Mockenhaupt Benefits Group issues separate financial
stalements of the Police Pension Plan. The Police Penslon Plan financlal statements- can be
obtalned by contacting Mockenhaupt Benefits Group.

Membership
Membership of the plan consisted of the following at January 1, 2009, the date of the latest
actuarial valuation:

Retired Members and Beneficiaries 1
Terminated plan members entitled to but not yet
receiving benefits '

Active Members

Total Membership
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CITY OF DUBOQIS, PENNSYLYANIA
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2010

Note 9 — Pollce Pension Plan (Continued)
Funding Policy

Members are required to contribute 3% of their gross compensation plus a $5 per month police
increment to the plan. Additionally, the City must provide annual contributions sufficlent to satisfy
the actuarially determined contribution requirements.

Actuarial Valuation Information

Acluarial valuations are performed annually. The following methods and assumptions were used in
the latast actuarial valuation performed for the Plan:

Valuatlon Date

Actuarial Cost Method
Asset Valuation Method .

Amortization Method

Remaining amortization petiod

Actuarial Assumptions:
Investment Rate of Return
Projected Salary Increases

(includes Inflation at 3%)

Annual Penslon Cost and Net Pension Obligation
The Clly's annual pension cost and net pension obligation to the Pollce Pension Plan for the year

ehded December 31, 2010 were as follows:

Annual required contribution

Interest on net pension obligation

Adjustment to annual required contribution

Annual penslon cost
Conltributions made

Change In net penslion obligation
Net pension obligation beginning of year

Net pension obligation end of year

Scheduls of Annual Required Contributions

Year

2006
2007
2008
2008
2010

Annual
Requlred

Contribution

$ 219,483
230,582
222,937
248,166
210,932
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January 1, 2008
Entry Age Normal
4-year smoothing
Level Dollar Clossad
7 years (aggregate)

8.76%
4,50%

$ 210,032

210,932
210,932

—_—

$ =

Percentage
_Conlribuled
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%



CITY OF DUBQIS, PENNSYLVANIA

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2010

Note 10 — Litigation

The City, in the normal course of its activities, is involved in various claims and litigation. The
City currently has claims and lawsuits pending, which could uitimately result In liability for the
City over the next few years. The amount of these claims cannot be reasonably estimated at
this time and management estimates that any claims not covered by insurance resulting from
such litigation would not materially affect the financlal statements of the City.

Note 11 ~ Granis

The City has received federal and state grants for specific purposes that are subject to review
and audit by the grantor agencies or their designes. These audits could lead to a request for
reimbursement to the grantor agency for expenditures disallowed under terms of the grant.
Based on prior experience, the City Council believes such disallowances, if any, will be
immaterial.

Note 12 — Subsequent Events
Subsequent events were evaluated through March 2, 2012, which is the date the financial

statements were available to be issued. There were no events subsequent o the balance sheet
date that were required to be disclosed.
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CITY OF DUBOIS, PENNSYLVANIA

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

NON-UNIFORMED EMPLOYEES' PENSION PLAN

For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

Schedule of Funding Progress

{a) (b) (c) (d) {e} U]
Actuarial UAAL asa
Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Annual Percentage of
Valuation Value of Liabiflty (AAL)  AAL (UAAL)  Funded Ratlo Covered Covered Payroll
Date Assels —Enkry Age (b) - (a) (a)+Hb) Payroll (c}{e)
11101 $ 6068680 $50979,204 §$ (89,476) 101.60% $ 1,404,821 -6.37%
11/03 6,807,166 6,345,728 (461,438) 107.27% 1,530,186 -30.16%
1/1/05 7,369,919 7,003,697 (366,222) 105.23% 1,496,808 -24.47%
11107 7,865,596 7,680,127 (176,469) 102.28% 1,616,692 -10.85%
111109 8,561,358 8,233,630 (327,728) 103.98% 1,683,262 -19.47%

The schedule of funding progress presents the change in the actuarial value of plan assets over time
relative to the actuarlal accrued liability for benefits,
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CITY OF DUBOIS, PENNSYLVANIA

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
POLICE PENSION PLAN

For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

Scheadule of Funding Progress
{a) (b) (c) (d) (e) N

Actuarial UAAL as 3
Acluarial Acluarial Accrued Unfunded Annual Percentage of
Valuallon Value of Liability (AAL)  AAL (UAAL)  Funded Ratio Coverad Covered Payroll
Datle Assels —Entry Age {b) - (a) (a)+(b) Payroll (c}+{e)
111/014 $ 2,869,327 $3,132,796 $ 263,469 92% $ 482477 56%
1/1/03 3,742,399 3,841,630 99,131 97% 483,774 20%
11/06 4,280,073 4,674,354 294 281 94% 640,559 46%
11107 6,037,128 5,396,440 359,312 93% 734,757 49%
11109 5,652,615 6,067,630 416,016 3% 763,059 54%

The schedule of funding progress presents the change in the actuarial value of plan assets over time
relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits.
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CITY OF DUBOIS, PENNSYLVANIA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
CASH BASIS

GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

Varlance with
Budgeted Amounts : Final Budget
Ouiglnal Final Aclual Over (Under)
Revenuss:
Taxes $ 2234191 $ 2,234,191 2,266,461 § 2,270
Inlergovernmantal 274,397 274,397 763,619 489,122
Charges for senvices 332,639 332,639 557,166 224,516
Licenses and parmits 78,543 76,643 74,690 (1,963)
Fines and forfeltures 65,880 65,880 74,434 8,554
Interest and renlals 185,000 185,000 162,692 {32,408)
Miscellansous 233,420 233,420 1,810,508 1,377,086
Total Revanues 3,402,070 3,402,070 6,499,267 2,097,187
Expendilures:
Currend:
General government 646,136 646,136 690,244 (14,108)
Public safely 1,704,936 1,704,936 1,853,673 (148,737)
Public works 789,002 769,802 1,005,931 (306,129)
Community and economic development 5,000 5,000 - 5,000
Culture and recreallon 265,206 265,206 626,043 {271,637)
Debl service;
Principal 102,042 102,042 116,638 (14,606)
Interest 24,769 24,769 27,665 (2,796)
Capltal outlay 148,333 148,333 922 567 (774,224)
Other 353,846 353,846 363,002 (9,216)
Tolal Expenditures 4,030,070 4,030,070 5,606,623 {1,566,453)
Excass (Defliclency) of
Revenues over Expendilures (628,000) {626,000) (97,268) 530,734
Olher Financing Sources (Uses).
Capilal assals sales - - 216,894 216,894
Transfers In 700,000 700,000 2,224 863 1,524,863
Transfers out (72,000) {72,000 (78,431) (6,431)
Total Other Financing Sources {Uses) 628,000 628,000 2,363,326 1,735,326
Excess (Daficloncy) of Revenues
and Other Sources Over
Expenditures and Other Uses - - 2,266,060 2,266,080
Fund Balance-Beginning 2,057,480 2,067,480 2,057,480 -
Fund Balance-Ending 3 2057480 & 2,057,480 4323540 $ 2,266,080

See accompanying notes to budgetary comparison schedules.
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CITY OF DUBOCIS, PENNSYLVANIA

NOTES TO BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES

December 31, 2010

Note 1 — Budgetary Information

The City has adopted the following procedures In establishing the budgetary data reflected In the
basic financial statements:

(1) At the last stated meeting in November in each year, the Cllty Manager shall present to

(2)

3)

(4)

Coundll for first reading a proposed budget ordinance for all funds showing the estimated
recelpts, expenditures, and liabllities for the ensuing year with the balance of unexpended
appropriations and all other information of value as a basis for fixing the levy and tax rate
for the next fiscal year. Councll shall, upon passing the proposed budget ordinance on first
reading, fix a date for adoption thereof, which shall be not later than December 31 of such
year.

The City Clerk shall make the proposed budget ordinance available for public inspection
and publish a notice to that effect once in at least one newspaper. Such notice shall state
the date fixed by Council for adoption of the proposed budget ordinance and such notice
shall be published at least twenly days prior to the time fixed by Council for adoption of the
proposed budgel ordinance. The proposed budget ordinance shall be available for public
inspection at the City Clerk's office for at least ten days after the newspaper notice Is
published,

Councll shall, after making such changes and modifications thereln as appear proper,
adopt the budget and any appropriation measures required to put it Into effect upon the
date fixed for adoption thereof. If, upon any revision of the budget, estimated expenditures
are increased more than ten percent in the aggregate or more than twenty flve percent in
any Individual item over the proposed budgst, such budget shall not be adopted with any
such increases therein unless the same be again made available for public inspection -and
for protest of such increases for a period of at least ten days after notice to that effect is
published.

During the month of January following any municipal election, Council may amend the
budget and the levy and tax rate to conform to the amended budget ordinance. The
procedures for adopling an amended budget shall be in accordance with the above, except
that the amended budget ordinance must be adopted on or before February 15.

Note 2 — Other Informatlon

GASB Statement No. 34 requires a budgetary comparison schedule to be presented for the
General Fund and for each major special revenue fund that has a legally adopted annual
budget. The Cily did not adopt budgets for the Capital Reserve Funds and Communily
Development Block Grant Fund, major special revenue funds, and, therefore, presentation of
budgetary comparison information is not required.

33




ASSETS

Cash and cash Invesimenls
Interfund recaivables

Tolal Asssls

LIABILITIE D FUND BALANCES
Llabllilles:

Payroll faxes payeble

Interfund payables

Total Llablliies

Fund Balances:
Unreserved

Tolal Llablilles and Fund Balances

CITY OF DUBOIS, PENNSYLVANIA

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

CASH BASIS

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

December 31, 2010

Speclal Revenue Funds

34

Cammunity Elm Slreet Energy Farmers Flra Tralning

Brewery Grant Revllalizellon EDA Grant Grant Efflcency Grant Natlonal School Fund
$ 1,600 $ - § 8500 $ - 102,160 $ 40,001
$ 1600 -3 - $ 8500 $ - 102,460 §$ 40,001
$ - % - § -3 -8 - - 8 -
- - - - - 5648
- - - - - - 5,648
1,600 - - 8,500 - 102,160 34,353

§ 1600 § - 3% - 3 8500 $ - 102,160 § 40,001



Special Revanue Funds

Tolal Other
Foolbrldge Heallh Liquid Fuels Oranga Alley Peniz Run Uiban Governmenial
Granl Insurance Land Sale Tax Grant Brldges Public Salely Development Funds

$ - 8§ 125679 $§ - % 37352 § a3 $ - % - $§ 315376
$ - % 125879 % -3 37352 § 83 $ - $ - § . 35375
$ - 8 - 8 - 3 - % - $ I - 8§ -
- - - - - - - 5,648

- - - - - - - 6,648

- 125,679 - 37,352 83 - - 309,727

$ - % 125878 % - $ 37352 § 83 3 - § - $ 315,376

= —— 1




CITY OF DUBOIS, PENNSYLVANIA

' COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
CASH BASIS

Revenues;
Taxes
Intergovernmental
Chargaes for services
Licenses and permils
Fines and forfelluras
Interost and rentals
Miscellanaous

Tolal Revenues

Expendiiures:

Currenk:
General governmenl
Publlc safely
Public works
Community and economic davelopment
Culture and recreallon

Debi service:
Principal
Interest

Caplial outlay

Other
Tolal Expendilures

Excass {Deflclency) of
Revenues Over Expendiluras

Olher Financing Sources (Uses):
‘Capllal assels sales
Transfors In
Transfers out
‘Tolal Olher Financlng Sources (Uses)

Excoess (Deflciency) of Revenues
and Other Sources Over
Expendliures and Olher Uses

Fund Balances-Beginning

Fund Balances-Ending

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

Speclal Revenus Funds

Community Elm Street Energy Farmers Flre Tralnlng

Brewery Granl__ Revllalizatlon EDA Granl Qranl Elficency Grant Nalional School
9 - 3 - § - 8 - 3% - 8 -
- - - 180,000 - 40,000
- 3 2 - 322 -
- - - - 1 - 1
- 3 2 180,001 322 40,001
102,961 - 16,500 - - 5,648
. - - 180,001 -
102,961 - - 16,600 180,001 - 5,648
{102,961} 3 2 {16,600) - 322 34,353
- 523 - - - 25,222 -

- {10,632) {8,665) - - -

- {10.109) {8,685) - - 25,222 -
{102,861} {10,108) {8,683) (16,500) - 26,544 34,353
104,661 10,108 8,683 25,000 - 76,616 -
$ 102,160 % 34,353

$ 1600 $ - 3§ - $ 8500 § -
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Speclal Revenue Funds

Total Olher
Foolbrldge Health Liquid Fuals - O+sange Alloy Pentz Run Urban Governmenlal
Grant Insurance L.and Sale Tax Grant Bridges Public Safety _ Development Funds
$ -3 . - - $ -8 - % - $ - % .
- - - 104,326 260,000 - - 654,326
- 69 370 550 82 - 2 27 1417
- - - - - - - - 2
- 69 370 184,075 250,082 - 2 27 356,744
- 24,896 - - - - - - 24,066
- 23,939 - 277,588 - - - - 301,525
330 - - - 249,999 - - - 375,438
- - - - - - - - 180,001
330 48,835 - 277,586 249,999 - - - 881,860
(330) (48,776) 370 (92,711} 83 - 2 27 {226,116}
- 89,4117 - 32,325 - - - - 147,487
- - (66,100) - (814,001) {5,925) (84,483) (099,806)
- 89,417 (68,100) 32,3256 - (614,001) (5,925) (94,483) (852,318)
{330) 40,641 (65,730) {60,386) 83 {814,001) {65,923) {84,456) (1,078,435)
330 85,038 85,730 97,738 - 814,001 5,923 84,456 1,368,162
§ - _$ 125878 _§ - 3 37,362 i 893 3 - _§ - 3 - _$ 309,727




CITY OF DUBOQIS, PENNSYLVANIA

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

For The Year Ended December 31, 2010

Pass-Through Federal
Federa) Granlor Agency/ Grantor CFDA
Program Tille (If Appiicable) Number Granl Title/NMumber
DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE RURAL DEVELOPMENT
Communlty Facllilles Loans and Granls 10.780 OMB #0575-0173
U.S. DE OF HOUSING AND U D OPME
Community Developrment Block Granl/Slate's Program PA DCED 14.228 C000029559
Community Development Block Granl/Slale's Program PA DCED 14.228 C000034130
Communily Development Block Granl/Slate’s Program PA DCED 14,228 C000046110
Communlly Developmeni Block GranVSlale’s Program PA DCED 14.228 C000049970
Total Communily Development Block Grani/Stale's Program
Emergency Sheller Grants Program PA OCED 14,231 C000038134
Emergency Sheller Grants Program PADCED 14,21 C000049484
HOME Invesimen! Partnerships Program PA DCED 14.239 C000022631
HOME Invesimenl Partnerships Program PA DCED 14.239 C000046787
Tolal HOME Invesiment Parlnerships Program
ARRA-Communily Development Block Grant/State's Program PA DCED 14.255 €000046321
Total U.S. Depariment of Houslng and Urban Development
ENERGY
ARRA-Slate Energy Program PA DEP 81.041 Document #4100051103

Tolal Expendltures of Federal Awards

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Cash Balance Federal Federal Cash Balance
1112010 Receipls Expendilures Olher 1213412010
- 100,000 100,000 -
. 14,766 14,756 -
- 38,690 36,690 -
(6,640) 295,634 209,094 -
- 32,260 38,409 {4,159)
{5,840} 361,230 379,748 {4,159)
. 36,421 36,421 .
- - 18,808 {18,808)
- 36,421 65,220 (18,808)
- 296,932 296,933 -
- 0,887 9,867 -
- 306,820 308,820 -
{1,422) 8,938 7,618 -
{7.062) 733,409 749,314 {22,967)
- 180,000 180,000 -
$ (7062) & 1013409 §  1,020.314 $ (22,967)




CITY OF DUBOIS, PENNSYLVANIA

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

Note 1 — Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity of
the City of DuBois, Pennsylvania and s presented on the accrual basis of accounting. The
information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-
133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizalions. Therefore, some
amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented In, or used in the
preparation of, the primary government financial statements.
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DuBois, PA 15801 RiDGWAY, PA 156863
991 Beaver Drive 331 Maln Sltreet

SHARKEY PiccIRILLO KEEN & HANZELY, LLP

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

DuBols, Pennsylvania 15801

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANGE
AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the City Councll
City of DuBois, Pennsyivania
DuBois, Pennsylvania

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activilies, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of DuBois,
Pennsylvania, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2010, which collectively comprise the
basic financial statements of the City of DuBois, Pennsylvania's primary government and have
issued our report thereon dated March 2, 2012. The report on the aggregate remaining fund
information was qualified because of the effects of omitting blended component units. The report
on aggregate discretely presented component units was adverse because the primary government
financial statements do not include financial data for the City's legally separate component units.
Woe conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Compitroller General of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financlal Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City of DuBois, Pennsylvania’s internal
control over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose
of expressing our opinions on the primary government financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of DuBols, Pennsylvania’s
internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the City of DuBois, Pennsylvania’s internal control over financial reporting.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose
described In the preceding paragraph and was not designed to Identify all deficiencies in internal
control over financial reporting that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses and
therefore, there can be no assurance that all deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material
weaknesses have been identifled. However, as described in the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs, we identifled a deficiency in internal control that we consider to
be a material weakness.
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A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness Is a
deficlency, or a combination of deficlencies, In internal control such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial siatements will not be preventad,
or detected and corrected on a timely basis. We consider the deficlency described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs, listed as item 10-01, to be a material
weakness.

Compllance and Other Matlers

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of DuBois, Pennsylvania’s
primary government financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements,
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

The Clty of DuBols, Pennsylvania's response to the finding identified in our audit is described in
the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. We did not audit the City of
DuBois, Pennsylvania's response and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

This report is Intended solely for the Information and use of management, Cily Council, others
within the entity, and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to
be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Mooy Bocoiilo Sca & Mol o
SHARKEY PIECIRILLO KEEN & HANZELY, LLP
March 2, 2012
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DuBors, PA 15801 RIDGWAY, PA 15853
991 Beavear Drive 331 Main Street

SHARKEY PicciriLLo KEEN & HANZELY, LLP

CERTIFIED PUBLIGC ACCOUNTANTS

DuBols, Pennsylvania 15801

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS THAT
COULD HAVE A DIRECT AND MATERIAL EFFECT ON EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

To the City Councll
City of DuBols, Pennsylvania
DuBols, Pennsylvania

Compliance

We have audited the City of DuBois, Pennsylvania, compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the OMB Clrcular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a
direct and material effect on each of the City of DuBois, Pennsylvania's major federal programs
for the year ended December 31, 2010. The City of DuBols, Pennsylvania’s major federal
programs are identified In the summary of auditors' results section of the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to each of ils major federal programs is the
responslbility of the City of DuBois, Pennsylvanla’s management. Our responsibility is to
exprass an opinion on the City of DuBois, Pennsylvania's compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with audiling standards generally
accepted In the United States of Amerlca; the standards applicable to financial audits contained
In Government Auditing Standards, lssued by the Comptroller General of the Unlted States; and
OMB Circular A-133, Audits of Stales, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those
standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether noncompllance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program
occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City of DuBois,
Penisylvania's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as
we considered necessary in the circumstances, We believe that our audit provides a reasonable
basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination on the City of DuBols,
Pennsylvania's compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the City of DuBols, Pennsylvania complied, In all material respects, with the

compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each
of its major federal programs for the year ended December 31, 2010.
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internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the City of DuBois, Pennsylvania is responsible for establishing and maintaining
effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grants applicable to federal programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered
the City of DuBois, Pennsylvania’s internal control over compliance with the requirements that
could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program to determine the auditing
procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on
internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, hut not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly,
we do not express an oplnion on the effactiveness of the City of DuBois, Pennsylvania's internal
contro) over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the hormal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal
control over compliance is a deficlency, or combination of deficiencles, in internal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type
of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected, on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over compllance was for the limited purpose described Iin
the first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies In Internal
control over compliance that might be deficlencles, significant deficlencies, or materlal
weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencles In internal control over compliance that we
consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, City Councll, others

within the entity, federal awarding agencies, and pass-through entities and is not intended to be
and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

W&Z/%awﬂ/)d/m 'GW?' “

SHARKEY PICCIRILLO KEEN & HANZELY, LLP
March 2, 2012
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CITY OF DUBOIS, PENNSYLVANIA

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS

1.

The audltors’ report expresses an unqualified opinlon on the governmental activities,
the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information for the primary government financial statements of the City of DuBois,
Pennsylvania, The auditors’ repoit expresses an adverse opinion on the aggregate
discretely presented component units because the primary government financial
statements do not include financial data for the City's legally separate component
units,

One material weakness related to the audit of the primary government financlal
statements is reported in the Report on Internal Control Over Financlal Reporting
and 'on Gompliance and Other Maiters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

No insiances of noncompliance material to the primary government financial
statements of the City of DuBols, Pennsylvanta, which would be required to be
reported in accordance with Government Auditing Standards, were disclosed during
the audit.

No signlficant deficiencles relating to the audit of the major federal award programs
are reported In the Report on Compliance with Requirements Applicable to Each
Major Program and Internal Control Over Compliance in Accordance with OMB
Circular A-133.

The auditors’ report on compliance for the major federal award programs for the City
of DuBois, Pennsylvania expresses an unqualified opinion on all major federal
programs.

There are no audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with
Section 510(a) of OMB Circular A-133,

The programs tested as major federal programs included:;

Progiram CFDA No,
Community Development Block Grants/State’s Program 14,228
HOME Invesiment Parinership Program 14.239

The threshold for distingulshing Types A and B programs was $300,000,

The City of DuBols, Pennsylvania was determined not to be a low-risk auditee.
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CITY OF DUBOIS, PENNSYLVANIA

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

FINDINGS — FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

MATERIAL WEAKNESS:

10-1.

Financlal Reporting Duties of the City

Slatement of Condition

The Clty's personnel responsible for the accounting and reporting functions of the
City do not currently possess an approprlate level of technical knowledge and
experience of generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and Government
Accounting Standards Board's (GASB) pronouncements and certain Financial
Accounting Standards Board’'s (FASB) pronouncements to prepare the City's
financial statements, Including note disclosures, In accordance with the reporting
requirements of those principles and pronouncements. GAAP is the standard
framework of guidelines for financial accounting used in the preparation of financlal
statements and note disclosures, white GASB and FASB are the accepted standard-
setting bodies for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting
principles used by state and local governments,

Criterla

Internal control over financial reporting includes controls over financial statement
preparation, which would prevent, or detect and correct a misstatement in the
financial statements, including note disclosures.

Effect of Condition

This condition increases the risk of possible misstatements In the flnancial
statements.

Recommendation

An Ideal internal control system over financial reporting would include an individual
within an organization that would have technical knowledge and experience of the
reporting requirements of generally accepted accounting principles and the
Government Accounting Standards Board.

Response

The Cily Council and management are aware of the existence of the materlal
weakness and agree that an ideal Internal control system over financlal reporting
would include an Indlvidual descrlbed in the recommendation, which would reduce
the risk of possible misstalements In the financlal statements. The personnel
responsible for the accounting and reporting functions of the Cily currently possess
suitable skill, knowledge, and experience to perform the daily accounting functions of
the City. Therefore, the City Council and management have made a consclous
decislon to accept the degree of risk resulting from the materlal weakness, as the
benefit of the reduced risk does not justify the additlonal costs necessary to reduce
this risk.
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CITY OF DUBOIS, PENNSYLVANIA

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS ~ MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDIT

None.
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